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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHE
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On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to
present the Annual Report of China Castson 81 Finance Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2023. The Company is
an investment company pursuant to Chapter 21 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR

As at 31 December 2023, our net asset value amounted to about
HK$49.3 million and decreased by about HK$6.3 million, as
compared to that of last year. During the year, the Group suffered
an operational loss of about HK$6.3 million (2022: HK$28.0
million).

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's portfolio value of the Group
decreased by HK$17.2 million and amounted to about HK$31.3
million. Our portfolio comprised a mix of Hong Kong-listed equities
which were classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss. The current and non-current portions of the listed equities
portfolio were in the amount of about HK$21.9 million and HK$9.4
million, respectively.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Market Review

During the year, global inflationary pressures eased due to major
central banks continued to tighten monetary policy. Major overseas
markets advanced during the year. In the US, the Dow, Nasdaq
and S&P rose 13.7%, 43.4% and 24.2% respectively. However,
the Hong Kong stock market underperformed other major stock
markets mainly because of higher political risk mainly arising from
the tension between China and US, and the uncertainties brought
by the real estate market in China. At the beginning of the year,
investors had been optimistic of the economic recovery in China
and Hong Kong immediately after the borders were re-opened.
Subsequently, the fall in yuan, higher Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rates and the further interest rate hikes in the US weighed
on the market sentiment.

In Hong Kong, the Hang Seng Index (“HSI”) and the Hang Seng
TECH Index fell 13.8% and 8.8% respectively. The HSI rose to a
10-month high in January 2023, but then fluctuated downwards
to a 12-month low in December 2023. Hong Kong's market
performance was largely affected by external macro factors,
including worries over interest rate hikes in the US, uncertainties
brought by the real estate market in China and geopolitical
tensions in Ukraine and Israel.

Moreover, there was also increasing risk of recession in the US
because of its high interest rate environment. In addition, during
the tightening process of US monetary policy, the attractiveness of
US dollar assets has gradually become more prominent, and a large
amount of capital has flowed into the US. As a result, some
vulnerable emerging economies have fallen into the dual pressure
of international capital outflows and local currency depreciation.
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Revenue
The external environment remained complicated and interest rates

in advanced economies are expected to remain high for some time.
The tightened financial conditions, conflict between US and China
and the global and Mainland economic situations have put Hong
Kong stock market performance under pressure. The average daily
turnover of the Hong Kong stock market was lower in 2023 than
2022. Under the circumstances, instead of merely focusing on the
index constituents of major Hang Seng indices, we shifted more
our portfolio to non-constituent stocks together with a greater
frequency of re-balancing of the portfolio. We have also increased
the trading activities. Consequently, the gross proceeds from the
disposal of investments for the year ended 31 December 2023
increased to about HK$71.5 million (2022: about HK$31.4 million).

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the revenue of the Group
of HK$0.2 million (2022: HK$0.5 million) primarily comprised
dividend income from our equity investments.

Loss from operations
For the year ended 31 December 2023, the loss from operations

decreased from HK$28.0 million to about HK$6.3 million. The fair
value gain was about HK$13.0 million which was advanced to the
market performance.

Net gains/(losses) on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL")

For the year ended 31 December 2023, we achieved net fair value
gains from our listed equity investment portfolio of approximately
HK$13.0 million while there were net fair value losses of about
HK$10.8 million in prior year. During the year, we conducted more
short-term trading and increased the re-balancing in
non-constituent stocks and the above gains mainly arising from the
net realised gains for disposal of certain non-constituent stock.
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Other income
For the year ended 31 December 2023, other income mainly

represented the bank interest income. While, in prior year,
government grant of about HK$0.3 million was received from the
2022 Employment Support Scheme provided by the Hong Kong
Government.

Other gains and losses
For the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2023, other gains and

losses was insignificant.

Administrative expenses and other operating expenses
Administrative expenses for the year increased from about

HK$16.6 million in prior year to HK$18.4 million and was mainly
due to the professional fee in related to the change of the
Company’s name and the possible cash offer received by the
Company in early of January 2023 and the one-off compensation
for retirement staffs. During the year, certain inactive subsidiaries
were either deregistered or underwent the similar process for the
sake of cost-saving. Other operating expenses comprised the
management fee to the Investment Manager of about HK$308,000
(2022: HK$482,000) and finance costs represented the office
mortgage interest.

Interest in an associate
The interest in an associate represented our interests in the 30%

shareholdings of Superb Kingdom Limited and its subsidiaries and
it had no carrying value at the reporting date.

PROSPECTS

The conflict between China and US has been ongoing and US
imposed investment curbs that will restrict US companies, private
equity and venture capital funds from investing in China’s microchips,
artificial intelligence, quantum computing, biotechnology and clean
energy projects. With effective from 31 March 2023, the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange announced the addition of a new Chapter 18C
“Specialist Technology Companies” to the Main Board Listing Rules
with a view to elevating Hong Kong's position as the listing venue of
choice for innovative and progressive companies. The acceptable
sectors under the special technology industries will become the new
focus for PE and VC investments that will enhance the investment
opportunities in these sectors, such as fintech, artificial intelligence,
clean energy, new food technologies and biotechnology.
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In the late 2023, the Federal Reserve of the US held its key interest
rate steady with the inflation rate easing and the economy holding
in. Penciled interest rate cuts in 2024 lifted the markets.

Going forward, external macro factors remain the major risks. The
monetary stance of major central banks and the financial health of
the US and European banking sectors will continue to affect global
market performance. In China, the pace of economic recovery, the
extent of policy stimulus and Sino-US relations are the key focuses.
Moreover, the new wave of troubled real estate sector of China
also weighs on the market sentiment.

The Company will continue its investing in a prudent but proactive
manner. Diversification of risks is crucial and emphasised. We will
also consider various ways to enhance our financial strength with
an aim to improve our overall performance for the coming future.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Company, | would express my heartfelt gratitude
towards all of the directors, management and staff members for
their support and contribution to the Group.

On behalf of the Board

China Castson 81 Finance Company Limited
Lam Man Chan
Chairman

Date: 27 March 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 December 2023, the bank and cash balances increased to
approximately HK$12.2 million (2022: HK$1.8 million) mainly
because of the decrease in equity investments. The net current
assets decreased to approximately HK$31.6 million (2022: HK$35.0
million) mainly to finance the operations. As at 31 December 2023,
the Group had no material capital commitment (2022: Nil).

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2023, the Group maintained a low level of
gearing ratio of 1.2% as defined by total borrowings divided by
total equity (31 December 2022: 2.0%).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
As at 31 December 2023, property, plant and equipment
amounted to approximately HK$8.3 million (2022: HK$8.8 million).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

During the year, save for deregistration or strike-off of certain
inactive subsidiaries for the purpose of corporate group
rationalization, there were no significant acquisitions or disposals
of subsidiaries by the Group.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s total number of issued
shares remained to be 141,423,187 at par value of HK$0.01 each.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The 2022 Share Option Scheme was adopted by the Company on
27 June 2022. During the year, no share options were granted,
exercised, cancelled and lapsed. There are no shares options
outstanding as at 31 December 2023.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The net losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
held as at 31 December 2023 to the date of approval of the
consolidated financial statements amounted to approximately
HK$4.3 million.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE

The investment portfolio primarily comprises listed equities in Hong
Kong stock market, and other funds are usually maintained in the
banks. Majority of them are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
The Board considered the Group had no significant exposure to
foreign exchange fluctuation as at the balance sheet date.

PLEDGE OF THE GROUP'S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, the office premises with a carrying
amount of about HK$8.3 million (2022: HK$8.8 million) was
pledged for an instalment loan.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2023, the Company had 13 employees (2022:
16) and directors. The remuneration packages for the employees
and the directors were in line with the prevailing market practice
and are determined on the basis of performance and experience.

CHINA CASTSON 81 FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD BY THE GROUP
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Disclosure required under the Listing Rules in relation to each
of the major investments held by the Group as at the balance
sheet date are mainly set out in the note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements in pages 180 to 186 of this
report.

The abovementioned major investments represented
investments in equity securities of issuers listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
performance of such listed issuers during their respective
latest financial period/year, material factors underlying their
respective results and financial position, significant events, if
any, during their respective financial periods under review,
and their respective future prospects are disclosed in their
respective announcements/reports made available on the
website of HKEx. To facilitate a review on the performance of
the significant investments held by the Group, relevant
information is extracted from such announcements/reports
and provided below for easy reference. The Company has not
independently verified the information published by such
listed issuers. All monetary and percentage figures cited
below are approximate figures only.

These significant investments are held for achieving capital
appreciation or generating interest or dividend income. To
meet our investment objective, listed securities are managed
and reviewed on a portfolio basis. Regarding listed equities,
the buy and hold strategy and short-term trading tactics are
used to enhance the investment returns. Investment in
unlisted equities is reviewed on an investment-by-investment
basis and can typically provide a high return if there is a
successful exit.
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1. CHINA ORIENTED INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
("CHINA ORIENTED") (STOCK CODE: 1871. HK)

1.1

1.2

CHINA CASTSON 81 FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED

China Oriented International Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1871.HK) is an investment holding company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability.
The company’s shares have been listed on the Stock
Exchange since 24 October 2019.

China Oriented is a provider of driving training services
based in Zhumadian City, Henan province, the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC"). China Oriented engages in
the provision of driving training services through its two
major operating subsidiaries, namely Shun Da School
and Tong Tai School. Shun Da School is a qualified level
Il driving school established and commenced operation
in 2012 which offers driving training services for
preparation for driving tests of Small Vehicles. Tong Tai
School is a qualified level I driving school established
and commenced operation in 2014 which offers driving
training services for preparation for driving tests of both
Large Vehicles and Small Vehicles.

Its revenue for the financial year 2023 declined by
Renminbi (“RMB"”) 7.8 million (or approximately 16.4%
on a year-over-year basis) to RMB39.9 million.

Its loss for the year was approximately RMB8.4 million
as compared to a loss of approximately RMB8.7 million
for the prior year.
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1.3

1.4

1.5

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2023, China
Oriented overall number of course enrollments and our
overall number of trainees attended our driving courses
declined. China Oriented recorded an overall negative
growth for both the total number of course enrollment
for, and the total number of trainees attended on,
China Oriented driving courses for the year ended 31
December 2023, as comparing to that for the year
ended 31 December 2022. This overall deterioration in
its business performance is the effect of decrease in the
actual number of training hours provided by China
Oriented during the year ended 31 December 2023 due
to the decrease in the demand for driving courses,
which had a significant impact on the number of course
enrollments of Large Vehicles especially, due to the
continuing deterioration of the market conditions of
the logistics industry as a result of the continuous
US-China trade tensions.

The net asset value as at 31 December 2023 was
approximately RMB189.6 million (31 December 2022:
RMB198.0 million).

The share price of China Oriented on the Stock
Exchange at the end of December 2023 changed to
HK$0.223 (31 December 2022: HK$0.227), down
1.8%. The highest and lowest trading prices of China
Oriented’s shares on the Stock Exchange during the
year ended 31 December 2023 were HK$0.3 and
HK$0.189, respectively.

1.3

1.4

1.5
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2. KINGKEY INTELLIGENCE CULTURE HOLDINGS
LIMITED (“KINGKEY INTELLIGENCE") (STOCK CODE:
0550. HK)

2.1 Kingkey Intelligence acts as an investment holding
company and the principal activities of its major
subsidiaries include provision of advertising services,
sales of medical and health products, provision of
E-commerce services and investment holding.

2.2 Its revenue for the financial year 2022 increased by
approximately HK$19.3 million (or approximately 55.3%
on a year-over-year basis) to approximately HK$54.2
million.

Its loss for the year was approximately HK$8.7 million
as compared to a loss of approximately 7.0 million for
the prior year.

2.3 The net asset value as at 31 December 2022 was
approximately HK$196.1 million (31 December 2021:
HK$177.0 million).

2.4 In the first half of its financial year 2023, its revenue
decreased by approximately HK$8.8 million to
approximately HK$20.2 million. Its net loss was
approximately HK$10.0 million and dropped
approximately HK$8.8 million on a year-over-year basis.

2.5 The share price of Kingkey Intelligence on the Stock
Exchange at the end of December 2023 changed to
HK$0.46 (31 December 2022: HK$0.35), up 31.4%.
The highest and lowest trading prices of Kingkey
Intelligence’s shares on the Stock Exchange during the
year ended 31 December 2023 were HK$0.79 and
HK$0.265, respectively.
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3. KNT HOLDINGS LIMITED (“KNT HOLDINGS") (STOCK
CODE: 1025.HK)

3.1

3.2

3.3

KNT Holdings is a one-stop solutions provider of
bridesmaid dresses, bridal gowns and special occasion
dresses. KNT Holdings principally sells its products to
brand apparel companies based in the United States.
Over the years, KNT Holdings has built reputation and
gained customers’ recognition from KNT Holdings
dedication to provide its customers with one-stop
solutions and consistently high quality products, which
has increased its customers’ reliance on it and in turn
enabled it to maintain its market position as one of the
leading bridesmaid dresses manufacturers in the PRC.
KNT Holdings is the sole supplier of certain largest
customers for bridesmaid dresses whom had maintained
long years of relationship with KNT Holdings. In
addition to manufacturing products for its customers,
KNT Holdings strives to become an integral part of its
customers’ business operations by offering a wide range
of value-added services ranging from fashion trend
analysis, product design and development, raw material
procurement, production, quality assurance to inventory
management. KNT Holdings has also commenced
developing its online business platform for the sale of
fashion apparels since November 2020. In addition, KNT
Holdings commenced the business of selling accessories
during the year ended 31 March 2022.

For the year ended 31 March 2023, KNT Holdings
recorded revenue of approximately HK$71.7 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 10.4% as
compared to that of approximately HK$80.0 million for
the year ended 31 March 2022.

Its loss for the year was approximately HK$31.3 million
as compared to a loss of approximately HK$25.1 million
for the prior year.

The net asset value as at 31 March 2023 was
approximately HK$72.6 million (31 March 2022:
HK$104.1 million).
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3.4

3.5

In the first half of its financial year 2023, KNT Holdings
recorded revenue of approximately HK$22.5 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 39.7% as
compared to that of approximately HK$37.3 million in
last corresponding period. The gross profit margin
increased from 9.4% for the six months ended 30
September 2022 to 9.8% for the six months ended 30
September 2023.

Loss for the period amounted to approximately HK$14.7
million for the six months ended 30 September 2023,
representing a decrease in loss of approximately 18.8%
as compared to loss of approximately HK$18.1 million
for the six months ended 30 September 2022.

The share price of KNT Holdings on the Stock Exchange
at the end of December 2023 dropped to HK$0.375 (31
December 2022: HK$0.43), down about 12.8%. The
highest and lowest trading prices of KNT Holdings's
shares on the Stock Exchange during the year ended 31
December 2023 were HK$0.56 and HK$0.325
respectively.

4. JTF INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED("JTF
INTERNATIONAL") (STOCK CODE: 9689.HK)

4.1

CHINA CASTSON 81 FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2023

JTF International is an investment holding company. JTF
International and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in the blending and sale of fuel oil, sale of refined oil
and other petrochemical products in the PRC.

JTF International’s shares were listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (GEM STOCK CODE: 8479.HK) on 17
January 2018 and subsequently its listing was
transferred to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
17 May 2023.
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4.2

4.3

4.4

Its revenue for the financial year 2023 declined by
approximately RMB295.0 million (or approximately
19.2% on a year-over-year basis) to approximately
RMB1,239.5 million.

Its loss for the year was approximately RMB1.5 million
as compared to a profit of approximately RMB31.7
million for the prior year.

The net asset value as at 31 December 2023 was
approximately RMB431.5 million (31 December 2022:
RMB418.4 million).

The share price of JTF International on the Stock
Exchange at the end of December 2023 was HK$0.55.
The highest and lowest trading prices of JTF
International’s shares on the Stock Exchange during the
year ended 31 December 2023 were HK$0.8 and
HK$0.395, respectively.

OKURA HOLDINGS LIMITED (“OKURA HOLDINGS")
(STOCK CODE: 1655.HK)

5.1

5.2

Okura Holdings is a pachinko hall operator in Japan,
operating mainly pachinko and pachislot machines.
Okura Holdings currently operate 11 pachinko halls in
the Kyushu, Kanto, Kansai and Chugoku regions in
Japan under the trading names “Big Apple.” and “K’s
Plaza”.

Its revenue for the financial year 2023 increased by
approximately Japanese Yen (“¥") ¥722 million (or
approximately 13% on a year-over-year basis) to
approximately ¥6,284 million.

Its profit for the year was approximately ¥3,220 million
as compared to a loss of approximately ¥1,321 million
for the prior year.

4.2

4.3

4.4
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5.3

5.4

55

The net asset value as at 30 June 2023 was
approximately ¥5,718 million (30 June 2022: ¥2,160
million).

In the first half of its financial year 2024, its revenue
increased by approximately ¥85 million to approximately
¥3,191 million. Its net profit was approximately ¥1,116
million, increased approximately ¥1,026 million as
compared to a profit of approximately ¥90 million for
the prior period.

The share price of Okura Holdings on the Stock
Exchange at the end of December 2023 was HK$0.45.
(31 December 2022: HK$0.3), up about 50%. The
highest and lowest trading prices of Okura Holdings's
shares on the Stock Exchange during the year ended 31
December 2023 were HK$1.2 and HK$0.218,
respectively.

6. JD.COM, INC. (“JD.COM") (STOCK CODE: 9618.HK)

6.1

6.2

JD.com is a leading supply chain-based technology and
service provider. JD.com's cutting-edge retail
infrastructure seeks to enable consumers to buy
whatever they want, whenever and wherever they want
it. JD.com has opened its technology and infrastructure
to partners, brands and other sectors, as part of its
Retail as a Service offering to help drive productivity
and innovation across a range of industries.

Net revenues for the full year of 2023 were
approximately RMB1,084.7 billion (US$152.8 billion), an
increase of approximately 3.7% from the full year of
2022. Net service revenues for the full year of 2023
were approximately RMB213.4 billion (US$30.1 billion),
an increase of approximately 17.8% from the full year
of 2022. Income from operations for the full year of
2023 was approximately RMB26 billion (US$3.7 billion),
compared to approximately RMB19.7 billion for the full
year of 2022.
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6.3 Net income attributable to ordinary shareholders of
JD.com for the full year of 2023 was approximately
RMB24.2 billion (US$3.4 billion), compared to a net
profit of approximately RMB10.4 billion for the full year
of 2022.

6.4 The net asset value as at 31 December 2023 was
approximately RMB296.4 billion (US$41.7 billion) (31
December 2022: approximately RMB274.1 billion).

6.5 The share price of JD.com on the Stock Exchange at the
end of December 2023 dropped to HK$112.5 (31
December 2022: HK$220.2), down about 48.9%. The
highest and lowest trading prices of JD. Com’s shares
on the Stock Exchange during the year ended 31
December 2023 were HK$251.4 and HK$93.9
respectively.

HONG KONG EXCHANGES AND CLEARING LIMITED

("HKEX") (STOCK CODE: 0388.HK)

7.1 HKEX and its subsidiaries own and operate the only
stock exchange and futures exchange in Hong Kong
and their related clearing houses, a clearing house for
clearing over-the-counter derivatives contracts in Hong
Kong, an exchange and a clearing house for the trading
and clearing of base, ferrous and precious metals
futures and options contracts operating in the United
Kingdom, and a commodity trading platform in the
Mainland.

7.2 For the year ended 31 December 2023, total revenue
and other income of approximately HK$20,516 million
was approximately 11.2% higher than the record 2022.
Profit attributable to shareholders of HKEX for the year
was approximately HK$11,862 million, approximately
17.7% higher than the record 2022.

63 —E_=ZF2FRREERER
ETEBRBRENFFNEAHOARE
24,200,000,0007T ( 3,400,000,0003
JL) c MZZEZZF2FAEFMEOA
K #10,400,000,0007T °

64 RZZTEZ=F+Z_A=+—HZE&
EFELH A AR296,400,000,000
7t (41,700,000,000% ) (= &
T+ -AZ=ZF+—BH: HARE
274,100,000,0007T) °

65 RREEBRBIMABIRER =
T =F T+ ARKE11258x (=
T - —HF+-HF=+—H:2202%
JL)  BKIEH148.9% c BE T - =
TZA=+—RHLEFE  RREER
MR &= RHEXRZE
7R AR251.48 7T %93.98 T ©

ERARZREEMARAT ([

R ATl (B4 13 - 0388.HK)

710 BRFREKBARDEELLLEES
B——XREX S RBER SR
HEBMEER  MEEBEE—K
HEBMTEERANZEER &
REGE RS R—REERE
EREEEASE ZEoBRES
BEHERAEAY  LRENMEE
— AR SEE -

72 HE-_Z-_=%+-HA=+—H
EFE WaREMBRABERD
20,516,000,000 70 * B = F = — 4
MR8 EANIN2% BXHEE
% B FE 15 )& 7 A #911,862,000,000
BT R T _FHEELEAD
17.7% °

TEER 81 ERMARRKE | ZEBZ=HFFH 19




PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD BY THE GROUP
REBREZEEREZHTE

20

7.3 The net asset value as at 31 December 2023 was
approximately HK$51.8 billion (31 December 2022:
HK$50.1 billion).

7.4 The share price of HKEX on the Stock Exchange at the
end of December 2023 dropped to HK$268 (31
December 2022: HK$337.2), down about 20.5%. The
highest and lowest trading prices of HKEX's shares on
the Stock Exchange during the year ended 31 December
2023 were HK$377.4 and HK$245.2 respectively.

8. PTINTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
LIMITED (“PT INTERNATIONAL") (STOCK CODE:
0372.HK)

8.1 PT International and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in in a variety of business activities, including
trading of commodities, petrochemical storage business,
metal recycling, port and port-related services, provision
of management services, financial institute business and
loan financing services.

8.2 For the year ended 31 March 2023, total revenue and
other income of approximately $452.5 million was
approximately 48.8 per cent lower than the record
2022. PT International reported a loss of approximately
HK$360.4 million (2022: loss of HK$170.6 million)
which was mainly due to an impairment loss on
goodwill, property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets related to the provision of port and
port-related services in the petrochemical segment;
partly offset by the fair value gain of financial
instruments, in particular, the PT International’s
investment in AFC Mercury Fund.

8.3 The net asset value as at 31 March 2023 was

approximately HK$318.0 million (31 March 2022:
HK$716.2 million).

CHINA CASTSON 81 FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2023

7.3

7.4

RZEZ=F+=ZA=+—HZ
& EFEL A51,800,000,0007
T(ZEZ=ZF+=ZA=+—8:
50,100,000,000 7T) °

BRIIREBZFARIBRER T
ZEF+ - ARKE268F L (ZF
ZZHE+ZA=+—H:337.2%
o) BRIE#I20.5% c mE T =
TZA=T—BLEFE  BRAKRG
REER TR S REEA R E D
R A377.478 7T 1224528 7T ©

REEBRBERCEGRAT ([&F
BER ) (RBRE - 0372.HK)

8.1

8.2

8.3

REBREENBARIENERRE
BELY BREEmES  AMET
mAERER EEW - BAOLEC
RRARY - REEERTY  SREE
EBRERBE R

HE_Z-_=ZF#=ZA=Z+—H8 1
FE - KRahEMBABLBER/LD
452,500,000,  RZTEZZFH
FRER T 4148.8% o (RIEBIBRERZE
$8#49360,400,0008 L (=T ==
E518170,600,000/8 L) * £ E RN
AH bt TR HFRES D B OHE
BRBAERNEE W% BERRK
HEURFERAEEENRERSE  BH
WEeBMTAZAFEAEKTZ  LER
REBEFEMBAFC Mercury FundZ 184
FTK 88 o

N-EBE-=FE=A=+—RA28E%
{E#7/4318,000,0008 T (ZE - =
=A=+—H:716,200,000/87T) °



8.4

8.5

8.6

For the six months ended 30 September 2023, PT
International reported a profit of approximately
HK$340.4 million (2022: loss of HK$96.8 million). The
Current Period gain was mainly due to the unrealised
fair value gain of financial instruments, in particular, PT
International and its subsidiaries investment in AFC
Mercury Fund.

The share price of PT International on the Stock
Exchange at the end of December 2023 dropped to
HK$0.07 (31 December 2022: HK$0.144), down about
51.4%. The highest and lowest trading prices of PT
International’s shares on the Stock Exchange during the
year ended 31 December 2023 were HK$0.151 and
HK$0.046 respectively.

As at 30 September 2023, PT International and its
subsidiaries has two material litigations, (i) civil
complaints filed by Lianwei (Shanghai) Finance Lease
Limited (BT ()8R EMAEBR AR in respect of
disputes over the sale and leaseback arrangements and
(i) a civil complaint filed by a civil litigant in respect of
the dispute over loans provided to an individual.

XIAOMI CORPORATION (“XIAOMI") (STOCK CODE:
1810.HK)

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

Xiaomi was principally engaged in development and
sales of smartphones, internet of things and lifestyle
products, provision of internet services and investments
holding in the PRC and other countries or regions.

Its revenue for the financial year 2023 declined by
approximately RMB9.0 billion (or approximately 3.2%
on a year-over-year basis) to approximately RMB271.0
billion.

Its profit for the year 2023 was approximately RMB17.5
billion as compared to a profit of approximately RMB2.5
billion for the prior year.

The net asset value as at 31 December 2023 was
approximately RMB164.3 billion (31 December 2022:
RMB143.9 billion).
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9.5

The share price of Xiaomi on the Stock Exchange at the
end of December 2023 changed to HK$15.6 (31
December 2022: HK$10.94), up 4.3%. The highest and
lowest trading prices of Xiaomi shares on the Stock
Exchange during the year ended 31 December 2023
were HK$16.8 and HK$9.99, respectively.

10. ALIBABA GROUP HOLDING LIMITED (“ALIBABA
GROUP") (STOCK CODE: 9988.HK)

10.1

10.2

10.3

Alibaba Group businesses are comprised of China
commerce, International commerce, Local consumer
services, Cainiao, Cloud, Digital media and entertainment,
and Innovation initiatives and others. An ecosystem has
developed around Alibaba Group platforms and businesses
that consists of consumers, merchants, brands, retailers,
third-party service providers, strategic alliance partners and
other businesses.

For the year ended 31 March 2023, Alibaba Group total
revenue was approximately RMB868.7 billion (US$126.5
billion), an increase of approximately 1.8% compared to
prior year.

Net Income for the year ended 31 March 2023 was
approximately RMB65.6 billion (approximately US$9.5
billion), compared to approximately RMB47.1 billion for
the prior year.

10.4 The net asset value as at 31 March 2023 was

CHINA CASTSON 81 FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED |

approximately RMB1,122.9 billion (US$163.5 billion) (31
March 2022: approximately RMB1,082.2 billion).
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10.5 For the nine months ended 31 December 2023, Alibaba W5 &HEZE-_TE-_=F+=-_A=+—H1t

Group's revenue increased by approximately RMB58.8 NER MEEBEBEKZE AL
billion to approximately RMB719.3 billion (US$101.3 A K #58,800,000,0007C & 4 A R #&
billion). Its net income was approximately RMB70.4 719,300,000,0007T ( 101,300,000,000
billion (US$9.9 billion) and increased approximately X)) o BHBIFMNHEHHOARE
RMB26.8 billion on a year-over-year basis. 70,400,000,0007T (9,900,000,0003 7T.)

IRt EFHA9 AR #26,800,000,0007T

10.6 The share price of Alibaba Group on the Stock Exchange 10.6 MEEEREERBRATATSRZBER
at the end of December 2023 dropped to HK$75.6 (31 TR F+ - AEBRETIS BT (=
December 2022: HK$86.25), down about 12.3%. The T -+ _-_HA=+—H:86.25%
highest and lowest trading prices of Alibaba Group's JL)  BKIEHI12.3% c BEZTZ=F
shares on the Stock Exchange during the year ended 31 +TZA=ZF+—HBHLEFE WEEESE
December 2023 were HK$117.5 and HK$68.8 B MR FTET IR & = R RIEK
respectively. BRI AE117.58 7T K% 68.88 T °
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INTRODUCTION
The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance
report of the Company for the year of 2023.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining and implementing
a high standard of corporate governance and recognises that
good governance can help the business to deliver its
strategies, generate shareholder value and meet its
obligations towards shareholders and other stakeholders. The
Company has established a governance structure, and
embeds governance and principles in the business to ensure
accountability, fairness, integrity and transparency.

The Board adheres to corporate governance practices by
adopting and complying with the established rules, codes,
guidelines under the Corporate Governance Code (the “"CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix C1 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The Company has followed the
CG Code and formulated its own policies and procedures
regarding the corporate governance practices. During the
year of 2023, the Company complied with all of the
provisions under the CG Code except for the following:

(a) Code provision C.5.8
It is required that an agenda and accompanying board
papers should be sent, in full, to all Directors for regular
board meetings and as far as practicable in all other
cases. These papers should be sent in a timely manner
and at least 3 days before the intended date of a board
or board committee meeting (or other agreed period).

Due to the practical reasons, agenda and related board
papers have not been sent, in full, in 3 days in advance
to certain meetings of the Board or Board Committee.
Save for the disclosure of certain inside information
which required timely publication of announcements,
the Company Secretary has used the best endeavours
to fulfil the above practice of three days advance notice.
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(b) Code provision C.2

According to Code Provision C.2 of the Part 2 of
Corporate Governance Code, there are two key aspects
of the management of a listed company - the
management of the board and the day-to-day
management of business. There should be a clear
division of these responsibilities to ensure a balance of
power and authority, so that power is not concentrated
in any one individual. The roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

Before October 2023, the Company has separated the
above two roles and the Chairman and CEO are Dr. Lam
Man Chan and Dr. Yeung Cheuk Kwong (“Dr. Yeung”),
respectively.

However, Dr. Yeung retired as chief executive officer
and chief investment officer with effect from 1
November 2023 after reaching retirement age. After
the step down of Dr. Yeung, the responsibilities of the
chief executive officer of the Company have been taken
up by the other members of the Board and senior
management of the Company.
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DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed issuers (the “"Model
Code") contained in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as its
codes of conduct regarding securities transactions by
Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, having made specific
enquiry of all the Directors, all the Directors of the Company
have confirmed that they had complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code regarding the
securities transactions by the Directors and there were no
incidents of non-compliance with the required standard set
out in the Model Code.

CORPORATE PURPOSE, STRATEGY AND
GOVERNANCE

The mission of the Company is to become a well-known
investment company in Hong Kong, and our business
philosophy is to benefit “Employee, Shareholders and
Community.” We believe that sustainable development is the
key to our success, and the positive impact on the community
as well as the environment will bring long term value to all of
our key stakeholders.

As an investment company under the Chapter 21 of the
Listing Rules, our primary investment objective is to achieve
capital appreciation and generating stable income from
interests and dividends. The Company will also consider ways
to integrate Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG")
factors in our investing processes.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board has overall responsibility for the management of
the Company and the implementation of its investment
policy, which includes, inter alia, the adoption of long term
corporate strategies, assessment of investment projects,
supervision of its management and review of its financial
performance to ensure that the Company’s investments are
conducted in accordance with its objectives.
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2.2

2.3

2.4

INVESTMENT MANAGER

The Company appoints a professional investment manager to
manage its investment portfolio. With effect from 25 January
2021,
appointed as the Company’s investment manager (the

Success Advance Investments Limited had been

Appointment”) for a term of two years from 25 January
2021.
Appointment on 25 January 2023, the Appointment has been

Upon the expiry of the original fixed term of the

and will be extended automatically for a further term of one
year subject to the termination by either party with notice.
Currently, our Investment Manager agreed to receive a
monthly fee of HKD32,500 subject to mutual review as
necessary.

CULTURE

The Company establishes its purposes, values and strategy as
mentioned above in Section 2. The Company emphasizes a
culture of creating long term value to stakeholders and we
recognize the importance of creating and maintaining a
culture of inclusion in our workplace and implementing
female and family-friendly incentives. We strive to maintain a
suitable workplace for all employees, promote economic
growth and create more job opportunities. We also reckons
that our sustainable performance is aligned to good
governance practices and a culture of compliance has been
cultivated amongst our staff.

All directors act with integrity and promote the above desired
cultures.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out in code provision A.2.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code. The Board had reviewed the
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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TRAINING

Under code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the board should review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of directors and senior
management. All directors should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. Through the course of their
directorship, Directors are updated on any developments or
changes affecting the Company and their obligations to it at
regular Board meetings. In order to ensure that Directors
continue to further their understanding of the issues facing
the Group, the Company will further strengthen the provision
of Board training, ranging from corporate governance to
regulatory issues.

Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. This is to ensure that their contribution into the Board
remains informed and relevant. All Directors have participated
in continuous professional development by studying materials
relevant to their duties and responsibilities. The Company
Secretary also provided relevant training materials for the
self-study of Directors.

During the year, relevant reading materials, including
regulatory updates, seminar handouts and briefings, have
also been provided to the Directors for their reference and
studying to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness
of good corporate governance practices.
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3.1

BOARD COMPOSITION

There are currently five Directors in the Board: the Chairman,
one Executive Director, and three Independent non-executive
Directors (“INEDs"). The Board regularly reviews its size and
composition to ensure that the Board can have a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspective appropriate to
the requirements of our investment business. We started to
develop our own board skill matrix and emphasized the
investment skills and knowledge, risk management and
compliance knowledge.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (this “Policy”)

The Company has set out the approach to achieve diversity of
its board of directors (the “Board”) of China Castson 81
Finance Company Limited (the “Company”). The Company
recognises the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance
the quality of its performance and to maintain high standards
of corporate governance.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity at the
Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development. In designing the Board’s composition, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board.
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Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service with the Group. The
ultimate decision will be based on merits and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The
nomination committee of the Board (the “Nomination
Committee”) will review this Policy and the measurable
objectives, at least annually as appropriate, to ensure the
effectiveness of this Policy. The Nomination Committee will
discuss any revisions that may be required, recommend any
such revisions to the Board, and monitor the implementation
of this Policy.

Under Code provision B.1.3, the board should review the
implementation and effectiveness of the diversity policy on
annual basis. The Nomination Committee will also report
annually on the Board’'s composition under diversity
perspectives. Currently, there is a female director on the
board and the Nomination Committee recommended us to
maintain a female director on the board as our target. The
Board also revised the board diversity policy accordingly.

The Directors’ biographical details are set out in the section
of “Biography of Directors” on pages 108 to 112. The Board

members for the year ended 31 December 2023 and as at
the date up to this report were:

Chairman and Non-Executive Director
Dr. Lam Man Chan

Executive Director
Mr. Lee Kwok Leung

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Ng Chi Yeung, Simon

Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy

Ms. Florence Ng (resigned on 28 December 2023)

Ms. Law So Fun (appointed on 28 December 2023)
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The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings a
year at approximately quarterly intervals in addition to other
Board meetings that are required for significant and
important issues, and for statutory purposes. The Board
meetings are attended by a majority of the Directors in
person or through other electronic means of communication.
Appropriate and sufficient information is provided to the
Board members in a timely manner to keep them abreast of
the Group’s latest development and thus assist them in
discharging their duties.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, other than
resolutions passed in writing by all the Directors, the Board
held twenty-one (21) meetings for all directors and one (1)
meeting between the Chairman and all Independent
Non-executive Directors. During the year ended 31 December
2023, the Company convened an annual general meeting
("AGM") and one special general meeting ("SGM").

The attendance of the Directors at the Board Meetings and
General Meetings for the year ended 31 December 2023 is
set out as below:

Name of Directors
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Number of meetings attended

HEEERY
Board
Meetings AGM SGM
EZEE8 RREFKRKE RREREIKE

Chairman and Non-Executive Director IEREHTES
Dr. Lam Man Chan MR L
Executive Director HiTES

Mr. Lee Kwok Leung ZEREE
Independent Non-executive Directors BAEHITES

Dr. Ng Chi Yeung, Simon REGEL

Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy EBELE

Ms. Florence Ng (resigned on
28 December 2023)

Ms. Law So Fun (appointed on
28 December 2023)

To the best knowledge of the Board, there is no financial,
business or family relationship among members of the Board
as at 31 December 2023. All of them are free to exercise
their individual judgment.
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3.5
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RE-APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE

DIRECTORS
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board has

met with the requirements of Rules 3.10(1), Rule 3.10(2) and
Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive directors,
representing at least one third of the Board, and with at least
one possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect
of his independence in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the Company considers each of them to be
independent.

According to Code provision B.2.3 and B.2.4, INEDs who
have served more than nine years on board, their further
appointment should be subject to separate resolution. During
the year, there was a change of one of Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company.

TERM OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The current Non-executive Director and Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company are not appointed
for a specific term, all Directors (including Executive and
Non-executive) of the Company are subject to retirement by
rotation at the annual general meeting as specified in the
bye-laws of the Company.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

During the year, the Board size and composition was
reviewed by the Nomination Committee. With the use of the
board skill matrix, the Committee assisted the Board to
ensure that there are diversity of skills, experience,
perspective, gender representation on the board.
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4.2

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITIES
DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company and
ensure that they are prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors
also ensure the timely publication of such financial statements.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, RSM
Hong Kong, with regard to their reporting responsibilities on
the Company’s financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 124 to 128.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries,
they are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

THE CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The code provision C.2. stipulates that the role of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual.

Before October 2023, the Company has separated the above
two roles and the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are
Dr. Lam Man Chan and Dr. Yeung Cheuk Kwong (“Dr.
Yeung"), respectively. The major duties of the Chairman are
to provide leadership to the Board and spearhead overall
corporate development and strategic planning whilst the
Chief Executive Officer is responsible for implementing the
decisions and strategy approved by the Board and managing
day-to-day operations of the Group with the supports of the
Executive Director.

4.2

EEEE
EEUMBRRZEME

EFTHEFHREARAYHREAZA
£ URARMBERDRBEEERE LE
AertZllRR EFTHEREEHESA
FAR TS ¥R K -

ANARINEIZ HANZE R =2 5 AD A FT L
BEHARRUBHRRZERETIEL 2
BIREHNE124E128E 2 B MBI RE

%o

EEHR BRIJFL —AESHREMN
RA - BAERREE - REL AR B
HARARZFHELERENBRERRM[Z
EHIAMRRZERTHABREE -

IERITHRAR
SFREXEC 2 GETH - ERRITRAEEZ
FBERETESD - FREhE—AREE -

RZBZ=FTAZA XRAFEBERE
HITHRHUN EMEARRES + 5 5l H MK
NMEBLTRGEXEL([HBEL]) BT -
IRZEEBREATEEST S RIELER
TEFERERRERE  mTREZAAE
NITHESSMEZRREKE  TEHR
TEEZIRTERAREEREZE -

TEER 81 EBRARRQE | ZBZ=HFFH

33




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

&

\«A—h—xAi&
==

34

4.3

CHINA CASTSON 81 FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED |

However, Dr. Yeung retired as chief executive officer and
chief investment officer with effect from 1 November 2023
after reaching retirement age. After the step down of Dr.
Yeung, the responsibilities of the chief executive officer of
the Company have been taken up by the other members of
the Board and senior management of the Company.

Meeting between Chairman and Independent
Non-executive Directors

The Code provision C.2.7 of the Corporate Governance Code
states that the chairman of the board of directors of a listed
issuer should hold meetings with the independent
non-executive directors at least annually without the presence
of other directors. During the year, the Chairman had held a
meeting with the Independent Non-executive Directors
without the presence of other directors.

BOARD COMMITTEES

4.3.1 Audit Committee
The Audit Committee of the Company was established
with its written terms of reference formulated in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.
The Audit Committee currently consists of three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Dr. Ng
Chi Yeung, Simon, Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy and
Ms. Law So Fun. Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy is the
Chairman of the Audit Committee.

With effect from 28 December 2023, Ms. Florence Ng
ceased to be a member of the Audit Committee and
Ms. Law So Fun was appointed as a member of the
Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has adopted terms of reference
which are in line with the CG Code. The Audit
Committee met regularly during the year to review the
completeness, accuracy and fairness of the Company’s
financial statements, the Company’s financial reporting
system and internal control procedures, the scope and
nature of the external audit and matters concerning the
engagement of external auditor.
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The Audit Committee is also responsible for reviewing
the Company’s interim and annual financial statements
and making recommendations as to the approval of the
Company’s interim and annual financial statements by
the Board.

During the year, the Audit Committee held four (4)
meetings and the attendance of the members at the
meetings for the year ended 31 December 2023 is set

ERZBEEeNTAEEHNARA ZPH
NREEMBHRR ITHEFTSHER
ARZFRRFERBHRERE L IER
BRe

FR BERZEEHETTHAORE
#OBKERHEE-_T-_=F+=A
=St RALEFEZERLFEERLET

out as below: UM
Number of
Name of Members meetings attended
RERE HEBERE
Independent Non-executive Directors BUEHITES
Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy (Chairman) BIBELE(EE) 4
Dr. Ng Chi Yeung, Simon REBEL 4
Ms. Florence Ng (resigned on 28 December 2023) REBELT(ERZZTZ=F
TZAZ+\BEE) 4
Ms. Law So Fun (appointed on 28 December 2023) BERZL(RZTE_=F
TZAZH+N\BEZE) 0
4.3.2 Remuneration Committee 4325 MZEES

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was
established primarily to review and make recommendations
to the Board on matters relating to the remuneration of
the Directors and the senior management of the
Company. The Remuneration Committee currently
consists of three Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely, Dr. Ng Chi Yeung, Simon, Mr. Tam Yuk Sang,
Sammy and Ms. Law So Fun. Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy
is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

With effect from 28 December 2023, Ms. Florence Ng
ceased to be a member of the Remuneration Committee
and Ms. Law So Fun was appointed as a member of the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted terms of
reference which are in line with the CG Code to review
the remuneration policy and remuneration packages of
the Directors.
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During the year, the Remuneration Committee held two
(2) meetings and has reviewed the level of Independent
non-executive directors’ fees by making comparison to
peers.

The attendance of the members at the meetings for the
year ended 31 December 2023 is set out as below:

FR FHEEELRTTMQQARE
% WEBEREELRMERBL
FRITEFTHREKF -

EKRERBE-_E-_=+=H
—t+—HIEFEZzeROEBLHT
mnN

Number of

Name of Members meetings attended
REKR HESHERE
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy (Chairman) EBRESLE(EE)
Dr. Ng Chi Yeung, Simon REHEL
Ms. Florence Ng (resigned on 28 December 2023) REBEFLZT(BRZ=ZZT==

TZAZ+TAREE) 2
Ms. Law So Fun (appointed on 28 December 2023) BEZATLT(RZ-ZZE-_=F

tT-ZAZ+N\BEZE) 0

4.3.3 Nomination Committee A33IRBREE®
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The Nomination Committee currently consists of one
Executive Director, namely, Mr. Lee Kwok Leung and
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Dr.
Ng Chi Yeung, Simon, Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy and
Ms. Law So Fun. Dr. Ng Chi Yeung, Simon is the
Chairman of the Committee.

With effect from 28 December 2023, Ms. Florence Ng
ceased to be a member of the Nomination Committee
and Ms. Law So Fun was appointed as a member of the
Nomination Committee.

During the year, the Nomination Committee has
reviewed the composition, structure, size of the board
and the board diversity.
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During the year, the Nomination Committee held three
(3) meetings and the attendance of the members at the
meetings for the year ended 31 December 2023 is set
out as below:

FR REZBEEHETT=ZQRE
#OBEKERBE-_T_Z=F+=A
St RALEFEZERLFERLET
m

Number of

Name of Members meetings attended
REKR HEEERE
Executive Director HITES
Mr. Lee Kwok Leung ZEREAE 3
Independent Non-executive Directors BUEHITES
Dr. Ng Chi Yeung, Simon (Chairman) REBET (£E) 3
Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy EBAESLAE 3
Ms. Florence Ng (resigned on 28 December 2023) REBELT(ERZZTZ=F

TZAZ+\BEE) 3
Ms. Law So Fun (appointed on 28 December 2023) BERZL(RZTE_=F

TZAZH+N\BEZE) 0

4.4 COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Leung Yiu Wah (“Mr. Leung”) retired as chief financial
officer and one of the joint company secretaries with effect
from 1 November 2023 after about 10 years of continuous
service in order to devote more time to pursue other
opportunities and interests.

Following the retirement of Mr. Leung, the other joint
company secretary, Ms. Cheng Suk Fun (“Ms. Cheng”), as a
person who possesses the qualifications and experience as a
company secretary as required under Rule 3.28 of the Listing
Rules, remains in office and acting as the sole company
secretary of the Company with effect from 1 November 2023
(the "Company Secretary”). Ms. Cheng has duly complied
with the relevant professional training requirement under
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31
December 2023.
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The Company Secretary plays an important role in supporting
the board by ensuring good information flow within the
board and that board policy and procedures are followed.
She is responsible for advising the board through the
chairman and/or the chief executive on governance matters
and also facilitate induction and professional development of
directors.

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and
have day-to-day knowledge of our affairs.

She reports to the board chairman and/or the chief executive.
All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary to ensure that board procedures, and all
applicable law, rules and regulations, are followed.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The board of directors (the “Board”) of China Castson 81
Finance Company Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) has adopted the dividend policy
which aims to provide stable returns to its shareholders and
to maintain a healthy financial position which allows the
Company to take advantage of any investment opportunities
that may arise from time to time.

Subject to the applicable laws in Bermuda and the Company’s
bye-laws, the Board may propose final dividends on an
annual basis and/or may declare interim dividends or special
dividends from time to time. The Board will consider, inter
alia, the Company’s and the Group’s operating results,
accumulated and future earnings, dividends received from
the Group companies, gearing, liquidity position, capital
commitment requirement and investment opportunities of
the Group, the volatility expected in its future earnings,
financial flexibility, tax considerations, flotation costs and
contractual and legal restrictions. General economic
conditions and relevant external factors will also be taken
into account.
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4.6

4.7

The dividend payout ratio may vary from year to year. There
is no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular
amount for any given period.

Subject to the applicable laws in Bermuda and the Company’s
bye-laws, dividends may be paid in cash or to be satisfied
wholly or partly in the form of allotment of shares by the
Company. The Board may also consider the issuance of bonus
shares or distribution of specific assets of any kind, including
debentures or warrants to subscribe securities of the
Company or any other company, on a basis permitted by the
applicable laws and regulations and in such manner as the
Board thinks expedient.

The Board will regularly review the dividend policy and will
amend and/or modify the dividend policy if necessary.

DIRECTORS' LIABILITIES INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ liabilities in respect of potential legal actions
against the Directors arising out of corporate activities of the
Group pursuant to code provision A.1.8 of the new CG Code.
Such directors’ liability insurance will be reviewed and
renewed annually. Throughout the year ended 31 December
2023, no claim has been made against the Directors.

INDUCTION AND DEVELOPMENT

Newly appointed directors of the Company will receive a
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on
appointment. Every new Board member will receive our latest
version of Policies and Procedures manual which includes the
terms of reference of the Board and various board
committees, our investment policies and the guidelines on
conducts which include policies governing conflicts of
interest, anti-corruption guidelines of Directors and staff.

All directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. Ongoing training can help Directors keep abreast of
current trends, regulatory requirements and issues facing the
Group while remains informed and relevant. Our company
secretaries have arranged suitable training for directors.
Further details of training to our Directors and staff are set
out in the Section 4.3 of the ESG Report.
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CONFLICT MANAGEMENT

If a substantial shareholder or a director of the Company has
a potential conflict of interest in a material matter to be
considered by the Board, that matter should be dealt with by
a physical board meeting (telephonic or videoconferencing
may be counted as physical attendance) instead of a written
resolution. Independent non-executive directors who have no
material interest therein should be present at that board
meeting.

AUDIT, INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of
annual financial statements. We publishes the annual and
interim results within three months and two months
respectively after the relevant period ends. In preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023,
the Board adopted appropriate accounting policies
consistently, made prudent and reasonable judgements and
estimates, and ensured that the financial statements were
prepared on a going concern basis and show a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2023 and of the Group’s consolidated financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate system
of internal control for the Company and has regularly
reviewed the internal control policy so as to safeguard the
Group's assets. During the year, the Company identified and
evaluated its key risks and likely uncertainties. The Audit
Committee has reviewed the findings and risk profile of the
Company.

Internal audit function

Given its lean operations, the Company’s internal audit
function has been primarily provided by professional firms.
During the year, BT Corporate Governance Limited reviewed
the internal control procedures relating to the of certain risk
areas of the Group.
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Framework of risk management

Risk management is defined as the overall process of

identifying and understanding its own risks and taking

informed actions. This is to help it achieve its strategic
objectives, reduce the likelihood of failure and decrease the
uncertainty of overall business performance. Such risks would

include material risks relating to ESG factors.

(a)

Responsibility of the Board and the management

The Company adopts a simple and practical approach
towards the risk management process. The Company
embeds the risk management features within our
investment management as well as operational areas
(including finance, human resources, and information
technology) and these operating units adopt the risk
management systems on a day-to-day basis.

These systems are designed to mitigate the risk of failure
to achieve relevant objectives, and provide reasonable
assurance against material misstatement or loss.
Moreover, the management annually reviews and
updates its risk profile, aiming to provide assurance to
the Board on the effectiveness of the risk management
systems, and the Board will oversee the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems on an ongoing
basic.

The Company has established policies for improper conduct
reporting (i.e. whistleblowing) and anti-corruption,
respectively. Further details are set out in Section 5.3 of the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report on page 86.
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Risk management working group and role of the Audit
Committee

A risk management working group is mainly to advise
the Board on the Group’s risk profile and risk
assessment; to consider current and emerging risks and
risk exposures relating to the Group’s business and
strategies to ensure that appropriate arrangements are
in place to control and mitigate the risks effectively; and
to review the Group’s risk management policy on a
regular basis.

The Audit Committee supports the Board in monitoring
the risk exposure, the design and operating
effectiveness of the underlying risk management and
internal controls systems. The Audit Committee, acting
on behalf of the Board, oversees the following process:

- regular reviews of the principal business risks, and
related control measures, the strengths and
weaknesses of the overall internal controls system
and action plans for improvement;

- regular reviews of internal audit reports, including
action plans to address the identified control
weaknesses, status update and its
implementations; and

- regular reports by the external auditors of any
control issues identified in the course of their
work and discussion with the external auditors of
the scope of their respective review and findings.

The Audit Committee will then report to the Board after
due review of the effectiveness of the Group’s system
of internal controls. The Board considers the works and
findings of the Audit Committee in forming its own
view on the effectiveness of the system.

(b)
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5.2.1 Risk profile

Our approach for managing risk is underpinned by our
understanding of our current risk exposures, and how
our risks are changing over time. The risk assessment
includes identifying relevant objectives, identifying
events that could affect the achievement of objectives,
determining risk tolerance, assessing the likelihood/
significance of risks and evaluating the portfolio of
risks. Internal controls and risk management are
integrated into our investment operations.

The risk management working group performed the
continuous risk assessment, and maintained and
updated its risk register. It also reviewed emergent risks.
The following are considered to be relatively high risks
to us: a. Market risk, b. Geopolitical risk, c. Inflationary
risk, d. Equity price risk, e. Volatility risk, f. Omicron
pandemic risk, g. Liquidity risk, h. Strategic risk, i.
Interest rate risk and j. Currency risk.
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5.2.2 Principal Risks identified 522EBAIZEER
The following highlights the major risks to the Group TXIREHER T _=FFT2F
based on the annual risk assessment conducted in EREFEmMHNzAEEEEZRR -
2023.
Risks Mitigation Plan(s)
Bk RETE

1.  Market Risk T35 @M

Market risk is the risk that deteriorates profitability Regular update of capital market expectations
or affects ability to meet business objectives and monitoring the exposure to implement
arising from the movement in market prices, such appropriate measures on a timely and effective
as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and manner.

equity prices. THEREATHEHNERAHERR - A

Mg ERERETSER (MEX - FRERAE REBE K B B RURBUE E B 1 ©
RE)EBMERBNENZIBAFEEKESH
RN 2B -

2. Political/Geopolitical Risk Bti& i 4 B4 E b
Political risk is an important factor for allocation of Monitoring of development of the key political
investment portfolio, which can minimize the events.
negative effects arising on the occurrence of BERERNBUAEHNERE -
significant or unexpected political events.
BoRRBRESEREEGN —HEZREX - Hit
EEARRBIIBOAEMHEEREENEETER

FRE -

Geopolitical risk is the risk associated with the Incorporate geopolitical risk into the investment
tensions between national governments that affect process, together with Investment Manager.

the normal course of international relations. Lack HIGESAE B BHEBERB M ARE S
of such awareness may result in wrong investment 2o

decision- making.
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Risks
&L Bx

Mitigation Plan(s)
RERETE

There are three kinds of geopolitical risk: event
risk, exogenous risk and thematic risk.
FoREmaBUe AR  FHER - SNMERRREE
[2. Bz o

a)  Event risk evolves set dates known in advance.
EHEKEELMERTAEES -

b)  Exogenous risk is a sudden or unanticipated
risk.
HNE R E — R RAM R B IR BIMER -

¢)  Thematic risk is a known risk that evolves
and expands over a period of time.
TEEARE-BCARR T -BREHRE
3 K o

Inflationary Risk & iR /& i

Inflationary risk is the risk that inflation will
undermine an investment’'s returns through a
decline in purchasing power.
AREARISEREFVIRBBEE N TRMESK
B [E ) @B -

Bond payments are most at inflationary risk
because their payouts are generally based on fixed
interest rates, meaning an increase in inflation
diminishes their purchasing power.
BEFNXNRIBRERTROTEEZK AR
XNFEBERETNEEL  EEREZEBR L
FEHIBEE S -

The US and European countries encountered high
inflation and US has increased its interest rate by
about 1% to 5.5% during the period from January
to November 2023.

FEEBNBERESER AR _Z_=F
—RE+—-ABBEEANEARN1%REEE5.5% °

Assessment of geopolitical threats by
consideration of likelihood it will occur, speed of
its impact, and the size and nature of the impact.
BRAEZREZFANATRNE FENREUARY
EHRBREE KT HHBABUARE

a) Event risk: To assess the consequence of
political events which often result in
changes to investor expectation related to
a country’s cooperative stance.
=R FIEBAEHNER ZEF
HAEEERREEY —HERRNAELS
BT HR 2 & L o

b)  Exogenous risk: To assess time impact of
sudden uprisings, invasions, or the
aftermath of natural disasters.

SVERE - PR EEN C AREIBAK
ERENBHFE-

)  Thematic risk: To assess climate change,
cyber threats and ongoing threat of
terrorism.

HEEAR  FTERES( - BB R
BORMEREE

Monitoring the interest rate exposures to
implement appropriate measures.

SR R A B EE A o
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Risks Mitigation Plan(s)
B RARGTE

4.  Equity Price Risk IR A< {2 1% b

Price risk arises from fluctuation in market prices of Constantly reviewing the investment strategies
our investment in listed equity securities. The with the Investment Manager and consider to
management manages the exposure by maintaining devise appropriate equity investment strategy.

a portfolio of listed equity securities with different HEECRTHEREERR  TEEHES
risk exposure. R RGBSR o

EBREBRNARRMEELETRAESRZMS
ERES EEEEBRATRARRIEEZ L™
BABZEEKRERZRER -

5. Concentration Risk & 7 & &
Concentration of equity price may arise if the Regularly monitoring the position sizing limits
Group has a significant investment in a single and reviewing the concentration analysis.
equity investment. Details of the major investment EHERBUEGIRERESEREEIN -
are disclosed in note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.
BRABRERARNAEEEANKRENE —RA
RE - FTEREZHBRES M BHRERM T2

E‘go

6. Volatility Risk 3% i &

It arises from the change of value of an investment Monitoring the volatility of the underlying
or portfolio as a result of the volatility of the investments and considering using appropriate
underlying assets. financial instruments with Investment Manager.
RBEBRBRRREAEANZEERIAER 2R HEEKBEERERREZ KRBT EZERERS
BRREEAEEEZD - HEMIA-

7. Omicron Pandemic Risk B2 7 &% & 15 ELI&
New subvariants of Omicron, EG 5 was discovered Monitor the development of the pandemic.
in Feb 2023 and which has been classified by the BERIEER R -
World Health Organization (WHO) as a “variant of
interest,” which means countries should monitor it
more closely than other strains because of
mutations that could make it more contagious or
severe.
R-CB_=F_ARERNET RN AR
MEG sE Rttt REHAAB(THEDIAFTERER
MEBRRK SHEEHEZBREAMBSKBL EHE
NAEERNERRE  SRHEERDEN -
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Risks
&L Bx

Mitigation Plan(s)
RERETE

10.

11.

Liquidity Risk i &1 & € &

It is the potential risks that our Group will be
unable to meet its obligations when they fall due
because of an inability to obtain adequate funding
or liquidate assets.
RBECEBREAESERAREESEHE SRS
EESEMBEBTINEEZ BERR

Strategic Risk 5% B JE B

Strategic risk may arise from the pursuit of an
unsuccessful business plan, failed business decision
or from a failure to respond well to changes in the
business environment.
RERBIRNAREXNIBEEXBTE  BAERK
KRAREHZEZOREBRFEL -

Health and Safety Risks {2 B8 &2 2 @ i§
Occupational health and safety risks mainly arise
from hazards such as the pandemic of infectious
diseases. It can lead to harm, injury, death or
illness of an employee in a workplace.
BERERELPERFIEREEERS  flBAX
MITERRE - ZE5REFFASIBEERIIESAE
5 XFE RTHER

Regulatory Risk 25 & &k

Regulatory risk is the risk that a change in regulations
or legislation will adversely affect a security,
company, or industry.
ETRBRERBERIENEZEHES - RAIKTT
FEETNZEZRR

Close monitoring of the regulatory risk in relation
to each of the investee company, and reporting to
be made as appropriate.

EYEANABREKRE QRN EE RS

B s o

&>

(et

v
2 A

s

Holding sufficient liquid assets to ensure that
sufficient cash flows are available to meet all
financial commitments and to capitalize
opportunities for business expansions.

FR/EARRDEE HEREARHREDR
SRNABIMBEAE  URIPERSERERS -

Reviewing the strategic asset allocation and
regular update of capital market expectations
together with the Investment Manager.

R EEEERERREEREYTHEHREN
TI5TaE -

Monitoring the virus situation and implementing
additional precautionary measures. Staying alert
to novel infectious diseases and encouraging
staff to take vaccination.

ERREBN BREINENEE - Wi E
RRRFEG UWEHBEIEBRES -

Incorporate regulatory risk in the investment
process.

EREBETHEERRAAZELZS -
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Risks
B

Mitigation Plan(s)
RARGTE

12.

13.

14.

CHINA CASTSON 81 FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED |

Interest Rate Risk % &%

Our Group analyses its interest rate exposure on a
dynamic basis and considers managing this risk in
a cost-effective manner when appropriate,
through a variety of means. Interest rate risk arises
from the unexpected changes in the interest rate.
RERRPREEESHTENEER - 1 EBERE
EREREBRFR UAKARGZ 2 FAERZ
[ fg o | EERKE AT R K& -

Interest rate risk is the probability of a decline in
the value of an asset resulting from unexpected
fluctuations in interest rates. Interest rate risk is
mostly associated with fixed-income assets (e.g.
bonds) rather than with equity investment.
MEEBREEARFENBEIINRBERNEEEBE
THROBX - MERARAZEEBETERAEE (0
BEF)EH MTIEERERELGH -

Investment Risk % & ELi&

Investment risk can be defined as the likelihood of
occurrence of losses on any particular unlisted
investment.
KRERBRAREREMMERNELTREZHLEER
ZAIBelE -

Climate Change Risk 5 1% £ 1t JE [%

Details are set out in the section of TCFD Report
on pages 99 to 107 of this report.
HIBERAREFOE107E B R I 16 78 B 15 4% &
TYENEREE D ©
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Monitoring the interest rate exposures to
implement appropriate measures.

ERMERER  URIGEEEE -

Update the market development of the interest
rate trend in the capital markets.

BEHMEATSNNETBENOMSER -

Monitoring and assessing the development of
investee companies.
ERNTEREHRAABZER -



Risks
B

Mitigation Plan(s)
RERETE

15.

16.

17.

Currency Risk & ¥ & k&

Currency risk or exchange rate risk refers to the
exposure, in regard to unpredictable gains or loss
due to changes in the value of one currency in
relation to another currency.
E¥EARNEXRRZEAN -—BEBHEEYRNS
—BEENBES(CMEENTAIRANERS
M o) [ B o

Cyber Security Risk A& T2 @K

Cyber security remains a key risk trend to most
operating enterprises.
BRL2HARFPKELERARTIEZRARBY -

Credit Risk 15 & &

Credit risk arises when the counterparty would fail
to discharges its obligations under the terms and
cause a financial loss to the Group.
BEERBRIYREFARERERBITEER 8
BASEREMBELFLHRE AR -

Consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure if arises.

i HHER BASMNE LR - B BEITEH T

Ongoing cyber security control enhancement to
align with industry practices and standards.
FERANBLREEEE  UFETEED
AR AE

Monitoring the credit exposures on a continuous
basis.

FEEREERR -

TEER 81 ERMARRKE | ZBZ=HFFH 49




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

e

AN M S
E/n#&%

50

5.3
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is responsible for making recommendations
to the Board as to the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the external auditors, which is subject to the approval by the
Board and at general meetings of the Company by the shareholders.
For the year ended 31 December 2023, the fee paid/payable in
respect of audit services and non-audit services to the Company’s
auditor, RSM Hong Kong, was approximately HK$290,000 and
HK$41,000 respectively.

REMUNERATION

Details of Directors’ remunerations during the Reporting
Period are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHAREHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

The implementation of shareholders communication policy
(including two-way communication channels and review of

their effectiveness) is a new mandatory requirement and has
been complied with. The Board and management maintain a
continuing dialogue with the Group’s shareholders and
investors through various channels. First, the Company’s
publications include financial reports (interim and annual
reports), results announcements, corporate announcement,
circulars and other regulatory disclosures. These aim to
enable the Group's shareholders to have timely and updated
information of the Group. The other channels are through
the Company’s websites (http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/810
and/or http://www.hk0810.com.hk); and annual general
meetings and other general meetings.

The Company has approved its shareholders communication
policy during the year, and believes it is appropriate and
effective. The policy is also available on the Company’s websites.

Further details about the Group’s engagement activities with
shareholders and other stakeholders in 2023 are set out in
the Section 2.4 of the Environment, Social and Governance
Report on pages 65 to 68.
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7.2

7.3

SHAREHOLDERS MEETINGS

At each general meeting, the chairman of that meeting will
propose a separate resolution for each substantially separate
issue with the advice of the Company’s lawyers as necessary
and avoid “bundling” resolutions unless they are
interdependent and linked forming one significant proposal.

The Chairman, other members of the Board and the external
auditor attend the annual general meeting to meet the
shareholders. The chairmen of the audit, remuneration, and
nomination committee (as appropriate) also attend such
meeting and the Directors will answer questions raised by the
shareholders on the issues set out in the meeting’s agenda.

PROCEDURES FOR DIRECTING THE SHAREHOLDERS'
ENQUIRES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the Company
Secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Address: Unit 18, 9/F., Block B, Focal Industrial Centre, 21
Man Lok Street, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Email: info@hk0810.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

7.2

7.3

TN
REBRXBRRAREGL @ZATRBRLER
RRARFRMER REBRERBIN
EEMEBEHRESE W2 WAIRE
MR EME KT BBBIL BN IR
BEEREE -

TR BEFSHMRE RINEZBENLE
ERBEFAGERREW BEEXRLZEE -
FMEZEeRREZEE (MER) XFT
HEZEHS  EFHUBRAEHERREN
FIEIRIEH AR E L @

BREESEFLEAZERF
BRABEEERARWEANEELASGH
EARMBEXESE - ARNE 2B
FHBEWT

Hohk - B UBRAL M R 24472158
Em LEHPLOBEIEISE
FH : info@hk0810.com
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7.4
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PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT
SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING

Shareholders can submit a written requisition to move a
resolution at the shareholders’ meeting. The number of
shareholders shall represent not less than one-twentieth of
the total voting rights of all shareholders having at the date
of the requisition a right to vote at the shareholders’
meeting, or who are no less than one hundred shareholders.

The written requisition must state the resolution,
accompanied by a statement of not more than one thousand
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution of the business to be dealt with at the
shareholders’ meeting. It must also be signed by all the
shareholders concerned and be deposited at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit 18, 9/F.,
Block B, Focal Industrial Centre, 21 Man Lok Street,
Hunghom, Kowloon, for the attention of the Company
Secretary not less than six weeks before the shareholders’
meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of a
resolution and not less than one week before the
shareholders’ meeting in case of any other requisition.

The shareholders concerned must deposit a sum of money
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in
serving the notice for the resolution and circulating the
statement submitted by the shareholders concerned under
applicable laws and rules.
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SECTION 1 INTRODUCTION

1.1

Messages from the Chairman
On behalf of the Company, | am pleased to present the

Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG") report of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2023. This report
demonstrates our ongoing efforts and commitment
enhancing our sustainability performance in areas such as
employee care and community participation. We are
committed to fulfilling societal obligations by fostering a
collaborative and inclusive workplace culture and creating a
positive impact on the community where we operate.

Year 2023 is an extremely difficult year for the global
financial markets with aftermath of the COVID-19 pandemic.
Because of the climate change, we saw more droughts,
hurricanes. powerful floods, terrifying wildfires, and unusually
early heat waves globally. The devastating impact of natural
disasters around the world in 2023 such as the Earthquake in
Morocco, Cyclone Freddy in Southeast Africa, Floods in Libya,
Earthquake in Turkey and Syria, Floods in Northeastern
United States,
environmental cost of the extreme weather highlighted the
vulnerability of the world's most populous nation to climate
change impacts and the need for urgent action to reduce

etc. The high socio-economic and

greenhouse gas emissions. Increased heatwaves, droughts
and floods are affecting billions of people worldwide,
contributing further to poverty, hunger and instability. The
aftermath of COVID-19 pandemic and the war in Ukraine
have further delayed the urgently needed transition to
greener economies.

FIHES
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The Company will identify and consider potential investment
opportunities in new economy sector and sustainable
agriculture, green food, and biotech driven through new
technological breakthrough. As part of ESG investing, the
sectors are generally considered to be benefitted from the
ESG opportunities or can reduce the ESG risks. ESG investing
is an approach to managing assets where ESG factors are
explicitly incorporated in investment decisions with long-term
return of the investment portfolio in mind. In particular, to
address the climate -related risks. it is generally preferable to
identify those sectors which are more likely to be adversely
affected by the transition to a low-carbon economy and will
tilt away from companies that are carbon-intensive or own
fossil fuel reserves, and tilts towards companies that generate
green revenues as far as possible. This can further integrate
the ESG factors into our investing operations. With this new
focus, the Company will not restrict its private equity
investments mainly in the internet finance sector and could
take a diversified approach in order to enhance the long term
returns at a level of risk suitable to the Company and its
shareholders. In order to highlight the Group’s new strategy
and non-focus on the internet finance sector, the Board
believes that the Change of Company Name would provide
the Company with a fresh corporate identity and image
which will benefit its future business development.

We also introduced a new shareholders communication policy
in this year. This aims to set out the Company’s strategies for
maintaining continuous and open communication with its
shareholders to establish a two-way relationship and
communication. Engagement is regarded as one of the key
initiatives for improving governance. As we advance, we
continue our commitment to understanding the needs of our
stakeholders and the community, and hope to build a better
community where we operate.
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1.2

1.3

Our Corporate Values
The Company’s mission is to become a well-known

investment company in Hong Kong. Our business philosophy
is “to benefit Employees, Shareholders and Community.”

Sustainable development is the key to our success, and the
positive impact on the community as well as the environment
will bring long- term value to all key stakeholders. As an
investment company, our primary objective is to achieve
capital appreciation as well as generating stable income from
interests and dividends. The Company also concerns about
the ESG factors and their impacts on our investment
portfolio. ESG investing recognises the generation of
long-term sustainable returns should be dependent on stable,
well-functioning and well-governed social, environmental and
economic systems. It can enhance long term value by using
ESG factors to mitigate risks and identify growth
opportunities.

In the course of our investment operations, we also
implement various tasks of sustainable development, and
employees care to ensure adherence to our business
philosophy.

Basis for Preparation of the Report
This report was prepared in accordance with the ESG

Reporting Guide set out in Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules
using the internal data of the Group.

All important areas were identified through stakeholder
engagement and materiality assessment. We approached
stakeholders via various channels to obtain opinions on ESG
issues in our business, and set priorities on the important
areas to be reported by reference to their impacts on the
environment, economy and society and on stakeholders. We
aim to provide objective, accurate and fair information in this
report.

1.2

1.3
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1.4 Reporting Period and Boundary
The reporting period is from 1 January 2023 to 31 December
2023. Unless otherwise specified, the report covers the
investment operations of our office in Hong Kong and the
office operation is considered to be small in terms of
headcounts and office space.

A detailed content index of the ESG Reporting Guide issued
by the Stock Exchange is included in the end of this report.
Regarding the information of our corporate governance,
please refer to the corporate governance report.

1.5 Reporting Principles
We adopt the four reporting principles outlined in the ESG
Reporting Guide, aiming to respond to ESG matters that are
relevant to the stakeholders and our operations.

a )

Materiality EE

Through regular communication regularly
with stakeholders, we strike to better
understand their concerns about sustainability
issues that affect them. Based on the results
of the communication, we re-examine and
confirm the material issues of this report

BEEMENSHBESR  RMABHEL
WTREEHPEEAREERENET
RBBENGR  RAEHEFRALER

ARIFENEANHE -

\_

é i
Balance

In order to disclose our ESG performance in

an impartial manner, we maintain a balance
of reporting and disclosure of the progress
and ongoing challenges in the key areas.

RAERBERFMNERR HERERRR
BPERS R ERRESNER MISE
BBz EORES T A o

\_ .
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(
Quantitative E1t )
We have developed data collection procedures
to record and monitor ESG metrics with the
coordination of the ESG working group.
Where applicable, this report discloses the
guantitative data for the year to allow
stakeholders to understand our performance.

EEE e REATE NN BET - B

BT BRI EIRF - AR R ERIRIR
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IR -

J

Consistency — &%
In accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide

of the Stock Exchange, the quantitative
information in this Report has been prepared
in a consistent manner to allow readers to
compare with the previous reports of
the Company.
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1.6 Feedback

This report is published in both Chinese and English. If there
is any discrepancy, the English version shall prevail. Your
feedback will help us to improve the content disclosed in the
report and you are welcome to provide us with your valuable
comments.

SECTION 2 SUSTAINABLE STRATEGY

2.1

Sustainable Development Goals
The Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) are a collection of

17 interlinked goals designed to be a “blueprint to achieve a
better and more sustainable future for all”, and are intended
to be achieved by the year 2030. According to the
Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) of 2023 issued by the
United Nations, progress on more than 50% of targets of the
SDGs is weak and insufficient; on 30%, it has stalled or gone
into reverse. These include key targets on poverty, hunger
and climate. The COVID-19 pandemic and the triple crises of
climate change, biodiversity loss and pollution are having a
devastating and lasting impact. This has been amplified by
Russia’s invasion of Ukraine, which has driven increases in the
prices of food and energy and in the cost of access to
finance, creating a global cost-of-living crisis affecting billions
of people. The financial services industry is considered as a
vital enabler for the real economy and could support
improved economic well-beings through prosperity under the
SDGs 7 to 11.
investee companies under SDGs 13 to 16. Investing in

It also positively influences ESG practices of

renewable energy (SDGs 7,13) and other infrastructure
projects (SDGs 6,9) can also meet demands of impact
investors.
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EELINGE B TREREMERER LK
IARBERAR EF - R ERETERANE
%*%%W%+1A CRREERRRZ

BERCENEZHYE  WAFAERT
ﬁ%%EHhJIHm B TRNE
BB - ZITENEREH R A RIRA
BERREBEI3EICETHNEE ek
ERARRITEREERTE - REATHAE
R (B REE7 - 13) REMERR
EEE (AHEHERIZ6 . 9) Nl mEF
BHEREENT R -
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We have identified the priorities for the SDGs related to the RMEmMrEAEEEKBERNTHESR
Group’s operations and integrated them to better guide REZELEE UHEHEES UETH
ESG-related activities. BEIRE g REGHEBEEH -

The Group’s actions that are aligned with SDGs
SDGs AIHER R AR ARENTHETREZRREE—H

e U Goal 3- good health We continue implemented a series of guidelines and
and well-being measures to ensure the safety of employees, and spared no
B1%3 - RiFfe R EAE At effort to prevent and control the pandemic.
HMEBEZE -ZIREEILX2MHH REK 2O
B EIE -
E;nimv Goal 5 - gender equality This is achieved by recognizing the importance of creating
BEs5-HRITE and maintaining a culture of inclusion in our workplace and

implementing female and family-friendly incentives.
RERE—BR BARBINETIESHEERER &
BERNENEEN - WEEHE X RRER L EBENEE o

”“‘”.IL“EEUS?H Goal 8 - decent work We strive to maintain a suitable workplace for all employees,
and economic promote economic growth and create more job
growth opportunities. Please refer to the Section 4.2 “Health and

BiR 8- BB TIEM Safety” for further details.
B BB I RMAERERE —ESBNIIESHA  REKLHE
BR VEAEPTZHERE  -FEF2H2[REEL 2
—ffi
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2.2 Management Approach and Structure
An efficient management structure and regular communication

with stakeholders are important to lead our sustainable
development. An ESG management structure has been
developed with a dedicated ESG Working Group in place to
ensure the effective implementation of ESG policies and
measures. We gather the feedbacks and expectations of
internal and external stakeholders through regular
engagement. This helps us to evaluate our operations, mitigate
the ESG-related risks and seize business opportunities.

2.2.1 Board statement on oversight and
management of ESG Issues
Below is the statement from the Company’s Board of
Directors (the "Board”) explaining the oversight of ESG
issues and how the Group approaches the management
of ESG issues.

Governance Structure and Board'’s Oversight

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG
strategy and reporting. It provides oversight of ESG
issues with an emphasis on the Group’s long-term
development and positioning, through the Sustainability
Governance Structure outlined below.

2.2.2 Sustainability Governance Structure
The Board is responsible for steering our ESG’s overall
direction. The Executive Committee is charged with the
responsibility to guide the ESG Working Group in
implementing ESG policies and measures, and oversees
the running of our ESG system.

2.2

EERERRE

=M E IR K BN AR E M E BB
BHSIFRMANAKEERENER - &
MEELTRR HERERERRE
WAL 7T EFINIRE - g RERIEND
M ARERIRE - @ RERBR LB
BB - HFIEBE RS 2K EANEM
SNEMEREENCDRRPE - EFEIR
HARFE R MRS BRERE  HERE
AR RE - WHERHE -

WIEHEEREERE - HERER
EENEEERH
TXHEINARRESE ([EEE])W
B ERHRETHRR ek
AEEMEE A RSB A ENIR
B HEgREREH-

BEARBREFELEE

EEeHAKSENERE HE8RER
RENERAEEZEET EFE8
BTXBARO A HEERERRE -
HRE HERERRBEETES
EPBEHBEARERERRENEL -

2202 A HBBRRERRE
EXeAESIEHMRR HEhE
JREVEERE T (A o $¢LTT§,\ 2BEKRE
RE H@kEAIENEERR
B-ounelk® /uﬁﬁlﬁ&hﬁﬁ I BB
RIE B NERRHMET -
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Responsible party 8875 Core responsibility &L EE

Shareholders and other Stakeholders

PR B B A s AR R &

Board of Directors o Provides strategic advice to the Executive Committee
=y MBTEZERRERBER

Executive Committee o Implements ESG-related procedures and internal control
WITEE® measures
MITIRIR - g REIR MBI S AR 6 45 b

o Oversees work of the ESG working Group
EERRE HelkBERIENENTIE

o Approves ESG Reports, and ensures the accuracy of the key
performance indicator data
ERRE HhELAWRE  UHRBREIEEHED
N

ESG Working Group o Facilitates the implementation of ESG policies across
R g RERIENE business units
HEBBEEEMPIBRERE e NERBR

o Collates ESG key performance indicator data
BIERE #HeRERBAREMIEREE

o Prepares ESG Reports
REIRE g REBWRE

o Reports to the Executive Committee on the implementation
status of ESG initiatives
MATEESREAFRE LB REBBRENAITER

The Sustainability Governance Structure is mainly RBEEEETAEBIEHBENMISENR
supported by the ESG Working Group, constituted by FAKBIRE - g RERLIENEZF -
senior representatives from a cross-section of IR

departments. The structure also includes:

e Executive Committee; s HITEZBEE:
. Risk Management Working Group reporting to the . EBREBETIENM EmMEEeRE
Board and Audit Committee. REEGER-
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2.2.3 ESG

Management Approach and Strategy

The Board approved the Sustainability Framework

including sustainability priorities, as well as the

long-term sustainability goals and targets for each of

the sustainability priorities, after taking into

consideration such factors as international benchmarks

and best practices.

The approved Sustainability Framework covers the

following four sustainability priorities:

Climate Resilience: Adapt to climate change and
decarbonize the business

Resource Management: Optimize the use and
management of natural resources (energy, water
and materials)

Well-being: Sustain a healthy, inclusive and safe
environment and promote social wellbeing
Sustainable Investment and ESG Investing:
Promote sustainability practices in investment

Our Environmental Policy

2231

2232

Policy Statement

We are committed to minimising the
environmental impacts of their business. Good
business practices can have a fundamental effect
on environmental protection. We seek to conduct
its activities in an environmentally responsible
manner and to develop a range of management
practices aimed at promoting sustainable
development.

Sustainable Development

We endeavor to achieve a high standard of
environmental care in developing its business and
to give due consideration to environmental risks
that would damage the natural and built
environment in conducting its business. We
believe that such conduct would add value to us
and our stakeholders, and contribute to the
enhancement of the environment and the
well-being of the society.

2231

R EMAIFERRER
RAFRERRELER

&Q&E%EE&%%

$@H/\%)€.@‘HT ERKEE
ERE% - TH:/ET_ﬁ—H%%E?éL@*[
2R WHEEFHNAHERRERSE
BERBHEBEAFENREAFEER
BERER-

R EI T~

RIREEEESD  EERIEE I
BITEBEIRER

EREE: FAERUMERARER
RAREBIR (IR ~ 7K ~ D)

B HmERR ARRERE
EHIRIE - WHEB T ZEAL
TMHERREREE  HEREHR
BRE RN EBEERHEDIHE
ERAOERE

I H 2R 1 I R
2231 KRR

B APIB 8 S B E S AT AR IR
SRR ERERE - RITFHNER
EEAARBA ERRIBRETS
REE - RPIBAREE EE
BRUBRENTE  WEOHE
—RIEEHIFEEENE
BFEHE ©

2R REERRE

EEBERBIET  HMBNE
fﬁ%"f“—’ﬁﬁ’ﬁ%iﬁﬁ* K AT

TEERKLEEKREHAR
fﬁ%&ﬁi%%mﬁkﬁ&%%iﬁiﬁ
R - ZAIEE EHEEKR
T R IR IR N 25 AE BE 2 A &
EBE UTEPRERELLEE
Ak o
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2233 Management Practices
We seek to implement sound environmental
programmes that use resources more efficiently
and effectively. These include the following:

o Promote energy efficiency
° Improve consumption of materials to reduce
waste generation and dispose of waste in an

2233 B EE

BRSRETRENRRTER
TEREE A NE R EME
Be-ZERRBEAT

o EBERRE
o HEMEERELRLEE
B AR A R RFA

environmentally acceptable manner NS AEEREY

e Promote recycling and the use of recycled or e HFEWEREABRER
environmentally friendly materials MR SRR Y K

° Give preference to suppliers and contractors . BrEEALHTRESZSE
who adopt environmentally friendly practices R ER MR

. Meet all relevant environmental, health and o [AFEBEHEBEMNERIE - #
safety laws and regulations BRRERERER

e Support environmental initiatives, partly e BBAKEEIHLEGE
through our community programmes REFBFRRITE

2234 Promoting Environmental Awareness 2234 HEBIRREH

We seek to promote public awareness of the
importance of environmental protection and of
the responsibility of management, employees and
other stakeholders to work in partnership for the
benefit of the environment. It is committed to
communicating environmental practices externally.

BFIBNRERRRBIRRNE
2 URTHEERE REERK
His M HAENEE - iFaEH
RARRHE S - REBH I
EERREE -

2.2.4 Investment Operations 224K EEE
The Group believes that its sustainable performance is AREEMRE ERAFERRNRA
linked to good environmental practices and pays HRITHIRREBRGFEBE - WER
attention to environmental factors in its decision-making KBREPIERRAE -
processes.
We strive to incorporate environmental risk assessments BME OB RERBRTFEEZHAR
into investment decisions. Investees are expected to BEREH c MHEREHREE
fulfil the appropriate compliance obligations applicable BITEEBMEANEGHRER -

to their business.
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All employees are encouraged to conduct their duties in
an environmentally responsible manner. The Group’s
environmental policy was approved by the Board of
Directors and forms an integral part of its corporate
social responsibility. Senior executives are tasked with
its implementation. The environmental policy will be
monitored and periodically reviewed in the light of new
developments.

ESG risks and opportunities to the Company are
identified by the ESG Working Group. ESG risks are
managed by the Risk Management Working Group and
ESG opportunities are addressed by the relevant
departments and functions.

2.2.5 Review of Progress and Relevance to Business
The Sustainability Framework, sustainability priorities,
long-term sustainability goals and targets, and KPIs are
set with reference to the Group’s principal business in
the Investment sector. The Board reviews progress on
the implementation of the sustainability goals and
targets with reference to the KPIs principally through
regular reporting of the ESG Working Group to the
Executive Committee.

2.3 Materiality Assessment
An internal materiality assessment was conducted by our ESG

Working Group together with the senior management. We
have taken into our account of the following factors:

a. overall mission and, corporate values, policies and
procedures manual, its risk management framework,
risk register and related studies/analyses.

b. Laws, regulations, international agreements, or
voluntary agreements of strategic significance to the
Company.

c.  Main topics and future challenges for the investment
companies, particularly considering relevant guidance
and resources.

PrEREDERIATERERRANTRA
BITRE - AEENREHRCDER
ExelE YEREECXUEER
ENEZHD - BERKENATER
RITBRABEE - REREEX &G
B WEHRBHERERETRA -

R e RERTIENEERRS
RRARMERRE g MERRR
Ld - RE  HgRERERHE
REETHENEEE MERE &
REAWBRIRMAMEAI R BERE -

WHEEEEREBBAES
AREERER AIREEREXS
BREAFEREIEREZUAR
BAREIIEEEY A2BAEENIEE
AN FEERHT EESTER
BIRIT - g RERIIENERBIT
ZEEMTHERREESSENFE
BEBEREZEHBRESIEEN
HMITHER -

23 EEMTMG
RMWBE HEREATHENEERS
MEBBRITT —RNDEEMTE - B
MERTHREETHEE:

a. BRI 0oXEE BRERFT
it - BEEMORREZER Rk
B RARREHTE, DT -

b. HARRAREERMEBZNELR
AR BERBEIEREEN T -

¢ HEARBEQFMEHMEEZELKR
KRB - Rl E EARRE S RER
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Regarding external materiality assessment, stakeholder
engagement is an important tool that a company can use to
identify, develop and achieve accountable and strategic
responses to ESG issues. In order to understand the
significant operational subjects that are sufficiently concerned
by the stakeholders, our ESG Working Group adopted a
systematic approach of identification, prioritization and
review and conduct surveys or interviews with internal and
external stakeholders to identify the sufficiently important
and relevant ESG issues which are the sustainable focuses
that the Group needs to pay close attention.

The following flowchart summarizes the materiality analysis

FARINIEZMENGE EP—HEEFR
AMNERBESE  HAEBPRARRERE
HegREREERR  FIELEEASER
ARBUENEE - STHEMNZHEEETD
BITMEAKLERE  RPINERE HEk
ERTIENAD R —ERSEMREA
BEREFREE L WHAINPF A
BMEETHESETA  ABERNER
LAEREENRE HehErEE  &F
BEATEEZTEEYBINARELER
ER

AT R BB E B M D47 Be -

process:

Updated ESG issues based on the results of the internal materiality assessment
and the Company’s previous ESG Report with reference to the HKEX's ESG
Reporting Guide, non-financial disclosure of the peers and focus areas of

IDENTIFICATION .
media coverage

A REABESHIEERRARABENES  HEREARE - LEEES
BRPT CRIR - g RERREES)  REFVHEEBEBARKREREN
BEEE - FHRE e kEREE
ASSESSMENT Collected the materiality scores of ESG issues rated by both internal and
2 external stakeholders mainly through a questionnaire survey
FERBEERAS  WERIINBHNEEAELRE e kE/MENEEN
B2)

Based on the responses to “importance to stakeholders” and “importance to
PRIORITISATION the Company” the materiality scores of stakeholders were compiled, each and
B every ESG issue ranked and the results presented in a materiality matrix
R [HNBZEEENEENL] M [BRFANEER] AEOE - BIENE
MEENEEWTD B @RS LS RELAMEETHR - LHERN
E2MEENTEAZR

After an analysis of the results, a further review was conducted by the ESG
CONFIRMATION Working Group

w2 BT e REA T MNEMERETON A BIE] — 58S

BZAPEBIHEEEEZRR 23 /[RIE
] [BREEFI]  TREF | RIHEER
B RE - HAMIRIRR - L& REIAHN
BE  UBNHERE HEREARAKRR -

We have identified four material topics: “Climate Change”,
“Development and Training”, “Anti-corruption” and
“Community Investment”. Going forward, we will enhance our
ESG management and strive to optimize our ESG performance.
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2.4 Stakeholders Engagement
Stakeholders are entities or individuals that can reasonably be

expected to be significantly affected by our activities; and/or
whose actions can reasonably be expected to affect our
ability of to successfully implement our strategies and achieve
our objectives.

Our external stakeholder groups mainly include: Investors/
shareholders/members, Suppliers/business partners,
Employees, Government and regulators, Non-government
organisations (“NGOs"”) and lobby groups, Local
communities, Competitors/peers and/or Experts and
specialists (e.g. professional/industry associations and
academia). If the ESG Working Group does not have the
resources to contact representatives from every stakeholder
group, we focus on key stakeholders only.

The following table outlines the expectations and demands of
major stakeholders and related communication channels:

2.4

Expectation and

Major communication
Stakeholder
FzHEE

channels
TEEBERE

demand on of ESG
HIRE  HERERD

HERFR

Az A8 B & 2 5
MEHMEREATABRBRATRANES
ERBREVE R RETHASEEY
BB R PIRY HATHRE RIEMK B BM
NN BEEREZIAL -

BN BA SR ERBIERRE )
EE/RR /S8  HER EBBH:
BE B MEE®E  FBFALR (T3F
B RS TR BmF
BT W% R/IERGIMEEER
MBREE) - HIRE  HERERTHEN
AR T S E IR A A B 8 A s AR B B R AR
MK RFARFIREEZNEAR@E -

TERBAEZF S AR E L RFERIA
KRB ARE

Communication

and responses

BERLE

Employees J Regular meetings o Remuneration and benefits e Encourage participation in
EE = EH R continuous training
*  Performance appraisal o Career Development and BB EREE
BWER Training opportunities . Competitive salary and
J Trainings BEXRE RS IKe benefits
sl *  Anti-corruption ABRFNNOF S REN
*  Employee caring REA
activities
BEREEEY
° Office publications/emails
WAZLIRY,BFBH
° Online learning
EREE
Shareholders . Members' general . Financial Performance C Improve profitability
and investors meetings S RE HERFgE
BRRBEE BEAE o Corporate Transparency ~ *  Regular publication of
o Annual and interim reports Risk Control NAV per share and

FERERTHES
Shareholders meetings
RRE:

Corporate official website
RAE A

RAERE B
° Development and
Training
BRRE
. Anti-corruption
K&
. Community Investment

HEREE

routine information
disclosure on the website
of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange
EHEREREEFEL
WEBB X AR
TEREE

Strive to improve risk
management and internal
control systems
ZNUERBER AR

FEER 81
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Expectation and
demand on of ESG
HIRE  HERERN

HERFR

Major communication Communication

NELC IS channels

MztREE FERBRE

and responses

BEROE

66

Service providers Regular meetings . Development and Training Promote timely
and suppliers fle R R communication

PR 24k 785 S AL FE T Emails . Anti-corruption (REEER
i e kB Fulfil contractual
Regular review and . Community Investment obligations
feedback HEREE Bi1a08%
EHBEERRE Build responsible supply
Corporate official website chain
RAE A BUMHEBEEE

Governments and

Websites of Government

Compliance of laws and

Adhere to the laws and

regulatory bodies and regulatory bodies regulations regulations
HBBEREERE BT R BB R HEERER EERER
. Anti-corruption Pay and tax and duties in
R&S full on time

Communities and

Charity donations

Pay tax and duties in
accordance with the law

(i b

Community Investment

U G

Participate in charity

Non-governments Zr=iom HERE activities
organisations (NGOs) Sponsorships . Giving back to society REZETH)
HERFEBFAS R Elfgit & Committed to charities
Visits to NGOs o Environmental protection LNy 6
=1 FE Bk T 4R 4% RIF Adhere to green operation
Volunteer activities and reduce the usage of
SRERD fuel
1R SPAR B 8 TR D IR
A
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Materiality Matrix BEEMER

During the year, the Group identified a number of RERN AEBEHANZERE K
environmental, social and operating-related issues, and SEHERE TFBEEBRAERTAK
assessed their importance to stakeholders and the Group, AEZERENAZEEE R AEERN
mainly through surveys and interviews. These assessments FEN  ZETHELAEEBRAESE
helped the Group to ensure that its development could be in REEMTENEEBENRERTR -
line with stakeholders’ expectations, and demands. The EEHEEHNANTEB M

matters of concern are set out in the following materiality

matrix:

Materiality Matrix

ERMIERE

?
[}
3
)
S
cF a ) )
R al N d
w HM -|m -;|m
8 i B3 B7 B8
o2 Development and Anti-Corruption Community Investment
S N Training R&ES HERE
g BRI
o
< [ 4 o

b ;| (3 )
ER '!l 'Q. '!l '!l A\ A\
W A1 A2 A3 A4 B1 B4
o~ Emissions  Use of Resources The Environment and Climate Change Employment  Labour Standard
E a 3¢ EiRER Nature Resources FIREL &M% STER
& % RIERXAEIR °
wh
ix: = L A\
g - B6 BS B2
o Product Responsibility Supply Chain Management Health and Safety
E $TER PrEEERE BEER2

wn e
Internal assessment (importance to the Group)
AR (HARENEEM)
Q : . o, E .
Environment (&1 A\ Employment 128 i = Operations & &
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility: N/A [BEB6: EmEF: TEA
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The subject areas in the above table used the taxonomy in the ESG
Reporting Guide issued by the HKEX for Environment (subject area
A) and Social (subject area B) areas. Detail of which can also be
found at the content index set out on pages 88 to 98 of this
report.

SECTION 3 OUR ENVIRONMENT

We are committed to balancing operations and environment
protection, and aim to contribute to a green and environmental-
friendly society through energy conservation and emissions
reduction.

In order to fulfil the corporate citizen responsibilities, the Group
strives to promote sustainability and continuously employ new
technologies and new measures to minimize the environmental risk
and impact of its business operations, thus achieving sustainable
development. The Group strictly complies with all applicable
environmental laws and regulations. During the year, there were
no cases of violation of relevant regulations or code of conduct
within the Group.

3.1 Environmental Responsibility
3.1.1 Management policy

The Group's office operations do not directly generate
significant air emissions, hazardous waste or waste
water discharge and thus environmental issues are
identified to be non-material aspects. The most
common emission from our daily business activities is
greenhouse gas (“GHG") emission, mainly generated
from the consumption of purchased electricity and the
fuel.

Environmental protection is very important for our
sustainable development. The environmental
management system is spearheaded by the ESG
Working Group in accordance with our environmental
policy. Our policy strives to achieve a high standard of
environmental care in developing our business and to
give due consideration to environmental risks that
would damage the natural and built environment in
conducting our business.
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3.1.2

3.1.3

Management practices are implemented to control GHG
emissions and reduce the generation of both hazardous
and non-hazardous wastes, so as to minimize the
environmental risk and impact of the Company’s
operations.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations
During the year, the Group was not aware of any
non-compliance of environmental laws and regulations
in Hong Kong that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to emissions of waste gases and
greenhouse gases, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes. We were not subject to any
punishment for violating applicable laws and
regulations.

Energy conservation

As energy consumption accounts for a major part of the
Group's GHG emissions, we seek to implement sounds
environmental practices that can achieve energy
conservation.

We promote energy efficiency by deploying natural light
and use energy-saving lightings, where feasible. Our
conference room windows can allow more natural
sunlight to go in and reduce the use of LED lighting.
Refrigerator is kept away from sunlight and well
ventilated. The air filters of air-conditioners are cleaned
regularly to improve cool air flow efficiency. We have
implemented switch off light policy and used energy
consumption equipment (e.g. computer will be switched
automatically while not in use). Energy saving mode of
vehicles is also compulsorily activated.

BRERERER  EHREREH
WML BEEMBEEERZEYNEL -
KM ARBLLESHIRFER R K&

FTERERIE -

312 BFHEBEREER

FRAEEAREREEARERE
BERBERNMAEREHBARES
KMEEREZEVEENDRRERERN
B MREERERYAEEBESL
ERPE - RMUERERERERE
AR T S B AT RET

3.1.3 Hi &g

HREEREREASEREREINK
MEEHMD  RMOBOHETREZHOR
RIEHE - LUESIEFBEMB R -

ERTNERT  BABBEAEAR
S AL AR BE B 1R =2 BE IR A & o AP
MEREEFPANEESNBE ARG
A R E FALEDRE < kB R BES
XoBRERM  EHBERERANER
BRA - ARBLERBEE - Hf
BETRHERE EREMERE (NE
B e RS BB RAMK) - AV AT RE
18 Xt 157 98 I R ED
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3.1.4 Waste reduction 314 WD EY
We have implemented procedures to ensure proper RMERTERF  BREZEEEE
disposal of solid waste and reduce waste at sources. REY) - HORSER D REY) o NE B EE
The Group's wastes are mainly classified into two MEEXEKEFESAME  2E—K
categories in its business, including general wastes and EEW AN A B U B 3R - A ARNEE B A
recyclable wastes. The Group does not generate any EEBHEE  WEATEBBREFRT
hazardous waste in the ordinary course of business @ELFNEEZEREY -

because of our straightforward office operation.

3.14.1 Waste of electrical and electronic equipment 3141 EEEFREEY
Computers or office’s electrical and electronic B AENERREFRE
equipment are well maintained to prolong life HEZERE  NERES® -
span. Staffs are encouraged to recycle the BPEBE TRABRREETHN
electrical and electronic waste through EPD O EERERERETEY -
assigned recyclers. Thus, the waste is not material. b WEEBRTE -

3.1.420ther office wastes 3142 BEMBREEFEY
Staffs are encouraged to reuse stationeries, e.g., BMSBEIEERFERE 1
paper clips, folders, binders, envelopes. Recycling Bl #t - X5k - FER - 531
bins to separate papers, metal and plastic are L WMAERABEAE - AT
available at office. We also encourage our staff to ik 2BREMSE - BMTE
avoid the consumption of paper cups and other BYE TR R RAEMNMEM—X
disposable utensils. HRAEA -

3.1.4.3Paper reduction 3143 B E HA K
For environmental protection, we implement BT RERR  RMEKA DA
policies to reduce the use of paper. We promote MHOBE  REFEFBMEIE
electronic communications and “think before you =R nEs UTEBHET
copy” attitude and encourage our employees to ST REED - ZRPIRAE®
use both sides of the paper for printing and FTENREENR 3 - B n s
copying. We adopt double-sided printing and NEFHBUHREEMHNEE  #
photocopying. Sending email is suggested instead AEFEERS - NMTHEE -
of letters or fax when possible and the E-fax HRAEAEZRSEHNEFEM -

system was adopted without fax printing.
Clouding computing system is used for access of
emails.
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3.1.5

3.1.6

Compliance with relevant laws and
regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance
with the Waste Disposal Ordinance and other applicable
laws and regulations that have a significant impact
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharging into water and land, generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste of the Group
during the year.

No fines or non-monetary sanctions for non-compliance
with relevant laws and regulations had been reported in
the year.

Emissions

The Group's core business does not directly generate
significant air emissions. The greenhouse gases include
carbon dioxide, and nitrogen oxides, which can trap the
heat energy radiated from the Earth. The increasing
concentrations of greenhouse gases have led to global
warming. The most common emission from its daily
business activities is greenhouse gas (“GHG") and is
mainly generated from the consumption of purchased
electricity and the fuel consumed from the use of motor
vehicles.

Fuel consumption of motor vehicles is currently the
major sources of air pollutants which include nitrogen
oxides (“NOx"), sulphur oxides (“SOx") and particulate
matter (“PM"”) emissions. The calculation of each
emission in the following table is mainly based on the
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs issued by
the HKEX and the approximate estimation of kilometers
travelled by vehicles. The fuel consumption mainly
comes from the use of vehicles. Going forward, we
would consider to replace the existing company cars
with more environmentally friendly ones, such as EV or
hybrid cars.
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Gaseous Emissions from the Use of Mobile Combustion
Sources

Environmental Performance Year 2023 Year 2022
RIERE —B=-= —Fg—=

NOx AED Kg T 12.71 10.39
SOx meElm Kg T7 0.24 0.19
PM R Kg T7 0.93 0.76

Year 2023
:i_;:E

Year 2022
===

—_— ——

GHG emission

mEREEHEN

GHG emission (Scope 1) BEREHER (FEE1)
It represents the petrol and #§7A &) B2 8§ K 4 A &9 tCO e 4417 35.77
diesel consumption from YU R SR E FE o %ﬂi s
company cars and vessel.
GHG emission (Scope 2) BEREHER(EE2)
It represents the electricity EREIHEFEE  tCOe 9.72 9.30
purchased from power BB EE © e — %ﬂ: ke &
suppliers
Total GHG emissions REREHRAE tCO,e 53.90 45.07
—&kigE
Average number of employees  F R {E 8 A Employee 14.5 16.5
for the year (==
GHG emission intensity BE R B AGRE tCO ,e/Employee 3.72 2.73
—&kREE
1@5\
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3.1.7 Environmental performance of waste and

reduction target

The Group does not generate hazardous waste
including chemical wastes, clinical wastes and
hazardous chemicals in its operations.

Non-hazardous wastes produced are mainly general
office consumables and are not material., We handle
the wastes using the 4Rs rules, and as explained in
Section 3.2.1 wastes are kept to be a low level. As such,
no relevant figure is quantified in view of its
immateriality, and no reduction target has been set.

3.1.8 Target for reduction of emissions

The emission factor for electricity utilization in Hong
Kong was 0.39 for 2023. The total GHG emissions for
Scope 1 and Scope 2 recorded 53.90 tonnes CO,e for
2023.

In 2023, the ESG working group has reviewed our
emission situation and recommended a target reduction
for financial year 2024 in the range of 2% to 4% per
annum. The Company is encouraged to reduce the
Scope 1 emission through the lower usage in petrol for
transport.

BN BEYNERERERBEBEREZ
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3.1.8 B BEB =2

RZZE_=F FEREHERRAEAE
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3.1.8.1Decarbonization measures 3181 8B IE It

Since the Group’s business does not involve any REBWERE TS R A EE
manufacturing activities, combustion of fuels in B MEEINEERERTHE
company cars is our major source for direct R BIRGE R R BEWA KL -
emissions under Scope 1 and electricity purchased MmEE2RMZEERTHEZR
from power companies is the major source for BRRRENLGBENE S - A
indirect emissions under Scope 2. As the total RIRBERBENYTEKN  AJEE
carbon emissions is insignificant, and the following FRE T PR BEFE e

abatement measures may be implemented when
appropriate:

1. To incorporate low-carbon criteria in 1. BERERMNARBEE
procurement specifications

2. To further the green office procedures as 2. E—PHEIT T X33
mentioned in 3.3 below geRniEr
3. To replace company cars to electric/ 3. BAREHmEHLATE
zero-emissions vehicles THREE
3.1.9 Waste collection and storage points are set up to collect 3.1.9 B BEMME RS - o B ER]
recyclable and non-recyclable waste separately. BRI B B UL BE Y - TRES - BEEY)
Currently, the quantity of the waste is not material. HMEENL % -
3.2 Resources Conservation 32 BERRE
3.2.1 Management policy 321 BEEBHE
The Group grasps every opportunity to encourage its AEFILES —EAKe  $BHEITH
employees in supporting green initiatives in daily AELehiEs a8 KRER]
operations and incorporate environmental sustainability FEMMAETEEE -

into our business operation.

The implementation of 4Rs rule can reduce the use of AR BB E i 0] AR D BIRBE A
resources and the 4Rs rule refers to reduce, reuse, ARMBIFER A - BEEA DR RE
recycle and replace. o

Reduce means reducing the use of resource that helps WO BREFRAEIR RO EEYE
reducing the generation of wastes. We encourage our ENER e RMEBETIBRERAE
staff to buy office supplies with less package and R ARG - WS —RIERR (A
reduce the use of disposable items (e.g. paper cups, W RS BROBRAREBE (B
paper plates), polystyrene foam lunch boxes and non- HERAB)REM A FTEEEMAE
rechargeable batteries.. A e
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Reuse means use the items again or for more than one
purpose. Our staff is encouraged to use both sides of
paper for writing and printing, and wash and reuse
plastic and glass containers. Recycle means changing
waste material into usable goods. Recycling of wastes
can maximize the use of resources, decrease the rate of
exhaustion of resources and reduce the pollution.

We have recycling bins in place to collect waste paper,
plastic bottles and aluminum can separately. Replace
means the use of recycled or environmentally friendly
materials to replace the disposable or wasteful
products..

3.2.2 Energy and resource consumptions for the

Group

Environmental Performance

RIERH

Electricity consumption HE
Average number of employee  FRFHEE AH
for the year

Electricity intensity AERE

Fuel Consumption R EFE

Average number of FAFHREAK
employee for the year

Fuel intensity Y Ry

Water Consumption J==Fi

Average number of FATHREEAH
employee for the year

Water intensity K& E

EREREEBRERY MK EA
REEB® - RMHBETEAER
ERMINE - WERMEEERLR
MR 2z o WUGEHEIERE B # &
B R - BE YR @ YR B R]
N KREHAAER - FEERK
BRI A IER -

BB LYW DRl ERER - 2

B E - B R EREREREIER
R ER — R ER -

322 AKBEMEER R EIFHE %

Year 2023 Year 2022

—g-= —ECCfF
kWh F FL B 24,931 24,122
Employee & & 14.5 16.5
kWh/employee 1,719 1,462
FTEK &S
Litres A Ft 16,007 13,122
Employeef& B 14.5 16.5
Litres/femployee 1,104 795
DIt/ REE
M3 37 755K 27 21
Employee f& & 14.5 16.5
M?3/employee 1.86 1.27
MK/ EER
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3.2.3 Energy use efficiency target

The target for the two financial years 2022 and 2023
were set to reduce the 3-year average energy
consumption by 5% (i.e. about 2.5% per year) and in
the long term of 10 years, the reduction target is about
25% to 30% of the average level. The overall reduction
for the years 2022 and 2023 was yet to be met. The
electricity consumption maintain at 24,931 kWh for the
year 2023. We will consider measures to close this gap
of reduction target plan of 5% in the coming financial
years.

3.2.4 Water conservation

Our water consumption is not material and we
implement 4Rs rules to reduce its consumption. Water
Pollution Control Ordinance has been closely monitored
and the water consumption was slightly increased from
21M?3 to 27M?3 during the year. A 3% to 5% annual
reduction to the average consumption level will be
targeted by 2030. We will review the target and review
the possibilities to change it, as and when appropriate.
We have saved water by: a) turning off the water tap
promptly, b) checking for water leakage from taps or
pipes; and ¢) by keeping the water level in toilet tanks
to a minimum to reduce spillage.

3.2.5We are not engaged in any manufacture of goods, and

there is no packaging material used for finished
products.

323 8B &
ZEZFR-IZE_ZFWMEAGRE

EWEEZEE=ZF FHERRESY
(w@i%zww’ﬁ+¢5%52%
15 G IK F R 2 #925% E30% ©
ToFERZEZ=FHE %ﬂmﬁh
MAER T —FMEEESE
FR24,931 FELE - BB RAEERD
B F B N E R EUE G EBR %5 % R
EEEEEIMERE -

32248 A K
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BIBUR A AR - TEBECOKSRE
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WIBINE27SL K - B ZF=FF
BFEHFEKE ~$Vﬁ%@5%oﬁ
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325 MR EEAAMmRE  BA

PR am B B #Y

3.3 Green Office
3.3.1 Management policy

33 #EHA
331 BEEE
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We are committed to sustainability by seeking to reduce
the environmental impact of our operations, with a
particular focus on the reduction of greenhouse gas
emissions and conservation of resources. We
incorporate environmental responsibility into our daily
operations through the implementation of green
operation and green procurement policies to reduce the
environmental impact and consumption of natural
resources. We will continue to study the possible ways
to reduce emissions, including the use of electric
vehicles as replacement.
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3.3.2 Environmental management system

To properly manage the office and effectively implement
environmental policies, we actively implement an
environmental management system, in an effort to
ensure compliance with relevant regulations, improve
environmental performance, and prevent environmental
pollution.

3.3.3 Promoting environmental protection

The Group encourages all employees to participate in
different kinds of recycling activities and reduce the use
of natural resources. We also update our management
and staff on the ESG requirements through attending
online training sessions as provided by the HKEX and
other related bodies.

During the year, there is no significant impact on the
environment and natural resources from the operations.
Employees are well-informed of our green measures
through the regular circulation of relevant information
to advocate their awareness and behavioral change.

3.3.4 Ecological conservation

We support environmental efforts, including protecting
biodiversity, reducing ecological footprint and raising
awareness of climate change. The Group has
implemented various measures to protect water
resources and reduce waste. The Group will continue to
encourage green office and resources conservation in
order to contribute to the sustainable development of
mankind.

3.4 Measures for Climate Change
3.4.1 Management policy

The Group is concerned about climate change issues
and strives to take measures to reduce greenhouse gas
emissions from business operations in order to combat
climate change. To illustrate our strong determination,
we have reduced from the staff’s business travel and
the related Scope-3 indirect emission.

We carry out local procurement, use environment-friendly
materials to reduce the carbon footprint and impact on
climate change of our operations, so as to create an
ideal living place for our next generation.

332 REBEESE
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3.4.2 Climate-related financial disclosures of our 3A2 RPERREERENTERE
investments

Climate change is often cited as a leading HRIREEME F AR TAHR

environmental priority for investors and due
consideration should be made to the climate-related
risks including transition risks and physical risks. We
support the Task Force on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures (“TCFD") and our second set of TCFD report
was included in this annual report.

RERBEENREERERZ —
thEZEZEREARER S8
ERRE R ERRER - HFISFRIEA
BT e EE T4E/ME (TTCFDY) » 34
BE —MTCFDRECMALRFR -

SECTION 4 OUR PEOPLE BABMBRMBAS
4.1 Talent Management 41 AT EE
4.1.1 Management policy 411 EEBR
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We understand that it is essential to have a high-quality
and moral team of management to maintain
operational efficiency and improve overall performance
Our business success depends on our ability to attract,
retain and cultivate employees. Each employee is an
important family member to us and we strive to provide
employees with a work-life balance environment, in the
hope that they can firmly stand with the Group to
create the future together. The Group is committed to
creating a fair and comfortable working environment.

Management policies have been formulated in strict
compliance with relevant labour laws in Hong Kong.
They cover Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and
relevant laws and regulations in respect of employees’
compensation, recruitment, promotion, dismissal,
working hours, holidays, equal opportunities, diversity,
anti-discrimination, benefits and welfare, so as to fully
protect and respect employees’ rights and create an
ideal workplace for employees.

4.1.2 Compliance with laws and regulations

During the year, the Group complied with applicable
local laws and regulations on compensation, recruitment,
promotion, dismissal, working hours, holidays, equal
opportunities, diversity, anti-discrimination, benefits and
welfare, child labour and forced labour. There were no
major employee or labour disputes that disrupted our
normal business operations, nor were we subject to any
punishment for violating applicable laws and regulations.
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4.1.3 Recruitment and remuneration

Human resources are the valuable assets and
indispensable to our Company. We are committed to
providing our staff a fair and equitable workplace
where they are treated equally in every aspect of their
work or employment and the staff is motivated to grow
with our Company and meet our company goals to
strive for the excellence in the industry.

We adopt fair and non-discriminatory recruitment
policies and comply with the requirements of the
ordinances of the Anti-discrimination and Personal Data
and Privacy aiming to recruit the appropriate and
qualified staff to grow with the Company.

Based on the market rates and benefits, we offer
reasonable and competitive salary to attract candidates
to join us and retain them. We strictly adhere to the
statutory requirements as stated in the relevant
employment laws, ensuring the rights and interests of
our staff being properly protected.

4.1.4 Equal opportunity and diversity

The Group is committed to creating an inclusive and
non-discriminatory workplace, providing equal
opportunities for all employees regardless of gender,
age, nationality, religion, sexual orientation or physical
fitness, and giving fair consideration to all job
applicants.

We follow the principles of fairness, impartiality and
openness to recruit and promote the right employees
and never discriminate against job applicants on the
grounds of race, colour, social status, place of birth,
nationality, religion, disability, gender, sexual
orientation, trade union membership, political position
or age. We prohibit the employment of child labour in
accordance with relevant standards and regulations.
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4.1.5 Protection of rights and interests

We continually review the employee compensation
policy to ensure that employee compensation can be in
tandem with the Company’s performance. We believe
that employees should be rewarded fairly based on their
contribution, and provide attractive compensation and
benefits to employees. In addition, each employee may
resign by giving a reasonable period’s notice.

The Code of Practice Human Resources Management
issued by the Office of the Privacy Commissioner for
Personal Data has also been observed when handling
employment-related data.

4.1.6 Employee communication

Cohesion among employees is a key driving force for
corporate development, and good communication
channels with employees serve as the cornerstone of
the Group’s operations. Accordingly, we set up channels
to collect employees’ opinions, actively listen to their
opinions and suggestions, and take timely measures in
response to matters of high concern to employees to
protect their interests.

4.1.7 Staff composition
As at 31 December 2023, we employed a total of 13
employees, and all of them were located in Hong Kong.

Senior Staff

ANSRENRERRE

BT B =B R 8 # BN ECR - R IE
BHMERTRERPIER - MR
RESEENAEBGTATFER I
RESRBEARSI NOFMEER -
BHN - BB FEBREA RN AERR
BB AR AR

B EREREREBNERKIIE
BTEAERLREEERFHLNA
NEREEEBTR -

A6 EHEEBNER

BETRBENROFERNERS N
HETRFRIOEBRAEEFN
BIEMEAL - Bt BAIRERETA
BERERR BEHREBEIREEFNER
ME#Z UERKRDEEDNEETS
BRTNEE  AMREE A -

BIHMK
RZFZ=FF+-A=+t—H A&
AeREMIBEES  WEAURE
7 o

General Staff

SHRET —RET
No. of staff No. of Staff
BTI#H BET#H
41-50 41-505% - - - -
50 or above 505% 8k VA 8 100 5 100
Total BET 8 100 5 100
Senior Staff General Staff
BRET —mRET
By gender No. of staff No. of Staff
1 Bl BIHA EIHAH
Female pegis 3 37.5 2 40
Male B 5 62.5 3 60
Total @z 8 100 5 100
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As at 31 December 2022, we employed a total of 16
employees, and all of them were located in Hong Kong.

Senior Staff

MRZBZ_F+-R=+—H " KQ7F
BHEMI6RES - BWEHLNEE -

General Staff

BRET —mRET
No. of staff No. of Staff
ETIT#HAH ETHH
41-50 41-505% - - - =
50 or above 50578 A | 8 100 8 100
Total BET 8 100 8 100

Senior Staff

General Staff

SRET —RET
By gender No. of staff No. of Staff
B BETHA ET#HH
Female peglca 2 25 5 62
Male B 6 75 3 38
Total BEr 8 100 8 100

4.1.8During the year ended 31 December 2023, the turnover
rate was 18.75%.

4.2 Health and Safety
4.2.1 Management policy
We implement various policies and measures to
maintain a safe and healthy workplace for the
employees. We value safety and take effective measures
to reduce safety risks. In accordance with laws and
regulations, we have formulated a set of appropriate
safety management programs, including hazard
identification and risk assessment and control, in order
to reduce and control potential occupational safety and
health hazards in business operations. We strictly abide
by the relevant safety laws and regulations. During the
year, there was no case of the prosecution against the
Group for violation of occupational safety-related laws.
Good housekeeping is essential to the maintenance of a
healthy workplace to the employees. Maintaining good
air circulation, we employ registered company to carry
out monthly maintenance service and annual
sterilization to the air conditioners in order to prevent
any possible diseases to be transmitted through the air
conditioning system.

ANBEE_ZT-_=F+-_A=+—HLHF
B RKEE18.75% °
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The Company took precautionary measures and stayed
alert against the disease. We also requested our
colleagues to maintain good personal hygiene.

4.2.2 Compliance with laws and regulations

During the year, the Group complied with the
regulatory requirements for workplace safety in Hong
Kong. We have not suffered any accidents or
complaints that have a material adverse effect on our
operations, nor were we subject to any punishment for
violating applicable laws and regulations.

R A EREUTA P 18 e 3 8 K 0 B AR
FED  RANERFAEREFRTH
BARAE -

422 BFEEER

FR AKEBTEEABIESMH
REMEERTE - RALEZGER
HRMAZEERBEATNEZENEIN
S IREF - TMEFEE RGERERERM
ZEEREED ©

4.2.3 During the past three years, there was no work-related
fatalities occurred.

423 BE=-FUERNTTHER -

43 FIRER
431 EEBXR

4.3 Training and Development
4.3.1 Management policy
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We firmly trust that continuous learning and
development can help staff to utilize fully their potential
and it is important to their future career development
and also supports the growth and strengthens the
competitiveness. The department heads will provide on
the job trainings to their new staff and help them to
grasp the job knowledge and duties. The job
performance appraisal will be conducted for the new
staff during the probation for assessing their
performance. Training programs will be planned for the
new staff against the performance assessment.

We provide continuous learning to the staff and
encourage them to attend online trainings or workshops
as provided by external training organisations. To
maintain our staff’'s professionalism and career
development, we support our staff for their continuous
professional trainings.

4.3.2 Orientation training

We provide all new staff with the orientation program
that will help them to know the Company culture, its
rules and regulations and their benefits. On the job
training will be provided to our staff during the term of
their employment.
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4.3.3 ESG training and other trainings
To enhance the ESG investing, training is essential.

4331

4332

ESG training

During the year, our ESG Working Group
encouraged active learning through the self-study
of useful materials, publications, and books,
including the training resources/materials offered
by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. An internal
continuing training system was used, which
allowed our staff to grasp a better understanding
of the ESG issues and keep ourselves abreast of

the relevant knowledge and latest requirements.

Other trainings

Apart from orientation training, we also provide
corporate culture training and professional skills
training to enhance professionalism and achieve
continuous improvement with us. We assess the
training requirements of our staff regularly and
encourage them to receive continuous training in
their respective professions.

4.3.4 The percentages of full-time employees trained in 2023
and 2022 were shown below:

By gender i B2l 55
Female 4

Male S

By employee category BRESERZ S
Management BIEE

Senior staff SRET
General staff —RETLT

433

BRI - B RERIFIRH I

BMBEE - HEREEES - B
YA o

4331

4332

BRI g RERF

FA - BZMRIRE g kER
THENEASBBEREERR - H
EERNEBEME - HRY &
#7£% @Tﬁ?%ﬂ?ﬁ?&ﬁﬂmfﬁﬁ’ﬁn
INER MK o 2RI FRE
BlES Tﬁﬁﬂf’ﬁﬁ’]albﬂ?@ﬁf&
R HERERMENTE I
BT AR N R RFTAE ©

H A E 5l

BRABUEFION - HPITIR MR Z
XAl B E e - AR
BEITHERKYF BRI
ERFEES - ROEHFEE
TERIFER  LEBEEES

BENEXRERZFEE -

434-ZF_=FR-_ZT-__FXJ2RE
THDHIRET

22 27
78 73
56 64
22 18
22 18
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4.3.5 The average training hours completed per full-time A3 B -_=FR-_B-__FBE2BIE
employee in 2023 and 2022 are as follows: BREAZINTFERENT

Average training hours

per employee

BRAREFIHRIEH

By gender i B2 5
Female 4 17 28
Male B 16 25
By employee category ZRESERZ S
Management EIEE 15 31
Senior SHRET 31 30
General —®RET 2 2
4.4 Labour Standards 4.4 ¥ TR
4.4.1 Management policy and compliance with laws 44V EBBRREFERER
and regulations
We recruit staff in accordance with the Hong Kong RPIZBESEREENBREET &£
Employment Ordinance and prohibit any form of forced AT R A9 38 61| 45 T ok iR e T
labour and forced overtime work. During the reporting E-RNEHR - WEEREZ TR
period, there were no cases of child labour or forced 5 THBER - MW TMEBEEER
labour and we were not aware of any non-compliance ERMERERRIER -

of relevant laws and regulations.

SECTION 5 OUR OPERATION SFSHEMNEE
5.1 Product Responsibility 51 EmEE
5.1.1 Management Policy 511 EEBE
The Company is an investment company and does not RRRIRKERE  PEETTIHE
produce nor sell any products. Product responsibility is EMER EmETERMER -

found to be irrelevant to us.
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5.2 Supply Chain Management
5.2.1 Management policy

We rely on our vendors, agencies and third-party service
providers to support our operation. This enables us to
operate efficiently but potentially exposes us to certain
risks. Suppliers and service providers are also the
important stakeholders in the Group’s business value
chain and are closely connected with us. They mainly
consist of securities brokers, investment management
companies, and other services providers. We maintain
close contact with them to ensure good communication.
As of 2023, we had about 30 suppliers and service
providers in Hong Kong (2022: 33).

Effective supply chain management is vital to safeguard
our business and to promote responsible practices
among companies in our community. For financial
services, we work with reliable third-party service
providers who have demonstrably high corporate
standard. We conduct regular reviews to ensure they
can meet the requirements of our service contracts.

5.2.2 Our procurement

Our procurement of equipment and office supplies
mainly refers to the computers, printer consumable and
stationery. The procurement is normally to be not
material. We review the needs and availability before a
request for purchasing. We prefer to purchase in bulk
to minimize resources utilization in transportation and
packaging wastes generated in transportation.

Regarding supplier and service providers selection,
staffs are encouraged to select local suppliers and this
demonstrates our support for our community, while
eliminating unnecessary transportation can reduce our
impact on the environment.

5.2 HEHETEE
52,1 EEBR

BMEBEMNER REBRE=
FRERHEEIFEMOEE - bR
ERFIEMmREE  BAIESER
MEERE TRR - ftER KRB REE
At ANEEEBEERTNEEF
mAEEE  BERMATUHEE - BE
TEBRBAHALEL AR BEEER
Al R E M ARSI o RAPIEE FR
ITYHE  BRRITBB RZT
Z=F HBMEBEBLS0ORMER
MRS RMERE (ZTZZF : 33K) °

BmHEEEEHNRERME
BREELRAXFTNEBEEHEE
FAER - BRMITIRS - RFIEA S
B EERESERFENE =TTk
BRHEAIE - LAEHETEN N
EREE A MR MIRE A R ER -

5.2.2 RV FEEE

BRERBORRORE I 2EME
HTENRREM KX A - RBBETE L
TEZ - RMERERBERMNES
FREAMBR - HFERRHER
B UBERLVERBETHERM
RlkEHBRETEENBENR -

EEEHERERGREREIE - K
Piex B 8 T@EAMHEER - LBX
BRI A 13 A0 ST - R AL 48 T 45
EHEH AR HRBTNTE
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5.3 Anti-corruption 5.3 RESS
5.3.1 Management policy 531 EEBEK

86

We are committed to ensuring that no bribes, payment
or advantages are solicited from or given or offered to
any persons, whether in the public or private sector, for
any purpose. We regard honesty, integrity, and fair play
as the core values that must be upheld by our
colleagues at all times.

We establish an internal control system, which provides
the internal supervision, risk control and anti-corruption
management to ensure that our business procedures
are in compliance with local and international laws on
the prevention of bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

5.3.2 Improper conduct reporting

We implement improper conduct reporting and our
employees are encouraged to report improper conduct,
fraud and other irregularities. The investigation results
will be submitted to our management in the case of
fraud involving non-senior management personnel, or
to the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee in
the case of fraud involving senior management
personnel.

5.3.3 Compliance with laws and regulations

During the year, the Group abided by all relevant laws
and regulations on the prevention of bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering. Neither the Group nor any
of its employees were prosecuted for or convicted of
corruption.

5.3.4 Anti-corruption training

Training will be provided to new staff and useful
updates of the relevant laws and regulations will also be
made available.

CHINA CASTSON 81 FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2023

HABNHERLERETAEEMNR A
HHAEFEPI R R A T REE A
EAA TR E A TR - SRR
@ BB HIE RERATFHFSR
RIZLEE BEEEMEERSAR
STHBRROEE -

B ARSI HE - R R
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SECTION 6 OUR COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

6.1

6.2

6.3

Management policy
We strive to build a sustainable community by supporting

local initiatives that create effective and lasting benefits to
the community through corporate philanthropy, establishing
community partnerships, and encouraging our employees to
participate in volunteer work. We contribute to the
communities in which we operate and our policy will be
communicated to the Company’s stakeholders, including our
employees, shareholders, and business partners. We are
committed to the continual development of this policy and its
integration into our operations.

Focus areas of contribution
We strive to be a part of our communities, to serve and

contribute by promoting corporate social responsibility.
During the year, our Chairman was awarded the Medal of
Honour in recognition of his contribution made to the
society.

Our focus areas of community involvement are education,
poverty alleviation, health, the elderly and culture. We will
encourage staff to volunteer their time and core skills to
benefit local communities, which can give our staff the
chance to find out more about the social and environmental
issues and reinforce our corporate values.

6.2.1 During the year, the amount of contributions to Po
Leung Kuk and Concerted Efforts Resources Centre
Limited was HK$45,000 (2022: HK$45,000) and the
number of hours that the staff volunteered for charities
or NGOs was 18 (2022: 16.5).

Nurturing youth
We view education as the cornerstone for maintaining

growth and development in our communities. Our goal is to
support youths to become outstanding leaders and more
importantly lifelong learners who embrace positive social
values. Our Chairman is a philanthropist and contributes his
time and donations to education. He had acted as the school
manager of Lam Man Chan Primary School, which aims to
reinforce student’s capacity for independent learning as well
as bi-literacy.

FeHRMIHLES A

6.1

6.2

6.3

EERXR

HPBBCEESER BUMCRAER
HER ZEETI2NEMIIE  H/HE
BAEERMMITANBZH T ES - BH
BRASEERLR BMAEREEMRE
HEELERNAER - THREREES - KX
REBERHEANNEABEZERM
R © HIPIBRSINPE & LK - HHE
BAZES -

EXERMER
ARRREERRAEREN—5F  #
HECELBEEARRERAMLE - &
A RMNEFER TRBHEUAREE
H AL E R B BB -

BEftR2ENFIBHEAHE  HKE -
@R - RERUE - BTSSR E TEEN
HE M OREE - UWERAMH R o th 8
RTERERETHRESZHERRERE -
KRR ERER -

621 FR - AREBEREHERFLIEL
BB & %8 A45,0008 T (2T = =
F :45,000%87C) - MEB L AESHE
SIEETABIRERE TRENREA
18N (ZE -4 : 16.5/\85) o

BEBLHE
RMRAREREBUEERERERNL

B BN B BRRZEE S ER AR
i BEENRIBRELSDE  BE
M@ B EE - RAHERR—EE
R - BHEABFHRLIBR o BAKRTEN
BRE RREEMBBRENE TR
NREEES -
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CONTENT INDEX OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE OF THE HONG KONG

STOCK EXCHANGE

ESG Reporting
Guide of HKEX

FERBXMRER -
HERERHEEHES)

it

Description

Part B: Mandatory Disclosure Requirements

BEf % : iMEHIIHERE

ERBBXM(RE HEREBERS
Ea)ABRRL

Referring section
in this ESG Report
AR\ - HER
ERBEHEAES

Governance Structure

ERRE

A statement from the Board containing the following
elements:

MEFERHNER  EFHATIAL

(i)

(i)

(iii)

a disclosure of the Board’s oversight of ESG issues;
REEFERN HEREAFANEE

the Board’s ESG management approach and
strategy, including the process used to evaluate,
prioritise and manage material ESG-related issues
(including risks to the issuer’s businesses); and
BEZEgnRE g REBERHHRKE - BT
it BREFIREBEEZNRE HERECHEBE
H (BEEETAXEBNER) (B2 X

how the Board reviews progress made against
ESG-related goals and targets with an explanation
of how they relate to the issuer’s businesses.
EZeRRE e RERBHEERRIER
WARFE (A B BT AR TS B RAAE o

Section 1.1 Messages from the
£1.155 Chairman
F E BB
Section 1.2 Our Corporate
F1.280 Values
HZMWEEEE
Section 1.3 Basis for
%£1.353 Preparation of the
Report
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ESG Reporting
Guide of HKEX
ERBXARIE
HERERBEESD

Reporting Principles
B ¥R R Al

Referring section
in this ESG Report

Description ARIE - HER

a3t ERBEHEAELS

A description of, or an explanation on, the application of Section 1.5 Reporting

the following Reporting Principles in the preparation of £ 1.560 Principles

the ESG report: i 5% R Al

B MBEREBRE HeREAREFNAERT

HI|fE R R B - Section 2.3 Materiality
523501 Assessment

Materiality: The ESG report should disclose: (i) the process B E2 T

to identify and the criteria for the selection of material

ESG factors; (ii) if a stakeholder engagement is Section 2.4 Stakeholders

conducted, a description of significant stakeholders 52 480 Engagement

identified, and the process and results of the issuer’s AZARAEL R

stakeholder engagement.

EEMRR HEREAREEESE  ()VBIEERE -
HtERERAZMNBREREESLEAZNER : (NVHE#
THHE2H  BEFFNEZEN=EEENELRETA
MmERE2ENBERER -

Quantitative: Information on the standards,
methodologies, assumptions and/or calculation tools
used, and source of conversion factors used, for the
reporting of emissions/energy consumption (where
applicable) should be disclosed.

21t FRAERBENE RRER (WER) FTARZRE -
FE - BER/KFEIANER  URFEANER
H=H RRETHE -

Consistency: The issuer should disclose in the ESG report
any changes to the methods or KPIs used, or any other
relevant factors affecting a meaningful comparison.
—BM BOTARERER HeREARMSPRELS
ADERAREVEENEET S EMAEMTEEERLR
MEEEE -

Reporting Boundary
P ¥z &3 (&

A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the Section 1.4 Reporting Period
ESG report and describing the process used to identify F1.450 and Boundary
which entities or operations are included in the ESG W H N E s

report. If there is a change in the scope, the issuer should
explain the difference and reason for the change.
RERIR HeREAMESHWERDE - R IER
LERNEBAARE HEREARENARE - BE

TEER 81 EBRARRQE | ZBZ=HFFH
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ESG Reporting Referring section
Guide of HKEX in this ESG Report
BB FORIE Description AREBE -HER
HERERB|ERS) #Hit ERBEHEAELS
A. Environmental
A RIR
Aspect A1: Emissions
BEA1: B
General Disclosure Information on: Section 3.1  Environmental
— MR (@) the policies; and F3.180 Responsibility
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that IRBEEME
have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges 3.1.1 Management policy
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and B IR BUR
non-hazardous waste.
BRABERIBEREBINR  MKELTHHOHES BEE 3.1.3 Energy conservation
BEBEREWNELEEN g B
(@) B%K: Kk
(b) BFHEHBETABEAZEZMNMEBEEIERERAMNER - 3.14 Waste reduction
B REY
Note: Air emissions include NOx, SOx, and other
pollutants regulated under national laws and 3.1.5 Compliance with
regulations. relevant laws and
Bt BEREERBERAEY WAt RAEMIEK regulations
ERERBREN TR - B HEBEERER
Greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide,
methane, nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons,
perfluorocarbons and sulphur hexafluoride.
BEREEE-_S/ix Tk SELER S8
kiba® - 2R RSB o
Hazardous wastes are those defined by national
regulations.
BEREMEBRRRORATE -
KPI' A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 3.1.6 Emissions
BB AR IRAL HE Y T8 2R K B R BE OB o HER
KPI'A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) 3.1.6 Emissions
8 2 AR R A .2 greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where b2 387!

appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

BHE (BE1) ket REZ (BE2) R ERBHNE (AR
BE)R(MER)BE(MABESEM - BIRRBAE) -
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ESG Reporting Referring section

Guide of HKEX in this ESG Report

EBEZFORIE Description ARIE -HER

HERERB|ERS) #Hit ERBEHEAELS

Aspect A1: Emissions

BHEA1 : BEW

KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, 3.1.7 Environmental

B AR B IEAL 3 where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production performance of
volume, per facility) waste and reduction
FELEEEEYEE (UETE) R (WER) ZE (1A together
BESEM  BEREHE) - BEEMHRFERER

NOm g B AR

KPI'A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, 3.1.7 Environmental

B AE B EA 4 where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production performance of
volume, per facility). waste and reduction
FTEAEEZEEYEs (WEE) R (ER) ZE (A target
BESEM  BERMETHE) - FEEMHRIFERER

KOR R B 1R

KPI'A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps 3.1.8 Target for reduction

B R & BUIB1ZA1.5 taken to achieve them. of emissions
HPTET BV BE 8 B IR R R E R L B IR EREREY 2P 58 - BEE B 12

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous 3.1.6 Emissions

R 524 B TIEA1 .6 wastes are handled, and a description of reduction 2387

target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
HREBEEEREBEEEEYMN AL - R PTET LR RE
BRERREDBEMERRE TR -

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BHEA2: BRER

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including Section 3.2 Resources
— R EE energy, water and other raw materials. %3280 Conservation
BREAER (BEER - KREMERME) BB - BIRR &
Note: Resources may be used in production, in storage, 3.2.1 Management policy
transportation, in buildings, electronic equipment, B R
etc.
Biit - BERFAREE - &7 E# - BF  ETREF -
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.  3.2.2 Energy and resource
B S4B IR IZEA2.1 electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in '000s) and intensity consumptions for
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). the Group
RENESNEER SHEZERR (18 - fguh) BF= REERREIR
(AFETEREFE) RBE (MASESEL - BIERHE & RERE
E) -
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ESG Reporting Referring section
Guide of HKEX in this ESG Report
BB FORIE Description AREBE -HER
HERERHEES) ik EAREHEELS
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of 3.2.2 Energy and resource
B 5245 WIEIZA2.2 production volume, per facility). consumptions for
BREKEREE (MABESEN  8EXRBAHE) - the Group
NEE R EER
R EIREF
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and 3.2.3 Energy use efficiency
B AE BB IZA2. 3 steps taken to achieve them. target
R PET SZ BV RE IR (2 A e B IR R AR E R E Lk B R P ER Y R B R
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing 3.2.4 Water conservation
BB WIEIEA2 4 water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) £ 49 F 7K

set and steps taken to achieve them.
2t SR ERGE A KR £ AT B (el R E - BA R PRaT S 89 K as
BERAEDEL B FAEIME LR -

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in N/A
B8R & B 1RA2.5 tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit i B
produced.

HRmATABEMENEE (AMAE) &k (NER) 84
EBEE -
Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BHEA3: RIRRXAER

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on  Section 3.3  Green Office

— R R the environment and natural resources. %53.360 [SQER YN
WEERTAHRERRAERENERTZENBUR -

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the Section 3.3  Green Office

RA R A SIS TEA3.1 environment and natural resources and the actions taken £3.3%0 SRR /N

to manage them.
Rl RS HRBERAABERNERZERDRIE
BEERZENTH -

Aspect A4: Climate Change

BEAL : FIRE(L

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant Section 3.4 Measures for

— R climate-related issues which have impacted, and those F3.450 Climate Change
which may impact, the issuer. RIRE (L
BRIREHERA LR BETAEEZENERARIE H b
HEAEENBER -

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which Section 3.4 Measures for

BA S AR B 12 AL 1 have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, £53.4%0 Climate Change
and the actions taken to manage them. RxEE{LR
BB AR EEHBEITAEETENERRIFEBRER it

NEETE -

92 CHINA CASTSON 81 FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2023




ESG Reporting Referring section

Guide of HKEX in this ESG Report
EBEZFORIE Description AR -HER
HERERB|ERS) #Hit ERBEHEAELS
B. Social
B. &
Employment and Labour Practices
EBERSEIER
Aspect B1: Employment
BEB1: EE
General Disclosure Information on: Section 4.1 Talent Management
— R (@) the policies; and FA4NES AT ER
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer 4.1.1 Management policy
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and EIEWE
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and 41.2 Compliance with
welfare. laws and regulations
BT ERE BEREA LERHK R FEH BFRBER
2 Zufb - REBRAREMGEEREF
(@) BK: & 413 Recruitment and
(b) BFHBETABERAZENHBBEEEER remuneration
BW—REEER - HEE K % B
4.1.4 Equal opportunity
and diversity
TE#e RE Tt
4.1.5 Protection of rights
and interests
TR K HE m AR &
4.1.6 Employee
communication
HESHNER
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for 4.1.7 Staff composition
B8R 4B IR IEB .1 example, full-or part-time), age group and geographical 8 TR
region.
MR EBEEE (NEBERE)  FRRAR Rt 8l
DHEBRAR -
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and 4.1.8
5 48 B 5B 1.2 geographical region.

BRI FRANRBREDMNESRKLE -
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ESG Reporting
Guide of HKEX
EBEBRXAGRIR -

HEREGBERES)

[EHEB2: BEHZE

Referring section
in this ESG Report

Description

ARR - HER

i ki ERBEHEAELS
Aspect B2: Health and Safety

General Disclosure Information on: Section 4.2 Health and Safety
—MRIEE (a) the policies; and FA260 fEREZ 2
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer 4.2.1 Management policy
relating to providing a safe working environment and BEBUR
protecting employees from occupational hazards.
EAREZE2IEREAREREBHE#RABEMEEN : 422 Compliance with
(a) &K &k laws and regulations
(b) BTHBEITAREAZENHEBERESR BTERER
B—RWEER -
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in ~ 4.2.3
8 2 AR I 12B2.1 each of the past three years including the reporting
year.
BE=F (BRERFE)ZFRAITHRNHABRLE -
KPI'B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. 4.2.3
BB 4B W5 15B2.2 HIGHEEAIIEBH -
KPI'B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures 4.2.1 Management
78 52 A AIE 12823 adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored. policy
RIRPTER AN B R R RET 28 - ARMBEARITRER BIRHR
T e
Aspect B3: Development and Training
JBTEB3 : &K EH
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for Section 4.3  Training and
— R E discharging duties at work. Description of training %4 3508 Development
activities. ol R R
FRARAEERTILIERENMBELRENBE -
g ES o 4.3.1 Management policy
EIBHE
Note: Training refers to vocational training. It may

include internal and external courses paid by the 4.3.2
employer.
BB RS

Kiaz - Al BiEmEE N BHARIMNERE o

4.3.3

Orientation training

ARSI

ESG training and
other trainings
RE HEKER

15 3 Be E At 15 3
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ESG Reporting Referring section

Guide of HKEX in this ESG Report
EBEZFORIE Description AR -HER
HERERHEES) ik EAREHEELS
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and  4.3.4
2 48 A A5 13B3.1 employee category (e.g. senior management, middle

management).

BUERNREEEMN(WEREERE TREERE) EHH
RilEEADL -
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee 4.3.5
8§ 45 W5 1EB3.2 by gender and employee category.
BRURIREEEMNE D BREETKRZ I FHRFE -
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[ETEB4 : 85 T#8|

General Disclosure Information on: Section 4.4  Labour Standards
— AR H FR (a) the policies; and F4 48D A T g
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer 4.4.1 Management policy
relating to preventing child and forced labour. and compliance with
R IEE Tk fl4TH laws and regulations
(a) BUE: K BEBER
(b) BFHBETABEAZENHEBERESR BFRRER
B — R BT AR o
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment 4.4.1 Management policy
742 48 IR 1EB4.1 practices to avoid child and forced labour. and compliance with
R BB A ME AR EE T RAHET - laws and regulations
ERBUR KR
BFREER
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices  Section 4.4 Labour Standards
7§ 48 SNIE 12B4.2 when discovered. F4.45 4T A

WA EZRRERBAKERBBERARNANTSRE

Operating Practices

EEEN

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
FEEBS : HEHEEE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of Section 5.2 Supply Chain

— B R the supply chain. 255.260 Management
ERHEENRERLSEARBE - HEHEER

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 5.2.1 Management policy

B 5248 IR 1EB5.1 v e D HEREE - EEBR
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ESG Reporting Referring section
Guide of HKEX in this ESG Report
BB FORIE Description AREBE -HER
HERERHEES) ik EAREHEELS
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, 5.2.2 Our procurement
8 52 45 B 1ZB5.2 number of suppliers where the practices are being TR EREE
implemented, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

Ht AR RERENES  RERTEBEENNHER

2E AREEARTRERTE-
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental 5.2.2 Our procurement
8 2 45 A8 12853 and social risks along the supply chain, and how they TR EE

are implemented and monitored.

MR BEAZBAEEESEARGTNRERESRARNED -

ARMERBITRERTTE -

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote 522 Our procurement
i § 45 5 1ZB5 .4 environmentally preferable products and services when M B9 BR BE
selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

e 7 BOE B R RS (R 2 2 A IRRE fn R RIS BB - A
NEBAITRERTE -

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

JEHB6 : EmEE

General Disclosure Information on: 5.1 Product
— R E (a) the policies; and Responsibility
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that EmERE

have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products and services provided
and methods of redress.
FRAMRMHERNBRBONERELZS  BES  B%
RFLBEE A RBRTT A
(@ EX: K
(b) BTHBTAGEATENHBERESR

B —ARWEER -

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to N/A

8 §E 45 5 12B6. 1 recalls for safety and health reasons. TEA
EEXCEXERAE DAL D HE{ERIEH AR KA
Aotk e

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints N/A

A $ 48 N IE 1£B6.2 received and how they are dealt with. i

BRERNERMRGHRFEE ARBHTTE -
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ESG Reporting
Guide of HKEX

Referring section
in this ESG Report

EBEBRGRIE - Description ARIE - HER
HERERB|ERS) #Hit ERBEHEAELS
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and N/A
7§ 48 SNIE 1£B6.3 protecting intellectual property rights. N3 A
Mg ERRENBERGANED -
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall N/A
B 4E 1515864 procedures. i A
HlEERTREREMBKRER
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy  N/A

7 2 45 IR 15B6.5

policies, and how they are implemented and monitored. 1~
B E B ERHMRE RILBECR - UREARITRERT
5 o

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

BHEB7 : RE5

General Disclosure

—RIE

Section 5.3
%5.358

Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that

Anti-corruption
R&ER

have a significant impact on the issuer 5.3.1 Management policy
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering. B I8 R
BRI 9% - MEFREEED
(@) B Rk 5.3.3 Compliance with
(b) BEIFTHBITABERZENHBEERESR laws and regulations
B —MREEEH o BFIRRER
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt 5.3.3 Compliance with
48§ 48 B 1EB 7.1 practices brought against the issuer or its employees laws and regulations
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases. B REER
e e A E A‘JZEE,\TE&EEE% & BT R
RHENEE RFRER
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing  5.3.2 Improper conduct
R 82 45 S 1ERT.2 procedures, and how they are implemented and reporting
monitored. NEIT R
APy S R R A REERITRER A -
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided 53.4 Anti—corruption

A 52 45 IR 1RBT .3

to directors and staff.
HimESERE TRENORESEI -

training
REIFHE

hEER 81 2MERLDA |
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ESG Reporting
Guide of HKEX
EBEBRAGRIRE -
HERERBEESED

Community
HE

Referring section

in this ESG Report
Description ARE -HER
a3t ERBEHEAELS

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EEBS : HERE

General Disclosure

— R E

Policies on community engagement to understand the Section 6
needs of the communities where the issuer operates and 5660

to ensure its activities take into consideration the

communities” interests.

AU RBERTREEMTEMAETENBERIER

BB E Rt R A B BUR e

Our Community

Engagement
HAWEE2 R

KPI B8.1
B8 2 45 W45 12881

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental 6.2
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).
EIERESE(NHE REFH SLIFK BE X

- 85) -

Focus areas of
contribution

BIEREE

KPI BS.2
48 42 45 IE 1ZB8.2

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus 6.2.1
area.

EEIRBEMPAER(MEEHER)
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TASKFORCE ON CLIMATE-RELATED FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES (*TCFD") REPORT
RixtHEI B 15 R T(E/ A (TTCFD)) 3R &

1.

INTRODUCTION TO THE TCFD

1.1

1.2

As an investment company, the value of the Company
is directly related to the underlying investments. Climate
Change is a systemic risk which can affect the value of
our investment portfolio and we seek to manage that
risk on behalf of the stakeholders. The Board is
supportive of initiatives that contribute towards
mitigating Climate Change risk on the Company’s
investments. The recommendations of the Taskforce on
Climate-Related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) with
reference to the specific guidance for asset owners are
used to prepare this second report.

We consider to incorporate climate risk management
into investment processes, because investors are
expected to concern about the investees’ carbon
emission, emission targets and their steps to meet these
targets. It is in the interest of the industry that the
market is able to effectively reflect climate- related
risks.

GOVERNANCE

2.1

2.2

TCFD Recommended Disclosure
a)  Describe the board’s oversight of climate-related

risks and opportunities

2.1.1 Details of our board oversight and environmental
policy are set out in section 2.2.2 and 2.2.3 of the
ESG report.

TCFD Recommended Disclosure
b)  Describe the management’s role in assessing and

managing climate-related risks and opportunities

2.2.1Three of the committees/working group in the
management structure will be specifically
responsible for assessing and managing
climate-related risks. They are:

a) Investment Committee for monitoring the
investment portfolio, including the
climate-related exposures.

1.

TCFDfE /Y

1.1

1.2

B
2.1

2.2

ER—RIE AR ARAIMEENR
ERBNREBEEBAR - RIERENL
RERGERRE - HAIZZRMH
BEHEGEE  RMSKAKRFER
EEEZRR BEELIFHEIME
B AN A& A TE B R VE AR 2L R B
BOFE BE o 3P PR SRR AR R B S B BR
TE/NA(TCFD)N I - P aEY
BEMABANABIESIGREE MR

%o

BEMERBRREREEMNARE

B RASEHREESHTRE

HRORENREE BERERERER

Eﬁ:ﬁ%ﬁffﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁxmﬁ%oéﬂﬁﬁ%

ﬁﬁm EA“?’JE}&I&@%E\,TRWE@H
75?3;: TEEHME

N,
IN
/=)

TCFDEZEE
a) HEEE
ﬁm@—m E

S5 A A A L e e

QINEECEERRERR ZFE
HRERE HELERBRESE
222822367 °

TCFDERNE
b) BB REERIEM

BAERLEENAE

221 ERBEBTHE=AZAE/
TrRMAEFIR K ERERR
RABMES - A -

a) WREZBEE® AEERER
BEHa BRARARR

B o
FEISRE 81 2BMERAR | —E-=FEH
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3.
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b) Executive Committee for implementing
relevant policies and procedures.

¢)  Risk Management Working Group, for
maintaining the risk register and managing
the risks.

2.2.2 For our investing, our Investment Committee and

Executive Committee will be responsible for the
identification and assessment of climate related
risks and opportunities in the investments on
annual basis. Investment Manager will then take
into account of them in investment decisions. We
plan to implement this strategy on or before
2025.

STRATEGY

3.1

3.2

TCFD Recommended Disclosure

Describe the climate-related risks and
opportunities the organisation has identified over
the short, medium and long-term

3.1.1We consider the physical and transition risks both

in the perspectives of the company and the
investee companies. We will also analyze them
over the short to long-term. For our investment
portfolio, going forward, the Company will
identify those sectors and companies which are
more likely to be adversely affected by the
transition to a low-carbon economy and will tilt
away from them. Companies with high green
revenues are of potential of climate-related
opportunities.

TCFD Recommended Disclosure

Describe the impact of climate-related risks and
opportunities on the organisation’s business,
strategy and financial planning

o RERBREEIFEN BF
#E = B B RO T3 E IR

B o

222 BMINREMS REZE®
EHTZEBERARTFI R
A fi SR A R L B DA R I
g REKEBRHINVRERE
Bt hzERE - LATER =
T_NFRZATEEZRE o

R g

31| TCFDEZIKE
a)  HMEERTEMRINE - RH
KAREAR R R b R 8

3 RMEERRA KB EHRAT]
AEEZREERRRSERRER
BATEEERERROMLSE
Rk - EFHRERANS
FREARIR - AR A 8R! A A5 28
RRE R B A XD AEHEE
BRI PZENTERRAT - &
BRENQFAFEENRRK
HEE -

32| TCFDEZHE
by il EIRAGEEE R RS R
5 KB RMBRENTE




32V EARRRI R EHEN AL
BEREELRRE - LRI TE
TRK HYERERER:

3.2.1Climate change risks are assessed both in the
perspective of the Company and to our investment
portfolio and the following key risks, their impact

and management measures are identified:

Management
Type of risks Sources of risks Impact measures
EgER NS b4 BB

Physical risks
BEAR

Physical risks resulting
from climate change can
be event driven (acute) or
longer-term shifts (chronic)
in climate patterns.
HREBEELEHNHE B
[ B 7T R A Bl S 1 (3R 3%
M) HREREREEY
(REAM) 5[ -

Physical risks may have
financial implications
for companies, such as
direct damage to assets
and indirect impacts
from supply chain
disruption.
ERARTREEEEE
KRBT E  fIMEE
EPENEETE LY
JEEPERZELE -

FEER 81 @RMARAF |

In relation to the
company: Monitor
the impact regularly
and continue the risk
assessment

MEARAME - EHES
BB W RENERR

In relation to our
investment portfolio:

REMOREAAT

ol

Understand the potential
physical risks to which
our investments are
exposed, by analysis of
ESG Reports of each
individual investee.

BBIMBEARES
KHERE -t RER
BE BREIMOKE
FRERRHEE B RS o

We will also consider
how climate-related
risks and opportunities
are factored into
relevant investment
strategies
BT E B G R
1% 8 8 = B K2 4 38 4 A
S

—E-=5EH
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Type of risks
EpER

Sources of risks

B

Impact

za

Management
measures

EEER

Transition risks

EERR

CHINA CASTSON 81 FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED |

Policy and legal risks
R AR

An investment company is
strictly involved in and affected
by the latest developments
in climate-related policies
and regulations, such as the
potential introduction of policy
measures by governments and
regulators

RERAEKS
BUR FOERI =
BT & B g Tl
BERTE

B 57

z

H
Ell

N
240
e

=24
=
ab
BE

Market risk
TI5 R
Investors’ appetite for
sustainable finance products
has increased and continues to
grow
REEHAHESRERT
SRIE AN FHE LS N

Uncertainties over new
regulations (greenhouse
gas emissions reduction,
carbon taxes, etc.) will
increase operating costs.
The increasing demands
and requirements of
climate-related information
disclosure may increase the
compliance costs.

FUER OR = REBREE -
MR ) B T HETE MG 15
g B AR - B R R 48
HAERBENTRNE
SRASER I8 0 - AT AR 3
ME A o
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In relation to the
Company:
HARFIME

Closely monitor
climate-related laws,
regulations and policies
enforcement.

=) B R IR A R OR
B AR RBERAT -

In relation to our
investment portfolio:

AEMANREAAMS -

Understand the potential
transition risks to which
our investments are
exposed, by monitoring
the carbon footprints of
each individual investee.
BREEREIREY
KEV R 2 B - B R T AP
V1% & P H B 60 B B
RS o

Monitor the market
development of green
finance products.
EEGETREMNT
R o



3.3

Sources of risks

E e

Type of risks
EpER

Impact
FE

Management
measures

Bk

Reputational risk

BERAR

Lack of or delayed
actions for tackling
climate change may
damage our reputation
Bz YRR Z (L TT
B REDIRE - EQ

Closely monitor
climate-related laws,
regulations and policies
enforcement.

B EERIEAERERE -
TERR B BURIT -

3.2.2 As an investment company, there are significant
financial impact of physical and transition risks
that may arise on each investee company’s
business, strategies for products and services,
value chain, and operations. For our stock
selection, we will integrate the investees’
climate-related risks and opportunities into their
evaluation and assessment using the bottom-up
approach.

TCFD Recommended Disclosure
Q) Describe the resilience of the organisation’s

strategy, taking into consideration different
climate-related scenarios, including a 2 degree
Celsius or lower scenario

3.3.1Scenarios analysis is a tool to estimate the
financial impact of climate-related risks on the
portfolio assets. However, its effectiveness will be
dependent on the data availability of investee
companies.

3.3.2Translating the climate scenario analysis into an
investment strategy is also a challenge because
there is a wide range of plausible climate scenarios
and the probability of any given scenario is
difficult to determine. Subject to the data
availability, various climate scenario analysis tools
and climate stress tests methodologies may be
employed in future.

A ERIE

3.3

322EB—XKIEE QT -

REBAEHREHERARNE
% B MRISRE - BEEK
LEELBEAMBEE - UER
msE - HASEBE T LA
% BREHRNRIRARAR
KB A B R R fhET e e

TCFDEZIRE

HOR B R RES BT - XEEA
R IEMEBIER (B2 CHER
#EE)

FEER 81 SBMERAR |

BEIMERR G RIXHERR
REREHABEN B EN—
BTA - AW ERZGEEURR
BPMREHRABEEREH
i

332 BRIRBED B BT E K

HAKB  REZARZEERN
EERAEMRIRBEAREMEE
MBRMEERRERERET -
BIREAEGHE SR
ERABEERREBERAMIAR
RAREE SR ATTE -

—E-=5EH
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RISK MANAGEMENT

4.1

4.2

4.3

TCFD Recommended Disclosure
a)  Describe the organisation’s process for identifying
and assessing climate-related risks

4.1.1For the process of identifying and assessing
climate related risks in the perspective of the
Company, stakeholder engagement and
materiality assessment are done to cover the
climate change and details of which are include in
section 2 of the ESG report.

4.1.2 For the climate-related risks in the perspective of
our investment portfolio, we plan to perform
material environmental risk analysis on an annual
basis in future. This is to understand
environmental factors that pose risks to financial
assets and translate these to inform firms’
investment decisions. The environmental risk
assessments will also be conducted at sector and
market level initially.

TCFD Recommended Disclosure
b)  Describe the organisation’s process for managing
climate-related risks

4.2.1 Details are set out in the column of management
measure at Section 3.2.1.

TCFD Recommended Disclosure
c¢)  Describe how processes for identifying, assessing

and managing climate-related risks are integrated
into the organisation’s overall risk management

4.3.1 Climate Change is considered as a principal risk to
the Company and our risk management working
group will regularly review it and report to the
Board.

4.3.2For our investment portfolio, the Investment
Committee together with our Investment Manager
will identify, assess and monitor the related
climate-related risks.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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5.

METRICS AND TARGETS

5.1

5.2

TCFD Recommended Disclosure

a) Disclose the metrics used by the organisation to
assess climate-related risks and opportunities in
line with its strategy and risk management process

5.1.1For the metrics of the Company’s climate related
risk, we use the various KPIs as required by the
Listing Rules. Details of them are set out in the
Section 3 of the ESG Report.

5.1.2For the metrics of the investment portfolio, we
would use the carbon emission intensity. However,
there are several common measurement units in
use and they are per floor area, employee and
revenue, respectively. As the measurement unit
varied across the investee companies, this makes
meaningful comparison difficult.

TCFD Recommended Disclosure

b) Disclose Scope 1, Scope 2, and if appropriate,
Scope 3 greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions, and the
related risks

5.2.1The GHG emission intensity of investee companies
can help understand their carbon footprint.

5.2.2Based on their latest ESG/Sustainability reports
(mainly of their financial year 2022) of our top 10
portfolio companies, a summary of their carbon
footprints is prepared below. The Company has
not independently verified the information
published by such listed issuers. All figures cited
below are approximate ones only.

5.

b=
5.1

5.2

ERER

TCFDEZINE

a) BEMBREERLRERSER
23 T T AR AR R A S R i iB
BT ER A B $5 12

5.1.1 AR A M RIEERERE R RN
5 HfR LR A RE M
THRRRAAIIER - HFBER

BoHeRERMEFRIM -

B OX T

b5

P

SA2BREHAMNIERME - A
ERMBECRE - A - AL
REREERNBAESM - Ko 5l
RIGRERE - B8 ki - |
REHRAAAESEMLZTHE
Rl HAELTEEENLER -

TCFDEZWE
b) BT ET - & E2 % EES (m
BA)EERERREBEERR

521 REHRAAINEEREEHE A
ERE THRESZIREH -

S22 T ABMTARIREAE AR
RETRE - DIRBZERRR
MEIRE g RERAIE
BERBES(ZEEHUE -
FHBER)RE - RRFIWE
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Top 10 Equity Investments TREBARIRE
2022 2021
-E-C ~5C-%
Scope 1 Scope 2 Emission Scope 1 Scope 2 Emission
Stock Code ~ Company Name Direct Emission ~ Indirect Emission Intensity Direct Emission  Indirect Emission Intensity
ks 2EEE HEEVERHH  SEERHN HHE HEEVERHH  SEERHN HisE
(intC0) (intC0¢) (in tC0.£) (intC0) (intC0.¢) (in tC0.£)
(RHZEEE  (RHCEEE  (RMCELE (RNCELE (RECELE (PECALE
2 1) £5i) £ 57 £ £5i)
T 187 China Oriented International 32297 801.77 0.08 per thousand 5,266.40 1,175.21 0.0022 per thousand RMB
Holdings Limited RMB Revenue Revenue
AR ERERERAT ETTARMAE0.08 ETTARKAE0.0022
2 550 Kingkey Intelligence Culture 383 NIA 0.12 per Employee 5.73 NIA 0.18 per Employee
 Holdings Limited T BEER0.12 TER 5%ER018
REEENIARARAA
31025 KNT Holdings Limited 52.10 419.70 6.58 per million 69.40 41750 6.09 per million HK$
BEERERAE HK$ Revenue Revenue
BREATNEESS BREATNEE09
4 9689 JTF International Holdings 330 91.79 2.9 per Employee 293 140.67 3.88 per Employee
Limited 5RERLY FHEE388
SREARERARAT
5 16% Okura Holdings Limited N/A 5,151.20 0.69 per pachinko and N/A 5,746.00 0.74 per pachinko and
TER pachislog machine TER pachislot machine
SHEABAAR SERTERRR
A3l ATH#0.69 A ATH074
6 918 JD. Com, Inc. 2,399,143.89 1,197,932.19 3.44 per million 238,774.90 271,067.08 *
RREERAERAR RMB Revenue
SRETARBAE3 M
7 388 Hong Kong Exchanges and 307.00 15,236.00 * 102.00 15,973.00 *
Clearing Limited
ERRORGEERARLA
8§ 3N PT International Development 685.00 625.00 7.3 per Employee 138.00 568.00 4.63 per Employee
Corporation Limited BHEST3 B4EES463
REEREROFERAA
9 1810 Xiaomi Corporation 7,122.60 78,620.01 0.31 per million 9,096.95 73,7321 0.25 per million
PREE RMB Revenue RMB Revenue
BRETARBUE03! BEETARMUE025
109988 Alibaba Group Holding Limited ~ 928,939.00 8,897,965.00 5.4 per million 926,779.00 4,445,238.00 6.30 per million
MeECERRERAA RMB Revenue RMB Revenue
BRETAREMES4 BEETARBUE630
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5.3

TCFD Recommended Disclosure
c¢)  Disclose the targets used by the organisation to

manage climate-related risks and opportunities
and performance against targets

5.3.1The ability for diversified investors to set
meaningful climate targets is inhibited by the
paucity in credible methodologies and data
currently available. The Company is supportive of
the development of target-setting methodologies,
and of the increasing completeness of carbon
datasets. The Company wishes to set meaningful
climate targets for its investment portfolio subject
to the limitations of currently available data.

5.3

TCFDEZIRE

Q)

oA E R RIxEREER X
WEBERMBR  AREEZX
ERELES

53TETZTRENKREELETRTE

BEEENRIRER B%iﬂﬁﬁ&
TR - ERTA ABIBARMAE
B o ARRIXFHIE BIRRES
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS
EEZEE

108

CHAIRMAN AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Lam Man Chan M.H. (“Dr. Lam”), aged 74, joined the
Company on 11 February 2014. He has over 30 years of
management experience and in depth knowledge of the electronics
industry. Dr. Lam has been awarded the Medal of Honour in July
2022 in recognition of his dedicated service to the Kwai Tsing
District, especially in the area of crime prevention.

Dr. Lam was graduated from the World Electric Engineering
College in 1969. Dr. Lam holds an honorary degree of Doctor of
Science from Armstrong University in the United States. He is
currently the chairman of Ngai Lik Group Limited (“Ngai Lik”). He
is responsible for the formulation of corporate strategy and overall
direction of Ngai Lik. Dr. Lam has invested in different industries,
including securities broking, finance business, hotel development,
motor cycle business and properties investment. He was granted
the Young Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong in 1994 and the
World Outstanding Chinese Award in 2005.

He was once a standing committee member of Qingyuan Region
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (“CPPCC") and a committee member of Guangdong
Provincial Committee and Dongguan Regional Committee of
CPPCC. Dr. Lam had been the chairman and executive director of
Ngai Lik Industrial Holdings Limited (now known as Yuan Heng Gas
Holdings Limited) (stock code: 332), a company publicly listed on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”), during the period from 1992 to 2010. Dr. Lam is the
husband of Ms. Ting Lai Ling who is the Project and Administration
General Manager of the Company.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lee Kwok Leung (“Mr. Lee”), aged 70, joined the Company
on 8 May 2014, Mr. Lee is a member of Nomination Committee.
He is a licensed person to carry out type 9 (asset management) and
Type 4 (Advising on securities) regulated activities under the SFO
since 2003 and 2018 respectively. He has over 15 years of relevant
experience by serving as one of the responsible officers of
Silverstone Investments Limited (“Silverstone”) for Type 9 (asset
management) for the period from 2003 to December 2020 and
licensed representative for Type 4 (advising on securities) regulated
activity under SFO for the period from 2018 to December 2020.
Silverstone has been the investment manager of the Company for
the period from 2015 to December 2020 providing investment
advisory services to and managing investment portfolios for
professional/institutional investors mainly in Greater China and
Hong Kong to the Company.

Mr. Lee is currently the responsible officer of Success Advance
Investments Limited (“Success Advance”) for Type 9 (asset
management) and the licensed representative for Type 4 (advising
on securities) regulated activity under SFO. Success Advance is the
investment manager of the Company since 25 January 2021 which
carries out Type 9 (asset management) and Type 4 (advising on
securities) regulated activity under SFO providing investment
advisory services to and managing investment portfolios for
professional/institutional investors mainly in Greater China and
Hong Kong to the Company.

Mr. Lee has strong experience in portfolio construction, portfolio
management, risk assessment and investment due diligence.
Furthermore, Mr. Lee had been the Managing Director of BOCI
Direct Management Limited from 1992 to 1999. In this private
equity fund, he was responsible for the overall management of the
fund.

BITES
FEREE(TFXE]D 70 R-F—NFh
ANBIMAERRE - FEERRLEEZEGKE °
BE-_ZT=FR-_FT- \FEABZFMUEK
BITETREIRRHEEERE) RF4EGLE
REBR)ZMELTINFEAL - RE-FT
—¢ —E-TET-_AHRETRAREAR
RE(TRA D) FRERZRPEEDITETEIR (R
ﬁiﬁgﬁfﬁ)xiﬁa/ﬁinﬁa/\E\Z—&é_
—N\FE_Z_TE+-_AHRETRAES R
%&Hﬂfﬂﬂﬁﬂlﬁ—l—%ﬁﬁ(/ﬁ ERRHER)X
%EE/EEJJZ%HQ?R% WA BNSFRBLR -
ROB-_T-RAFE_T_ZTF+_AHFEAR
NAMBRELE  TERRPEMBENEE
BEREERHEREGRARBIEEREHAS -

FREBAMBEREREBRAR ([BE]DFR
EHRNMAEHRIBETEIR(RHEEER) XA
EERBZBEAERFME (MBS RABR)X
RERZFERR BREEB-_FT=-—%—A
“tHRRBEEARANKRERLE  HEEFNR
HEKRMBETEERHEEERE) RF4E B
ERREBR)ZIRERY  TER/RATEME
BOEE BEREERHREFARBNER
REMAE -

$5‘E$T§ﬁﬁ ENBRKREAS KREMEATE

R MR EEREELR - 1 Tk
E%-Hh:iﬁ—ﬂﬂhif’sﬁT_TEEPEE&E%
BEERAFMEZTARLE -EHALEEETEA
BEESHWERER

TEER 81 EBRARRQE | ZBZ=HFFH

109




BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS
EECRE

110

Mr. Lee is currently the chairman and executive director of Mayer
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 1116), a company listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lee is currently an independent non-executive director of EV
Dynamics (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 476), a company listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lee was an independent non-executive director of Imperial
1076), a
company listed on Hong Kong Stock Exchange, for the period from
November 2013 to August 2022.

Pacific International Holdings Limited (stock code:

For the period from 1 June 2020 to 27 August 2021, Mr. Lee was
an independent non-executive director of Guoan International
Limited (delisted in November 2022 from the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange/old stock code: 143).
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Ng Chi Yeung Simon (“Dr. Ng”), aged 66, joined the
Company on 26 November 2013. He is also the Chairman of
Nomination Committee and a member of Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Dr. Ng is a solicitor in Hong Kong (non-practising). He was a
consultant of Rowland Chow, Chan & Company, a law firm in
Hong Kong, for the period from 2003 to 31 December 2020.

Dr. Ng holds a bachelor’s of laws degree from the Manchester
Metropolitan University in the United Kingdom in 1986, a master
degree in Chinese and Comparative Law from the City University
of Hong Kong in 1997 and a doctoral degree in worship studies
from the Robert Webber Institute for Worship Studies in June
2013.

Dr. Ng is currently an independent non-executive director of
Winfair Investment Company Limited (stock code: 287), a company
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Dr. Ng was a Part-time Lecturer of the Department of Professional
Legal Education of The University of Hong Kong for the period
from September 2013 to December 2020.

Dr. Ng was an independent non-executive director of a publicly
listed company in Hong Kong, namely, Century Sage Scientific
Holdings Limited (now known as Be Friends Holding Limited) (stock
code: 1450) for the period from 13 June 2014 to 29 September
2021.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Tam Yuk Sang Sammy (“Mr. Tam”), aged 60, joined the
Company on 31 December 2013. He is also the Chairman of Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee and a member of
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Tam graduated from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in Accountancy, and holds a
Master of Science degree in Professional Accountancy from
University of London. He is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Tam possesses good accounting
and financial experiences and qualification, and expertise in risk
management and sustainability.

Mr. Tam is currently the director of Essentack Limited, a corporate
strategy and management advisory company. Mr. Tam had once
been an independent non-executive director of Huajin International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 2738), a company listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, for the period from 23 March 2016 to 17
March 2023.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Law So Fun (“Ms. Law"), aged 56, joined the Company on
28 December 2023. She is a member of each of Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company.

Ms. Law holds Bachelor degree of Business (Management) —
Specialization in Human Resource Management of Royal Melbourne
Institute of Technology in Australia in 2011. Ms. Law also holds a
Diploma in Management Studies (with distinction) of Lingnan
University awarded jointly by The Hong Kong Management
Association in 2009.

During the past 20 years, Ms. Law has once been the Administration
& Executive Supervisor of Yong Zheng CPA Limited (formerly
known as Chu and Chu, CPA). Ms. Law possesses solid secretarial
and administration works experiences and qualification, such as
human resources and office administration.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EFTHESE

The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is principally engaged in investment in equity and
debt securities of listed and unlisted companies. During the year,
there were no significant changes to the Group’s principal
activities. Further discussion and analysis of these activities,
particular of important events affecting the Company that have
occurred since the end of the financial year and an indication of
likely future developments in the group’s business can be found in
the Chairman’s Statement and the Management Discussion and
Analysis set out on pages 4 to 10 of this Annual Report. The
description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the group
during the year is set out in the Section 5.2.2 Risk profile and
Section 5.2.3 Principal Risks identified in the Corporate Governance
Report. The above discussion and description form part of this
Report of Directors.

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES, POLICIES AND RESTRICTIONS
China Castson 81 Finance Company Limited (the “Company”, and
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is an investment
company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) under Chapter 21 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”).

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company may change
the Company’s investment objectives and policies from time to
time. The Company is also subject to the investment restrictions set
forth in the Listing Rules and its Bye-laws. Details of the major
investment objectives, policies and restrictions of the Company are
set out as below:

Objectives

The Company is an investment company with the primary objective
of achieving capital appreciation as well as generating income from
interests and dividends by investing in listed and unlisted
companies in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), Hong
Kong and Macau (collectively, “Greater China”), United States,
Asia-Pacific Region and any other appropriate countries/capital
markets as the Board may direct from time to time. The Company
also intends to invest in unlisted companies with the potential to
seek a listing on the Stock Exchange or any overseas stock
exchanges.
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Policies
The Group has adopted a diversified investment approach and has

added the use of derivatives for the purposes of hedging the
investment portfolio. Below are the key details of policies:

1. Investment will normally be made in the form of equity
securities, equity related securities (including but not limited
to convertible notes, preference shares, options, warrants
and/or futures contracts) and/or debt securities in listed and
unlisted companies in Greater China, United States,
Asia-Pacific Region and any other appropriate countries/
capital markets engaged in different industries including (but
not limited to) manufacturing, bio-technology, services,
telecommunication, technology, infrastructure,
pharmaceuticals and property sectors, aiming at maintaining
a balance in the Company’s exposure to different industry
sectors.

2. The Group may, where the Board considers appropriate, use
or invest in derivatives for hedging purposes. In this
connection, the Group may buy, write or sell warrants,
covered warrants, options or traded options on its underlying
investments. The Group may also short-sell shares, buy or sell
futures contracts on stock indices or shares (if any) as a
means to hedge against adverse price movements of its
investments.

3. When considering and identifying potential investments, the
Group will seek to identify entities with a record of positive
profit growth, strong management, and high levels of
technical expertise, and research and development
capabilities as well as management commitment to long-term
growth. At the same time, the Group is also flexible in
considering investments in companies or other entities which
are considered by the Board and the investment manager of
the Company as being special or in recovery situations with
return potential.
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4. As to the period of investment, the investments are usually
intended to be held for capital appreciation. The actual
holding period will depend on the return from investment
and the potential of listing on the Stock Exchange or other
internationally recognized stock exchanges. The Group will,
however, realise investments where the Board believes the
realization would be in the best interests of the Group or
where the terms on which such realisation can be made are
considered by the Board as particularly favorable to the
Group.

The above investment policies may be amended by the Board from
time to time without approval by the Company’s shareholders, but
subject to the investment restrictions as set forth below or as
applicable to the Company from time to time.

Investment Restrictions

Under the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules relating to the listing of
investment companies, certain restrictions on investments are
imposed on the Company. The Board has resolved that the
Company may not:

1. either itself or through its wholly-owned subsidiaries or in
conjunction with any connected person take legal, or
effective, management control of underlying investments and
in no event will the Company itself or through its
wholly-owned subsidiaries own or control more than 30% (or
such other percentage as may from time to time be specified
in the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers as being
the level for triggering a mandatory general offer) of the
voting rights in such company or other entity, except in
relation to such wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company;

2. invest in any company or entity other than wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company if such investment will result in
more than 20% of the net asset value of the Company
(calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Company’s Bye-laws) being invested in such company or
entity as at the date the investment is made;

4. ERKREHIE AKE-RESEZE

BREUMBEARNEE BERFEHBET
& (o] e S 70 B 32 P s EL At BRI R B2 T RE 55
RS EMZENTE - A - HEZEH
FEARANAARBZRENDXES
ERREHERGERLELAEEER
AIREEBEBZERKE -

i EBRRARRERRBRRAEZERT
HEESIRHENR  FETUATHITFERR
KRR ZELERS] -

RER S

BEAFAE EHRAERRERE L2
% ARABEETRARHOR - #HGDH
o AAFTEG

1. BUTHEBREZENBARIEREME
BATHSHEBREZZZIERERE
HAE - MAMERBRT KRB EELT
FEBHTEMBRAREEREHEHAL
AREMER (FRAARRTEMB R
AIRRON) 2 R EHE30%IA L (FFE(R TR
BRaFTRDTRRERABERSZE
WEEKFZHEMBEDL) |

2. BRENARBZEME R RIAIN ZAEM
REANERNS  EERARTEEF
B (REAR B RMEGEHE) RIFH &R
BZHEB20%RRERZAARERZ
BRT  RENZARRER

TEER 81 EBRARRQE | ZBZ=HFFH

115




REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

116

3. without the prior approval of the Shareholders by ordinary
resolution, buy or sell commodities, commodity contracts or
precious metals, except that the Group may purchase and sell
future contracts on stock indices and securities which are
secured by commodities or precious metals; and

4. invest more than 30% of the Company’s assets outside
Greater China to the extent of contravening its primary
objective of achieving capital appreciation by investing in
listed and unlisted companies in Greater China.

The Company has to comply with investment restrictions 1 and 2
above at all times while it remains listed as an investment company
under Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules. Investment restriction 3 can
be changed subject to Shareholders’ approval and investment
restriction 4 can be changed without Shareholders’ approval.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023
and the state of affairs at that date are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 129 to 203. The Directors do not
recommend the payment of a dividend.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited consolidated financial statements and restated and
reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 204. This summary
does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are
set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company has not purchased, sold or redeemed any of its own
shares during the year ended 31 December 2023.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
Donations to charitable organization by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$45,000.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 133.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the Company had no distributable
reserve because its accumulated losses amounted to be about
HK$372.4 million.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed in
the below section headed “Share Option Scheme” below, no
equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or
existed during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

2022 Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 27 June 2022 (the
“Adoption Date”), the Company adopted a new share option
scheme (the “2022 Scheme”) for the primary purpose to
recognising and acknowledging the contributions the eligible
participants had or may have made to the Group. Eligible
participants include the full-time and part-time employees,
executives, officers, directors (including executive directors and
non-executive directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
and other non-employee participants (as defined in the 2022
Scheme). Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the 2022
Scheme will remain valid for a period or 10 years from the date of
its adoption.
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The Company was authorised to grant share options under the
2022 Scheme for subscription of up to a total of 14,142,318
shares, representing approximately 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of adoption.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the 2022 Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted to any individual
in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. Options granted to substantial
shareholders or independent non-executive directors in excess of
0.1% of the Company’s share capital or with a value in excess of
HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the Company'’s
shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up on or before the relevant
acceptance date, upon payment of HK$1.00 for the options
granted. Options may be exercised at any time from the date of
grant of the share option to a period to be notified by the Board to
each grantee at the time of making such offer, which shall not
expire later than 10 years from the date of grant.

The exercise price is determined by the Board at its absolute
discretion and will not be less than the higher of (a) the closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
guotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant; (b) the average closing price of the shares of the Company
as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the 5 business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (c) the nominal value of a share of the Company on
the date of grant.

During the period from the Adoption Date to the year ended 31

December 2023, no share options were granted, exercised, lapsed
and cancelled under the 2022 Scheme.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period
are set out in the note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were as follows:

Chairman and Non-executive Director:
Dr. Lam Man Chan

Executive Director:
Mr. Lee Kwok Leung

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Dr. Ng Chi Yeung, Simon

Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy
Ms. Florence Ng (resigned on 28 December 2023)

Ms. Law So Fun (appointed on 28 December 2023)

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Ms. Law So Fun, Dr.
Ng Chi Yeung, Simon and Dr. Lam Man Chan will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offers
themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2023, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in
the Listing Rules, below were the interest and short positions of
the directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance) as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of part XV of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited:
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Number of Shares held

FisiRa 8B
Percentage
Long Short No. of share of Issued
Name of Directors Position Note Nature of interest position position options held share capital
FrisBRE LERTRA
EEHSR B iz Kt EEnE 1R RR 8B Aot
Lam Man Chan Chairman and 1 Beneficial owner 35,305,770 - - 24.96
(“Dr. Lam") Non-executive ERERA
& (THEL]) Director
IRRFENTES
Note: Hfet -
1. Dr. Lam is the sole shareholder of Goodchamp Holdings Limited. He 1. MiE I AGoodchamp Holdings Limited M —f%

thus has the beneficial interest in the 35,305,770 shares of the
Company and his wife, Ms. Ting Lai Ling, who is one of the
management team members of the Company, is deemed to have an
interest on such shares of the Company.

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the share option scheme disclosures in note 29
to the consolidated financial statements, at no time during the
year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or
their respective spouse or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

oo EEEF35,305, 770 A ARIRND P HEBE
mfEE MEZETERLZT (RRFEEEBKK
B2 ) WRERLAARB RO HESEE

EEREROHGESF ZEF

Brira M mRME20B e BB EE
Sh - REREMESRHE MEEFAREFSAZE
BRRREF F LR KITEEFMAEBALLT]
Bin sk fE s M 2 #F AR B IR ER] M AE A
2 BEEFANMEAEMEIABRBENZS
EF -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, so far as was known to the directors or
chief executive of the Company, the following persons (other than
the interests disclosed above in respect of certain directors and
chief executive of the Company) has, or is deemed to have,
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of
the Company as recorded in the register to be kept under Section
336 of the SFO are set out below:

FERRREMATRARS REEKR
72 s

R-B-=F+=A=+—0 BARTEEL
EETRABAM AT AL (FRE LA
AAETEFREBITHASFRE 225 R
ARAZBHRBBBRO T - BELREAEA
RENRIBRS R EHHEBREATELE
Mz FAES AR

Capacity/Nature of Percentage
Name of shareholders Note interest Long position Short position of holding
BRAE Mit B EREHE Fa RE BKIRB 2L
Goodchamp Holdings Limited 1 Beneficial owner 35,305,770 - 24.96
BB A
Dr. Lam 1 Beneficial owner 35,305,770 - 24.96
ME+ EnfEEA
Ting Lai Ling 1 Beneficial owner 35,305,770 - 24.96
TE® EREBA
Note: Vo=
1. Dr. Lam is the sole shareholder of Goodchamp Holdings Limited. He 1. P18 4 BGoodchamp Holdings Limitedz M — %

thus has the beneficial interest in the 35,305,770 shares of the
Company and his wife, Ms. Ting Lai Ling, who is one of the
management team members of the Company, is deemed to have an
interest on such shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the directors
and chief executive of the Company are not aware of any persons
who had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at
the date of this report.

R o R E 35,305,770 AR FRRMD P EEE
mE MAZTERLZL (RRAREREEK
B2 ) WARER ERARB RN DR -

BEXEEEN RZE_=F+=_RF=+—
H ARAESREZITHRABBTNEREM
ATRAERE 2R ABR G P HRERIEES
MHE WGP E336IKATE 2 S M tr 2 #
AR -

RHADNBERE
BEAARFMEARNENRBERRM  RAR
HEE ARRABLBREBTRABEEAR
ALHRE -
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EMOLUMENTS POLICY

The emoluments policy for the Directors of the Company are
decided by Remuneration Committee, with reference to his
respective qualifications and experiences, duties and responsibilities
with the Company, the Company’s performance and the prevailing
market situation. The Company has adopted a share option
scheme as an incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details
of the scheme are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

INDEPENDENCY OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
The Company considers that all the Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
No contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business
to which the Company was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Except as detailed in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business
of the Company were entered into or existed during the year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

According to the bye-laws, every Director is entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities (to the fullest extent permitted by the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) which he/she
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his
office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Group has maintained
directors’ liability insurance, which provides appropriate cover for
legal actions brought against the Directors and directors of the
subsidiaries of the Group. The level of the coverage is reviewed
annually.

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned as the auditor of the Company
with effect from 28 July 2021 and RSM Hong Kong was appointed
as the new auditor of the Company to fill the casual vacancy with
immediate effect and held office until the conclusion at the next
annual general meeting of the Company. At the 2021 annual
general meeting of the Company, RSM Hong Kong was appointed
as auditor of the Company. Save as disclosed above, there was no
other changes in the Company’s auditor in the past three years.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by RSM
Hong Kong who will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Lam Man Chan
Chairman
Hong Kong, 27 March 2024

BEFZHEMRX
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RSM

To the Shareholders of
China Castson 81 Finance Company Limited
(Continued into Bermuda with limited liability)

29th Floor, Lee Garden Two, 28 Yun Ping Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Castson 81 Finance Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 129 to 203, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “"HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Companies Ordinance.

CHINA CASTSON 81 FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED |

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

BRI MEHMR

EBIMBEERTE_ /)R
MEZH -+

RSM Hong Kong

&5 +8522598 5123
HH +85225987230

T+8522598 5123
F+85225987230

www.rsmhk.com www.rsmhk.com

BPEERISMERAT
(REREFEZHRDAE])
Uiz Bg 3R

=z
=

AZEENE BRI HNEI1292203EFHEE
BI&MABARAR([EAR REMBAR (&
B 2RAMBWmE  MREMBEREREIER
ZEZ=FF+ A=+ —HAZEAVBRRERE
REEZBIEFEZGEEREER  KEeBEakHE
tEEREER SEEZEIBRRIELEERENR
EX  ERGEMBRENT  BREERGHEK
RER -

AZBRR  HEVBHRRERBE BT
A ([BREMAE]) BMNEEMBREE
Al([BAMBHRELE ) BEMAFERR &
SER_F_=FT-_A=1T—HNGEEHHKNR
MAREBEZALFENGAMBERAREE
Reng Y ER(ARKIDNEEREZR
R o



BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. We have determined that there are no key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise ERBEEBRSEREITRTNBRES - NXH
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism EMERFELE  RISFEEREE - BT

throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

a7l e w4 B O BREF S B AR T 28 BUAR & B
BRRFEEANBRBRANER - &R
WITEMEFABREZFRR - A RER
FRMEENENRE  FRAZEEE
REERE - ARRFFA RS LB - B -
ERER ERRAKEBEAMEZENS
o HMRBEERAMFMEHNWEKRE
AR PR B L B 1 O R A 3 3R R 85 AR T 2 B
HY B K 5 AR RO B LR

TREBSABONBER  LRHEY
MBHRF  BLFEEY BEERH
ERNARMERER -

AHAEEMRA BRI E M RE
ERHEMMEBEREN SR -

HEERABACL ST ERORENE
hagw - WRBPIERMETRE  BE
EEFERERANBENEBOEANTEE
MM EERY SERENFELE
RENELEBERRE - WARBERBFE
EARTHEEN AL EEZEMBESS
RBEAZIZHEAWHRERT MR
EoMERBRETR  REBIRMER - &
PifEm D ERBE R B @wE A # LR
BHENRE - AM > RRFEKBRA
e BEREEXFELE -

TEER 81 EBRARRQE | ZBZ=HFFH

127




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BYZHBEIRES

128

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent

auditor’s report is Ms. Ng Wai Kwun.

RSM Hong Kong
Certified Public Accountants
27 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
meBRER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=E—ZT - =F+ — A=+ —HILFE

2023 2022
—=E== —F-—
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
k=3 T FHET
Gross proceeds from operations BIEFTS IR AR 8 VAWLY: 31,896
Revenue Wz
Dividend income from financial assets at EAREBEFAER
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") ([ AR EFAEZR]) 2
TREEZREWA 493
Total revenue B 220 493
Net gains/(losses) on financial BRAREFABRRZZER
assets at FVTPL BEZWE(EE)F8 13,030 (10,819)
Other income H U A 9 63 313
Other gains and losses Hihlzs R EE 10 (15) (36)
Administrative expenses TR (18,436) (16,638)
Other operating expenses HMg e (1,144) (1,268)
Loss from operations BEEBIR (6,282) (27,955)
Finance costs BB B A 12 (¢3)) (36)
Loss before tax REiATE 1R (6,311) (27,991)
Income tax expense Fris i X 13 = -
Loss for the year attributable to ARAMEAEBLEEESE
owners of the Company 14 (27,991)
Loss per share attributable ARERAABILEBRES
to owners of the Company 18
Basic (HK cents per share) HEAE(FRBM) (19.79)
Diluted (HK cents per share) e (F B (19.79)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FeRakHEtEERKER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZ T —_ =+ _-_A=1+—HItFE

130

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Items that may be reclassified to
profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translating foreign
operations

Release of translation reserve upon
deregistration of a subsidiary

Other comprehensive income for the year,

net of tax

Total comprehensive loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company

2023
—E-=
HK$'000
FiExT
FEEIE (6,311)
HitZ2mEYRs :

FENABRERBZHE -

BEBIRBELZENLZH

A — P B 2 BlAR
FRERIE S 1R

FEHMZEYES (EHRHEE)

ARTEEARIEFE
PEBRLE

(6,311)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 81
AR e B AR R

As at 31 December2023 W —_ZE =+ _-_HA=+—H

2023 2022
={ == —ET—- -
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Jiok=a Ti#&x FAET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment WME - WE NEE 19 8,838
Financial assets at FVTPL BARBEFABRzZeMEE 20 11,774
Interest in an associate L NI Eo 22 _
20,612
Current assets MENEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BAREFABRZSMEE 20 21,976 36,775
Other receivables, prepayments and Ef U IR » R RIER
deposits b 23 745 874
Bank and cash balances RITRIB & &% 24 12,177 1,828
39,477
TOTAL ASSETS EEHE 60,089
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

N O

As at 31 December 2023 R —E-—=4+_-A=+—H

2023 2022
—E-= —_E_-_—
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Jiok=a Ti#&x FAT
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ExzRAE
Equity attributable to owners AREEE ABILRERS
of the Company
Share capital % < 25 1,414
Reserves HE& 27 54,201
Total equity RERMEE 55,615
LIABILITIES =K
Current liabilities mEaE
Accruals FEET R 3,344
Secured bank loan BEMRITER 28 1,130
Total liabilities EEHEE 4,474
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EXREELRE 60,089
Net current assets RBEEZFEE 31,644 35,003
Net assets BEEFE 49,304 55,615
Net asset value per share (HK$) BREEFEEGER) 33 0.39

R-E-_ME=—A-TtHEREFESHE AH
THEFRERE

Approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2024 and are
signed on its behalf by:

Lam Man Chan Lee Kwok Leung

R I FER
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CONSDLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
=X *%&ib#ﬁ%@

For the year ended 31 December 2023 £ &= = &

81

—Ft+ A=t —HUIFE

Share-based

Share Share  Contributed  payments
capital premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
kX RGEE  MARH RGARESE  EXGE  BHEE ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS"000
T T Tén T T Tén Tz

Translation Accumulated

As at 1 January 2022 R-E-—FE-f-A 1414 7,725 394,561 44 (77 (320,508) 83,529
Loss for the year EEER - - - - - (27.991) (27.991)
Other comprehensive income Eurmla - - - - 71 - 77
Total comprehensive loss for the year EEPABELE - - - - 7 (27.991) (27.914)
Lapse of share options BREXT - - - (@14) - 44 -
Changes in equity for the year EEREES - - - (@14) 7 (27577) (27914)
As at 31 December 2022 and R-ZB--#+-f=1-H

1 January 2023 R-E-=%-f-H 1,125 394,561 (348,085) 55,615
Total comprehensive loss and changesin -~ EEZAFELERERED

equity for the year (6,311)
As at 31 December 2023 A-E-=E4-A=1-H ’ \ 394,561 (354,39)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FAERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #EZE—T - =F + A=+ —HIFE
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax
Adjustments for:
Bank interest income
Dividend income from financial assets
at FVTPL
Finance costs
Depreciation
Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Net (gains)/losses on financial assets
at FVTPL

Operating loss before working capital
changes

Proceeds from disposal of financial
assets at FVTPL

Payments for purchases of financial
assets at FVTPL

Decrease in other receivables,
prepayments and deposits

Decrease in accruals

Interest income received

Dividend income received

Net cash generated from/(used in)
operating activities

BEXBHLRE

B 75 Bl 5 18

FLATNIEE HE
RITH B WA
BAREABREZ
TREEZREBA
BB KA

e

HEME BEEREBZ
BB
BAREBEHABEZERE
Ez (W) BRFE

I

SEESB BN 2 EEEE

HERAA B ARSEZER
BEZPBHRIA
BERAABEFABSZER
BEZNR

H YRR - FEN RIE MR
R D

F& &R SR

B UWHLE A

B B B A

mEXBEE/ (A2
RaF8

CHINA CASTSON 81 FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED

| ANNUAL REPORT 2023

2023

HK$'000
TRET

19

(QERED))

(19,026)

71,534

(41,297)

134
((3:7))

63

215

10,936

2022
—E-F
HK$'000
FET

(27,991)
)
(493)

36
615

10,819

(17,015)
31,403
(47,932)
1,047

(943)

1
493

(32,946)



2023

HK$'000
TR

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Purchases of property, plant and
equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Repayment of secured bank loan

Interest paid

Net cash used in financing activities

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances

REFXBHERE

BEDE BERR

BREXGAZESFE

MEEFDRSRE

EEBEMBITER
EHE

RMEXBRAZREFE

ReERBAEFEY
igm CHd) R
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R1T MR & &8

10,349
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2022
—E-F
HK$'000
FET

(521)
(36)

(557)

(33,522)

77

35,273

1,828

1,828
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GENERAL INFORMATION

China Castson 81 Finance Company Limited (the
“Company”) is a limited liability company continued into
Bermuda as an exempted company under the laws of
Bermuda. The address of the Company’s registered office is
Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10,
Bermuda and its principal place of business is Flat 18, 9/F,
Block B, Focal Industrial Centre, 21 Man Lok Street,
Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in investments in equity
and debt instruments. The principal activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA").
HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS"); and
Interpretations. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) and with the disclosure requirements of
the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to Definition of Accounting

HKAS 8 Estimates
Amendments to Deferred Tax related to Assets
HKAS 12 and Liabilities arising from a

Single Transaction
Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

None of these developments have had a material effect
on how the Group’s results and financial position for
the current or prior periods have been prepared or
presented.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)
(b) Revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following
amendments to standards and interpretation that have

been issued but are not yet effective.

Effective for

accounting
periods
beginning
on or after
Amendments to HKAS 1 - 1 January 2024
Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current
Amendments to HKAS 1 — 1 January 2024
Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 1 January 2024
(Revised) Presentation of
Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of
a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand Clause
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and To be determined
HKAS 28 — Sale or Contribution by the HKICPA

of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint
Venture

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all amendments to HKFRSs will not have
material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned
otherwise in the accounting policies below (e.g. certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair value).

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The area where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements is disclosed in note 5.

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the

financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. The Group has power over an entity when
the Group has existing rights that give it the current
ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that
significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting rights
held by other parties. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical ability to
exercise that right.

4.

EZETTHRERER

L ERE T HRERIDIZE LR AT HREER
ER TG ERSERRERIN (BIAE
FRARBEHECESREE) °

REMBBERDERBEWHRE LR
HoEPARBETIESER  HE
KERERERAASESHBRZBRES
EHHE -G AVBREAMEBERLZ
BR& R fhET M S AR

RN SGAVBREMERCERES
BREINT » B 5B FH A - L FBR
EERERARIIRNAEFE -

@) #&
HEMBRREBEARFALENBEAR
ABET_A=T—B2¥BHE -
MEBAREAREAZEHE2ER-
BEAEEARRZA2RERMEL
AER® BRI BEEHEERY
BT EBZERRE - B AR EEZS
ZER EAKEZRERNETH
BRIEZEZEABER (AR EER
Bz %% K AAKSEHZER
TS

R EFI R AREEeEEHE
ERERNREMATHAEZEER
SR-EREARERTEEERE
RZBRT  TEEBEER -

TEER 81 EBRARRQE | ZBZ=HFFH

139




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

~ For the year ended 31 December 2023 & — T - =%+ - A=+ —HILF¥E

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, BEESHEREER (E)

140

CHINA CASTSON 81 FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED

(CONTINUED)

(a) Consolidation (Continued) @) &4 (@)
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which WEBAGEEHEEREEARER 2 A
control is transferred to the Group. They are GCAANE  MELEFIER EZBEE
de-consolidated from the date the control ceases. R YN
Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits EERNRARBZRS  E8HRAEH
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated SR T LAL Y - BRIEX HIREIRE
unless the transaction provides evidence of an FRNFTEEEELRIRRE GRIAE
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies HEERTUEE - HEZEE B
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to NEIZEHBESELREE  UER
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the FAREBEMNZBE -
Group.

(b) Separate financial statements (b) BIYEEHEK

In the Company's statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, unless the investment is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale). Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investments. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received or receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currency translation

(0

(i)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"),
which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting
period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. The
transaction date is the date on which the entity
initially recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities. Non-monetary items that are measured
at fair value in foreign currencies are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates when the
fair values are determined.

4.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(c) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(if)

(iii)

CHINA CASTSON 81 FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED |

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements (Continued)

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When
a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all foreign
operations (none of which has the currency of
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into the
Company’s presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of

financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at

average exchange rates for the period (unless
this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates on the
transaction dates); and

—  All resulting exchange differences are

recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the translation reserve.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(0

(d)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation (Continued)
On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of monetary items that form
part of the net investment in foreign entities are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the translation reserve. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified to consolidated profit
or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment, including buildings and

leasehold land, held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost, less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at
initial recognition. To the extent the allocation of the
relevant payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets” in
the consolidated statement of financial position. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between
non-lease building element and undivided interest in
the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.
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4.

CHINA CASTSON 81 FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying

amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as
follows:

Leasehold land and buildings Shorter of lease term

or 4%
Leasehold improvements Shorter of lease term
or 20%
Office equipment, furniture and 20%
fixtures
Motor vehicles 33.3%
Yacht 33.3%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(e)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in

the consolidated statement of financial position when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(f)

Financial assets
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are

recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace. All recognised financial assets are
measured subsequently in their entirety at either
amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets.

Debt investments

Debt investments held by the Group are classified into
amortised cost, if the investment is held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest
income from the investment is calculated using the
effective interest method.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment
the Group makes an election to designate the
investment at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI") (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Such elections are made
on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be
made if the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer’s perspective. Where such an election is
made, the amount accumulated in other comprehensive
income remains in the fair value reserve (non-recycling)
until the investment is disposed of. At the time of
disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to accumulated
losses. It is not recycled through profit or loss. Dividends
from an investment in equity securities, irrespective of
whether classified as at FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised
in profit or loss as revenue.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(9)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and

on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash
and cash equivalents are assessed for expected credit
losses (“ECL").

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified

according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under
HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and
equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of

transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.

4.

BEESHBRESN (B

(9)

FEER 81 SBMERAR |

ReRREEEY

REe LR SEFENERFRNRTR
FHERE FRARITRE SR
BZEHRTFR URABEREGRAE
MERRGZEMRIRBERE - M
ZEANRERSCHNBBERE IR
EREBAR=ZARNIE &BA
AXBENEEEDRR - RBE &R
eEEVIEREEBR ((BHEE
B8] EITRE -

cMEERERTR
SHABREETADREATLA
WRPFZNEREBHBREEIY
SHABMESTAZEEN M - 1#
ETADERARAEBEHR A A
Bk AEREAFBES 2 ETE
e TXHIIBB TS BB ERER
T RS 2 5 HE -

Ep
ERNSBRATENBREEEZR
SRA) B R ERA R R R
BRI A E -

BRIFANSEREAEGEEN  AIKA

BEZEEAPHRRERENHEHRED
T=EA  BRIEESBERARDEE -

—E-=5EH

147




~ For the year ended 31 December 2023 & — T - =%+ - A=+ —HILF¥E

NDTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E YR

n\lj_\

148

4.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
() Other payables

Other payables are recognised initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they

are stated at cost.

(k)  Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received,

net of direct issue costs.

() Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on

behalf of third parties.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit impaired financial
assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss

allowance) of the asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’

rights to receive payment are established.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
(m) Employee benefits

(i)

(if)

(iii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to
the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit
or loss represents contributions payable by the
Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of the dates when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits, and when
the Group recognises restructuring costs and
involves the payment of termination benefits.
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4.

CHINA CASTSON 81 FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(n)

Government grants
A government grant is recognised when there is

reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be
received.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support
to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in
profit or loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(o)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit and at the time of transaction does not give rise
to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and an associate, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(o)

CHINA CASTSON 81 FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED |

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(p)

Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are

reviewed at each reporting date for indications of
impairment and where an asset is impaired, it is written
down as an expense through the consolidated
statement of profit or loss to its estimated recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets. If this is the case,
recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit (“CGU") to which the asset
belongs. Recoverable amount is the higher of value in
use and the fair value less costs of disposal of the
individual asset or the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of the asset/CGU. Present values are
computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset/
CGU whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against
the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the
other assets of the CGU. Subsequent increases in the
recoverable amount caused by changes in estimates are
credited to profit or loss to the extent that they reverse
the impairment.
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CHINA CASTSON 81 FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED |

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(@

Impairment of financial assets
The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on other

receivables. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition of other receivables.

The Group recognises lifetime ECL for the financial
instruments when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the
credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a
In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected

financial instrument.

to result from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable,
forward-looking information that is available without

including historical experience and

undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information
considered includes the future prospects of the
industries in which the Group’s debtors operate,
obtained from economic expert reports, financial
analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and
other similar organisations, as well as consideration of
various external sources of actual and forecast economic
information that relate to the Group’s core operations.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(@

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular financial
instrument;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

- significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same debtor;

- an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.
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CHINA CASTSON 81 FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED |

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(@

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to
have low credit risk if:

(i)  the financial instrument has a low risk of default,

(i) the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term,
and

(iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit
risk when the asset has external credit rating of
“investment grade” in accordance with the globally
understood definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of
“performing”. Performing means that the counterparty
has a strong financial position and there are no past
due amounts.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(@

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default
The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by
the counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, BEESHBEER (E)

(CONTINUED)

(gq) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (q £HEERME(H)
Credit-impaired financial assets CERESHEE
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more SREEE—HHIALENEM (Y
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated ZEMEEZ M AKRBERERK
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. TRFE)ELEFHREERE -©
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired MEAECZEREZEEBREEBR T
includes observable data about the following events: EH A BREE
- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the - BOIARBEFFZEANMER

counterparty; 2

158

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

- the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
counterparty a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

- it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

or

- the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

(q) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, including when the debtor has been placed
under liguidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised

in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information as described above. As for
the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the

reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,

discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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4.

CHINA CASTSON 81 FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED |

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(@

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the
current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime
ECL are no longer met, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at the
current reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain

timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation. The discount rate used to determine the
present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

(r)  Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.

(s) Events after the reporting period
Events after the reporting period that provide additional

information about the Group’s position at the end of
the reporting period or those that indicate the going
concern assumption is not appropriate are adjusting
events and are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. Events after the reporting period that are
not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

In applying the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the directors are required to make
judgements (other than those involving estimations) that
have a significant impact on the amounts recognised and to
make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.
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CHINA CASTSON 81 FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key

sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. In
determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group has to
exercise judgement and make estimation, particularly in
assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators
that may affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be
applied in estimating the recoverable amounts. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
CGU to which the asset belongs. Changing the assumptions
and estimates, could materially affect the recoverable
amounts.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment as at
31 December 2023 was approximately HK$8,294,000 (2022:
HK$8,838,000).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

foreign currency risk, equity price risk, credit risk, liquidity

risk and interest rate risk. The policies on how to mitigate

these risks, if any, are set out below. The management of the

Group manages and monitors these exposures to ensure

appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and

effective manners.

(a)

Foreign currency risk
The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency

risk as most of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in the functional
currencies of the Group entities. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in
respect of foreign currency transactions, assets and
liabilities. The Group monitors its foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Equity price risk

The Group is primarily exposed to equity price risk
through its investment in listed equity securities, if any.
The management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risk and return
profiles. The Group's equity price risk is mainly
concentrated on equity securities quoted on the Stock
Exchange.

The sensitivity analysis below was determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the
reporting period.
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6.

CHINA CASTSON 81 FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(b)

Equity price risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, if the prices of the respective
listed equity securities had been 10% (2022: 10%)
higher/lower, loss after tax for the year ended 31
December 2023 would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$3,134,000 (2022: HK$4,855,000) as
a result of the changes in fair value of listed equity
securities.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet
its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is
exposed to credit risk from its operating activities and
from its financing activities, including equity instruments
and deposits with banks and financial institutions,
foreign exchange transactions and other financial
instruments.

Financial assets at amortised cost

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the financial assets
at amortised cost include bank balances, other
receivables and deposits.
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (Continued)
Bank balances

The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from bank
balances is limited because the counterparties are banks
and financial institutions with high credit-rating
assigned by international credit-rating agencies, for
which the Group considers to have low credit risk. For
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the
Group performed impairment assessment on bank
balances at 12-month ECL by reference to information
published by external credit rating agencies relating to
average loss rates of respective credit rating grades and
concluded the ECL on these balances are insignificant.

Other receivables and deposits

Other receivables and deposits are considered to be low
credit risk when they have a low risk of default and the
issuer have a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term. For the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group
assessed the ECL for other receivables are insignificant
and thus no loss allowance is recognised.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks, the Group does
not have any other significant concentration of credit
risk.
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(d)

Liquidity risk

The Group regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The maturity analysis based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows of the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities is as follows:

MHRRER (F)
(d REBEEERE

AEEEHERBALRBERZRBE
THE UEREFEHRSHE
MREMEERRDHESHEE

BREASEFTESRABZEOR
RIRBSREETZEHEDNMAT

On demand or
less than

1 year Total
PR—F st
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT

FiET

As at 31 December 2023
Accruals

e

Secured bank loan (Note)

As at 31 December 2022
Accruals

e

Secured bank loan (Note)

BERMBITER(WZ)

BHEBRTER (M)

R-—B=-=#+=-A=+—8

H-g-—#£+-A=+-A

3,344
1,130

3,344
1,130

Note:

Secured bank loan with a repayment on demand clause is
included in the ‘on demand or less than 1 year’ time band in
the above maturity analysis. Taking into account the Group’s
financial position, the directors do not believe that it is
probable that the bank will exercise its discretionary rights to
demand immediate repayment. The directors believe that such
secured bank loan will be repaid in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreement.
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(d)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The maturity analysis of secured bank loan subject to a
repayment on demand clause based on scheduled
repayments is as follows:

6. MBEREE(HE)

(d)

Less than
1 year
DPR—EF
HK$°000

T

REBES R (&)

RIFBEETERFERNAETEREKX
BPER B ERRTETETZE

HESHOT :

Between
2 and
5 years Total
MERF st
HK$’000 HKS$000
FiEx FEn

Between
1 and
PACELE
—EME
HK$°000
TER

As at 31 December 2023 R=-T==
+=—A=+—H
Secured bank loan HEFEITER
As at 31 December 2022 RN-—E—-—
+=—A=+—H
Secured bank loan HEMIBITER 559 559 47 1,165
Interest rate risk (e) FIZRE R

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk primarily relates
to the above variable-rate bank loan. It is the Group’s
policy to maintain its borrowing at commercial loan
rates, which include a floating rate of interest within
reasonable ranges so as to minimise the fair value
interest rate risk. The Group currently does not have an
interest rate hedging policy. However, management
monitors interest rate exposure closely and will consider
other necessary actions when significant interest rate
exposure is anticipated.

The effect of changes in interest rates is not expected
to be significant to the consolidated financial
statements. The Group has no other significant
interest-bearing assets and liabilities except for bank
deposits and secured bank loan, the Group’s income
and operating cash flows are substantially independent
of changes in market interest rates.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 6. BERERER (&)
(f) Categories of financial instruments as at 31 f) R=ZB==F+=B=+—8H
December 2023 ZE&m T BEEA
2023 2022
—Eg-= —E-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
TF#T FAT
Financial assets: EHMEE:
Financial assets at FVTPL: BAREBEFABEZEMEE
Mandatorily measured at FVTPL REIE AR EEFAER 31,342 48,549
Financial assets measured at amortised cost H¥ KAt E S REE 12,244 1,929
Financial liabilities: SREE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REEKNATFECSRAE 3,254 4,474
(g) Fair values (9 ARE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets BREMBKAREIRE 2 AEES
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated REENSREBE  REABEHEARE
statement of financial position approximated their NRAERE -

respective fair values.

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. AREFE
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset AREAMBE2EELARNEBEFRSHH
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction EEEFRNMSEBEEGEMI N 2sEH
between market participants at the measurement date. The B - LTARBEAERAARERERE
following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair THEE ZAnEESAKITEAAEHRA
value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the inputs to HEREZBASES B=REER :

valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets F1RBARE: RAEEATHAEES
for identical assets or liabilities that the BoHEREENEER
Group can access at the measurement date. TEBTIS 2 WE CREH
) -
Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included F2WM AL BRI UEEIM
within Level 1 that are observable for the EHR2EELAERR
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. BLASN Z 8 A BUR o
Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. FIWWAEE: EELEABZIIER
B A BUR ©
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers AEBCZBEABREZAHERSHE
out of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or AR EHEREBRRE B RIRNE CH S
change in circumstances that caused the transfer. EERET 2 EMEBAREL -
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy as at 31 December
2023:

7. AREFE (&)
N_E=ZF+_A=Z+—HZAREE
W

Fair value measurements using: Total
DAEHEFERZER: by
Description it Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2023
14 F 3% ~%8-=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx Tl Fil#x Tl
Recurring fair value measurements: BREMDEMNE:
Financial assets SHEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BAREHABR ERAE
- Listed equity securities — LARAES
Fair value measurements using: Total
DrBHEFRAZER: L
Description ik Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2022
F18H 2% £38 “ToCF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FATL TR TAR
Recurring fair value measurements: BEMDEE
Financial assets SHEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BAREHABRZEREE
- Listed equity securities — tiRAES 48,549 - - 48,549

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, there
were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy.

BE_ TR FT-__F+-_F=+—
HIEFE AAEBRZEFNR  F28R
F3R 2 A E|AEMEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE M BRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #EZE—T - =F + A=+ —HIFE

8. GROSS PROCEEDS FROM OPERATIONS

8. EEFSBNELAR
2023 2022

—E-= —_=EF-
HK$'000 HK$'000

TR THET

Gross proceeds from disposal of financial
assets at FVTPL
Dividend income from financial assets

HERAAERFARSEZ
TREE GRS
BAREFARREZ

at FVTPL TREEZRBEA
9. OTHER INCOME 9. Hftilr A
2023 2022
—E-=fF ==
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#Ex FAT
Government grants received (Note) B IR 4 B (BT EE) 312
Bank interest income RITAE WA 1
313
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group Wat: BE-ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

recognised government grants of approximately HK$312,000
related to Employment Support Scheme provided by the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region Government.

AREERBFEFNTRERFREZ R
FhEE | EH BRI AT B 49312,000/8 7T ©

10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

0. Ett s REE

2023 2022
—=— = = —

—_—_<—— —_—= ——

HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAET

Exchange gain

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary

PEE 3¢ e
HEME  BEMERBZER

A -ENBARZEE
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11.

12.

13.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s principal activity is investment in equity and debt
instruments. For the purpose of resources allocation and
assessment of performance, the management regularly
reviews and manages the Group's investments on a portfolio
basis. Information is regularly provided to the management
and mainly includes fair value of respective investees and the
related investment income. Therefore, no segment
information is presented other than entity-wide disclosures.

The Group's revenue is generated from operations in Hong

Kong. The Group’s non-current assets (excluding financial
assets at FVTPL) are located in Hong Kong.

FINANCE COSTS

1.

12.

7 EHE
AEBEZTEXRRHARENBARE
BTA -pERIERMERRME - B
BRAAEETHEAREEARE 2K
B-EHRMEREBREZENTIZEEMN
RAREHRZ AR ERBRRERA -
Bt BRAREERSEMETRES - WE
25D EPEHR -

AEBEZRBZREABEZLE - AEBEZ
FRPDEE (RAANEFABREZEREE
BRON) SRR B

BE & A

2023 2022
—EB-= g

HK$’000 HK$'000

T#ET FAT

Interest on secured bank loan

BHRMBITERZHE

eX)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE
The Group is not subject to any taxation under the
jurisdiction of the Bermuda during the year (2022: Nil).

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax and People’s Republic
of China (“PRC") Enterprise Income Tax was required since
the Group had no estimated assessable profit for the year
(2022: Nil).

Under the two-tiered Profits Tax regime, Profits Tax rate for
the first HK$2 million of assessable profits of the qualifying
Group entity established in Hong Kong will be taxed at
8.25% (2022: 8.25%), and profits above that amount will be
subject to the tax rate of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%). The profits
of the Group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered Profits
Tax rate regime will continue to be taxed at a rate of 16.5%
(2022: 16.5%).

PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been provided at a rate of
25% (2022: 25%).

13.

88X
AEBRFRNBEANERER FERY
ARBE(ZZEZ_ZF: 8&) -

PSR B S A4 S f B R) (= F
S ) ABEREAFEHETE
NRSEHE ([0 ) R FEHiEHR RS -

BEFIERMRS - REBRIZEERE
& F 2 52,000,000/ T ERE R i FI 2 FI 18
TR R A8.25% (T~ — 4 :8.25%) -
il L e BN EE165% (ZE ==
F:16.5%) ZHERB - THEFERM
MEIERE 2 EEERE 2R S EER16.5%
(- :16.5%) 2T EREFK -

B B R25% (“ B - =
25%) 7 B R HHER G -
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13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 13.

The reconciliation between income tax expense and product
of loss before tax multiplied by the applicable tax rates is as
follows:

Fﬁ SHE X (&)
SHAXERBENEEREAHE &

Z“TEEZZDT-

2023 2022
—E== —E -
HK$'000 HK$'000
T8t FHET
Loss before tax Br B AT ES 18 ((FEAR)) (27,991)
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of BEBFER16.5%
16.5% (2022: 16.5%) ZEZZF 1 165%) 2
MR E 2 BIA (4,619)
Tax effect of income that is not taxable BEARBWRA BB 2 (137)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible R[N F 2 2 Bl 75 5 28 55
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERMBERB ZHEFE 4,644
Tax effect of temporary differences not REREREETECBBETE
recognised 57

PRSHF X

Income tax expense

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately HK$504,646,000 (2022:
HK$500,632,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax assets have been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The estimated tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of approximately HK$4,912,000 (2022:
HK$5,163,000). No deferred tax asset was recognised as it
was not probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences
can be utilised.
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14. LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY
The Group’s loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company is stated after charging the following:

14, XARFEBEABREFESR

ARRBEBEABEAEEFEEHBIEN
BRTFIEB MSH :

2023 2022

—_=EF_-—
HK$'000
FAIT

HK$'000
FiEx

Auditors’ remuneration ZERD B &

— Audit services — B %R

- Non-audit services —FEEZRD
Depreciation e
Donation B
Investment management fees (Note) REEEE (Hit)
Custody services fees (Note) RERGE (A it)

360
51
615
45
482
106

Note: They were de minimis continuing connected transactions of
the Company under Rule 14A.73(1) of the Listing Rules.

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Wit #ZEEE A EMRAEI4ATIMET

BREMRRKFZADFFEBERS

15. EERAMX

2023
—g-=

HK$’000
TR

2022
N

— =

HK$'000
THET

e 1A

Salaries, bonuses and allowances
Retirement benefit scheme contributions

Ko Bh
BKE %JEJrilJT A

12,364
200

12,564
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M BRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #EZE—T - =F + A=+ —HIFE

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 15. EERFBEX (&)
Five highest paid individuals ERESFAL
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year FAREERAGERFATFERS (=
included two (2022: two) directors whose emoluments are E--F MEB)AES  BEZMES AN
reflected in the analysis presented in note 16. The HIZ2V 2P RE - B T =% (=%
emoluments of the remaining three (2022: three) individuals T =F)ATZMEENAT

are set out below:

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fi&xT FHET
Salaries, bonuses and allowances 4 JEAL K RAL 6,497 6,589
Retirement benefit scheme contributions EARE R T 217 = 48 54
6,643
The emoluments fell within the following bands: & BRI TEE :
Number of individuals
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z & JLE 1,000,000 7T
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001% 7L £2,500,0007% 7T
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7T £4,000,0007% 7T
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16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive's emoluments
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the

years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, disclosed
pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and the
Companies Ordinance is set out below:

16. EER/ARF =&
() EBRTHEIHME
RIBER E R AR A BEOI 8 5E 2
BE-Z-_=FR-ZT-__F+=-H
=T —HBULEFEZESRITRBEF
B4

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

BRARALTENROIRUESRUCENSRAME

Fees

Lk

2023

k- St} 2
HK$'000
TAT

2022
—E-CE
HK$'000
FEn

Chairman and Non-executive FE#%#HTEE
Director

Lam Man Chan ("Dr.Lam") 430 (#7881 )

Executive Director HiEs

Lee Kwok Leung ("Mr. Lee”)  ZER([Z5%4])

Independent Non-executive  BUFHTES
Directors

Ng Chi Yeung, Simon 55

Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy ik

Florence Ng (Note ) KRR W)

Law So Fun (Note i) )

Chief Executive Officer THes

Yeung Cheuk Kwong (Note i) 155 % (#&ii)

Notes:
(i) Resigned on 28 December 2023.
(i)  Appointed on 28 December 2023.

(iii)  Retired on 1 November 2023.

Employer's contribution
Salaries and to a retirement benefit
allowances scheme Total
EEYEL RINENHE 2 BEAR @it

2023
=3
HKS'000
TiEx

203
s
HK$000

2023
=
HKS'000
TR

2022
—E-CE
HK$'000
TEn

2022
—E-CE
HK$'000
TEn

2022
—E-CE
HK$'000
TEn

NCRC=H+ A+ /\BEE-

2
(iy RZTEZ=F+ZAZ+N\BEZ{F-

iy ER-ZT-_=F+—HA—RALME-
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16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(a)
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Directors’ and chief executive's emoluments

(Continued)
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the chief

executive officer or any of the directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office (2022: Nil).

Neither the chief executive officer nor any of the
directors waived any emoluments during the year (2022:
Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits
None of the directors of the Company received any

termination benefits during the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making

available directors’ services
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the

Company did not pay considerations to any third parties
for making available directors’ services (2022: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, bodies corporate
controlled by and entities connected with such

directors
As at 31 December 2023,

quasi-loans or other dealings in favour of the directors,
their controlled bodies corporate and the directors’
connected entities (2022: None).

there are no loans,

6. EE/AK A= (&)

(a)

ESERTRARNE ()

REBEHBEMTRERSITAESEE
NERME  EAFEMNARERK
RINARERE % 2 RZEN S e AR
B(ZZTZ=F  E) o

FAMETRAH TN ESWEMT
e (ZE_—F : 8) -

EEHERERN
BE_ZT-_=F+-_A=t+—HiL#HF

o AREEEMERIUITEREE
AM(ZEZ—F E) -

MERHKESREREMGETE=
FZRE
HEZZTZ=F+ZA=1+—AHL#F
B ARBVEREREEZRSM
MEMNE=AXHEARE(ZTE=Z
Fm|) e

FRUES -XESEFZE
AERREESEHRECER
REBAFLHER  BOEX
RHEMRZ z2ER
R-ZF-_=F+-A=+—08 UE
NEE FHERHZZABEEBXES
ZHERRARE AMEHERER
BUBERIEMZS (22 —F:
&) -



16.

17.

18.

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)
(e) Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements and contracts
Save as disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated

financial statements, no other significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company and the
director’'s connected party had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year (2022: Nil).

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed by the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil), nor has any
dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting
period.

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY

Basic loss per share

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the loss
for the year attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$6,311,000 (2022: HK$27,991,000) and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
141,423,187 (2022: 141,423,187) in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share
During the year ended 31 December 2023, diluted loss per

share was same as the basic loss per share for the year ended
31 December 2023 as there were no potential dilutive
ordinary shares.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the potential
ordinary shares that may arise from the outstanding share
options issued have not been included in the calculation of
diluted loss per share because they are anti-dilutive. Diluted
loss per share was same as the basic loss per share for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

16.

17.

18.

EEEA RN (F)

) EBERXRS  RHEREHNTPZ
B AR =
BREZE IS MR M FE36FT IR B & SN -
T4 K 5 4 19 (T {r) B R X 4 75 48 (T 1)
HtWEARS “HERENTIARAF
BERZINFTURARAREERE
EMEIFREPEESHEREEKR
Mam(ZEZ=F: |\) -

B’E
ARATIREBE-E-_=+_-A=+—HI
FEATERNREREAKRE (ZTE==
F o8 AREPRTHERINERZZRE
FERRE -

RARERARGESRER

ERELRESE
BREAEBEBDNEARAREEAEGESF
fEE 846,311,000 (&~ —
27,991,000 70) R F RNz B BT EBR
PNAESE 5 141,423,187 (& = —
141,423,1870%) 5T & -

BREBEESE
HE-_Z-_ZF+-_AZ+—RHILFER"
BRI EAEEER BT LB - HE
EZT_-F+ZA=Zt+—BHLEFEZS
R EEREGREREIBHER -

BE-_Z-_—"F+-A=+t—BIFER -
HREETERTE CEREAEEEZ
BEELEKREEREEER QWA EAA
BREFEBRIFER BE_T_—
T A=T-RALEFEsEREEEIER
BREKREEER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
II‘IT\ j‘ ﬁ& #& ?:!‘:Z Bﬁ- -‘E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # =T —_ =&+ - A=+ —HItF &

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. ME -BENR%ZE
Leasehold Office
land and Leasehold furniture Motor
buildings  improvements and fixtures vehicles Yacht Total
HOE
BELHRET  BENEEE BHREE e i b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL AL TAL THL AL TAL
Cost BA
Asat 1 January 2022 A\ZBZZF-f-H 13,257 1,676 596 5,052 490 21,071
Additions NE - - 19 - - 19
Write off ik - - (9) - - (9)
As at 31 December 2022 and R-B-ZE
1 January 2023 +ZB=+-BEk
ZB8CZ£-B-H 13,257 1676 606 5,052 490 21,081
Additions "E - - 25 - - 25
Disposals e - - (45) - - (45)
Write off s - - - (3417) - (3417)
As at 31 December 2023 RZBZZf&
+-ZF=+-H 13,257 1,676 586 1,635 490 17,644

Accumulated depreciation and ~ R3tFERAHE

impairment
Asat 1 January 2022 A\ZEZZF-f-H 3,933 1,676 550 4,988 490 11,637
Charge for the year ERik 530 - 21 64 - 615
Write off ik - - (9) . - 9
As at 31 December 2022 and RZBZZ§
1 January 2023 +ZA=+-AK
“BI=%-5-H 4463 1676 562 5,052 490 12,243
Charge for the year ERik 530 - 2 - - 550
Disposals L& - - (26) - - (26)
Write off s - - - (3.417) - (3417)
As at 31 December 2023 RZBZZE&
+ZA=+-H 4,993 1,676 556 1,635 490 9,350
Carrying amount REE
As at 31 December 2023 RZBZZE
+=A=+-H 8,264 - 30 - - 8,294
As at 31 December 2022 St
T-A=1t-8 8,794 - 44 - - 8,338
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the leasehold land and MN-E—=FEg _FE-_—_F+-_A=+—
buildings were pledged as security for the Group’s bank loan. H HEXMEBFE FRBEALAER

RITERZERY -
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20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL

BAREHABRZEMERE

2023 2022

—g== T

_—— =

HK$°000 HK$'000
FiEx TAT

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, BB A
at fair value BAREAKR

Analysed as: Pak =1

Current assets B & E

Non-current assets

FRBEE

21,976
9,366

Fair values of equity securities listed in Hong Kong are
primarily based on quoted market prices.

As at 31 December 2023, an amount of approximately
HK$9,366,000 (2022: HK$11,774,000) was classified as
non-current assets as the management of the Group
expected that such amount might not be realised within
twelve months after the reporting period.

BELTBRABSZAABEZERTS
wE -

RZEZ=F+=-—A=+—H8 —EHYH
9,366,000/ 7T (ZE = —4 : 11,774,000/
T ZEBOBERIERDEE RERARE
EEEEERZeE T REEHET =
MARER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e RS IR R M R

For the year ended 31 December 038E_T-_=—F+_A=+—AILFEE

21. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD BY . XEERREZETEREZEHR
THE GROUP
Particulars of top ten investments held by the Group as at 31 BT EMRBE21120NEEERAEERN =
December 2023 and 2022 disclosed pursuant to the Listing E-_=FR-_E-_—_F+-_A=1+—8#%
Rule 21.12(1) are as follows: BZTREREZEMWT :
2023 —FZ-=
Percentage of
investment
attributable
Net assets Fair value to the
Nature of Interest attributable Invested (losses)/ ~ Carrying  Dividend  Dividend Group's total
Name of investment business held to the Group amount gains amount  received cover assets
ARBEAEE
AEERLE MfE EiERE2
RERR SBME [ R 3 REE (BR)/ ka REE BkRE  REUE Al

(%) HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOOO  HKS000  HKS00 (%) )
TET TiEx TiEn TEx TiEx

Financial assets at FYTPL

REREHAREZEREE

Listed equity investments

LHRAR

China Oriented International Holdings Limited ~ Note a 21,820 12,700 (3,334)
("China Oriented”) '

mPERERERAR (A% ]) Hiita

Kingkey Intelligence Culture Holdings Limited ~ Note b ‘ 9,980 4,495 2,825

_("Kingkey Intelligence”)
RABZ U ARERAR (TREEER)) it

KNT Holdings Limited ("KNT Holdings") Note ¢ : 5,020 (970)
SEBRERAF ([ZEER]) M

JTF International Holdings Limited Note d | 4,880 (968)
("JTF International")

SRLARERARLA (2 REAR) Hid

Okura Holdings Limited (*Okura Holdings”)  Abtee - 2,805 (892)
Okura Holdings Limited ([ Okura Holdings ) e
ID.com, Inc. ("JD.com”) Note f 1,955 (776)
RREBRNERAF(RRER)) Hr
Hong Kong Exchange and Clearing Limited Note g 1,389 (317)
("HKEX")
BERBREERERRA ((ERMA]) ity
PT International Development Corporation Note h . 2,936 (1,879)

Limited (“PT \nternational"R
REARZRAZERAA (REDR)) M

Xiaomi Corporation ("Xiaomi") Note i 0.0002 1877 (941)
PRER()K]) Wi

Alibaba Group Holding Limited Note j 0.00002 366 12
("Alibaba Group”)
MEEEREERERAF(NECERA) A

38,423 (7,240) 31,183
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21.

PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD BY 21 XEEREZETEREZER
THE GROUP (CONTINUED) (48)
2022 —E-
Percentage of
investment
attributable
Net assets Fair value to the
Nature of Interest  attributable Invested (losses)/ Carrying Dividend Dividend ~ Group's total
Name of investment business held  to the Group amount gains amount received cover mag;ets
30
\ o kEERE DB SEERG
RE4H ABEE FMEREE  AEFE REE (BB)/ & FEE Shke  RELE REZAAM
(%) HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000 HK$000 HK$000 (%) (%)
AL AL TEL AL AL
Financial assets at FVTPL
KA ET FR 2 BEE
Listed equig investments
LiRAR
Grown Up Group Investment Holdings Limited 2.98 6,831 6,877 3,689 10,566 - N/A 17.58
EEEERERRERLT TR
China Oriented Note a 10.50 24,164 12,700 (3,166) 9,534 - N/A 15.87
AR it TER
KNT Holdings Note ¢ 1282 1,335 5,021 (377) 4,644 - N/A 173
FER Wi NiR
HKEX Note g 0.0006 315 2,945 (247) 2,698 49 232 449
BRA My
China Bright Culture Group 0.6688 8,754 4338 (1,663) 2,675 - N/A 4.45
REUEE il
PT International Note h 0.7483 5,359 2,936 (293) 2,643 - N/A 4.40
REER Hin TER
Golden Century International Holdings Group 0.7184 178 4896 (2,432) 2,464 - N/A 410
Limited
SEEREREABRAT TR
Shuang Yun Holdings Limited 2.09 6,862 4,456 (2,052) 2,404 - N/A 4.00
EEARERAA TER
Tencent Holdings Limited 0.0001 712 5,285 (2,947) 2,338 150 14.75 3.89
BiakERAT
ID.com Note f 0.0003 905 3,321 (1,014) 2,307 52 029 384
RE5E HEr
52,775 (10,502) 42,273 251
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21. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD BY
THE GROUP (CONTINUED)
A brief description of the business and financial information
of the investee companies, based on their published annual
and interim reports, results announcements and management
accounts, is as follows:

(a) China Oriented

China Oriented was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and its shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1871.HK). China Oriented and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of
driving training services in the PRC. For the year ended
31 December 2023, the audited consolidated loss
attributable to owners of China Oriented was
approximately Renminbi (“RMB") 8.4 million and its
audited consolidated equity attributable to owners of
China Oriented was approximately RMB189.6 million.

(b) Kingkey Intelligence

Kingkey Intelligence was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and continued in Bermuda with limited liability
and its shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 550.HK). Kingkey Intelligence
and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
recruitment advertising businesses. For the six months
ended 30 June 2023, the unaudited consolidated loss
attributable to equity shareholders of Kingkey
Intelligence was approximately HK$9.6 million and its
unaudited consolidated equity attributable to
shareholders of Kingkey Intelligence was approximately
HK$285.7 million.
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@ H

MPEREHSFMA - HR O
REFER L (RGOS - 1871.HK) °
MAREMNBAREEEPEKSE
REERZIRS HEZTZ_=F
+TZA=+—BLEFE mHEAR
AEBEEEZEEBEERNARK
([ AR ¥ 1) 8,400,0007T * 1M [A) F #
BAEBEREZGEERZAHARE
189,600,0007T °
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21.

PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD BY
THE GROUP (CONTINUED)

(c)

KNT Holdings

KNT Holdings was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and its shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1025.HK). KNT Holdings and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
manufacturing and trading of garment products. For
the six months ended 30 September 2023, the
unaudited consolidated loss attributable to owners of
KNT Holdings was approximately HK$14.7 million and
its unaudited consolidated equity attributable to owners
of KNT Holdings was approximately HK$57.7 million.

JTF International
JTF International was incorporated in the Cayman

Islands and its shares are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 9689.HK). JTF
International and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in the wholesale of oil products based in Guangdong
Province, the PRC. It was transferred its listing from
GEM Board to Main Board in May 2023. For the year
ended 31 December 2023, the audited consolidated
loss attributable to owners of JTF International was
approximately RMB1.5 million and its audited
consolidated equity attributable to owners of JTF
International was approximately RMB431.5 million.

21. ?:ﬁ%)%ﬁZiE&ﬁZﬁﬂﬂ

(c)

REER
REEREHENE MK - &
B DB S FT =R £ (B (5% -
1025.HK) c Z 2R R EKE R A
FERERREMRRERES - #HE
TE-=FAA=TRHILANEA =
BERBRBEAREREERESE
185 #914,700,0007%8 7T 1 2= 2R
WEANBLMAKERGERRARL
57,700,0007 G °

SHREHR

CHREEBEERSHSEMKRT - &
B D B 2 BT =R BT (Bt (5% -
9689.HK) - SR EEHBE R HEWE A
AIEEREHMEBTERL  UREE
REAEM ER_T_=FRHAK
GEMBZEFR LM -HE_T==F
+TZA=Z+—HLEFE FXLEKE
BEANEBLUKEZEEEBEBANA
R #1,500,0007T * il & 2 & B BF %
EANEBLEEZGEREROARE
431,500,0007T °
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21.

PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD BY
THE GROUP (CONTINUED)

(e)

CHINA CASTSON 81 FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED |

Okura Holdings
Okura Holdings was incorporated in the Hong Kong and

its shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1655.HK). Okura Holdings and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the business
of operating pachinko halls in Japan. Its shares were
listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange since March 2017. For the six months ended
31 December 2023, the unaudited consolidated profit
attributable to shareholders of Okura Holdings was
approximately Japanese Yen 1.1 billion and its
unaudited consolidated equity attributable to
shareholders of Okura Holdings was approximately
Japanese Yen 6.8 billion.

JD.com
JD.com was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its

shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 9618.HK). JD.com is a leading
technology-driven e-commerce company transforming
to become a leading supply chain-based technology and
service provider. For the year ended 31 December 2023,
the unaudited net profit attributable to the ordinary
shareholders of JD.com was approximately RMB24.2
billion and its unaudited consolidated shareholders’
equity was approximately RMB231.9 billion.
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21. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD BY
THE GROUP (CONTINUED)

(9

HKEX

HKEX was incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 0388.HK). The principal activities of HKEX and its
subsidiaries are own and operate the only stock
exchange and futures exchange in Hong Kong and their
related clearing houses. For the year ended 31
December 2023, the audited consolidated profit
attributable to the shareholders of HKEX was
approximately HK$11,862 million and its audited
consolidated equity attributable to the shareholders of
HKEX was approximately HK$51,344 million.

PT International
PT International was incorporated in Hong Kong and its

shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 0372.HK). The principal activities
of PT International and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in a variety of business activities, including
trading of commodities, petrochemical storage business,
metal recycling, port and port-related services, provision
of management services, financial institute business and
loan financing services. For the six months ended 30
September 2023, the unaudited consolidated profit
attributable to the owners of PT International was
approximately HK$352.2 million and its unaudited
consolidated equity attributable to the owners of PT
International was approximately HK$720.6 million.

21. ?:ﬁ%)%ﬁZiE&ﬁZﬁﬂ

(9)

X BT

BRI ESBEMKY EBRH
XA ERLET (BRHGRRE:
0388.HK) ° 32 B & H I B & A1 &Y
FEXBRBEWLEHBE—HRKR
ERGI R —RPERGULESR
BHEER - BHE T -=%+_A8
=T —HIEFE  BRAKRREGE
= 1208 7 & 4911,862,000,0008 7¢ -
iR R B IE E LR & o
#951,344,000,000/% 7T °
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FTERELEEY  2EEMES
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21.
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD BY
THE GROUP (CONTINUED)

(i)

Xiaomi

Xiaomi was incorporated in Cayman Islands and its
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1810.HK). Xiaomi and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the development
and sales of smartphones, internet of things and
lifestyle products, provision of internet services and
investments holding in the PRC and other countries or
regions. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the
audited consolidated profit attributable to equity
holders of Xiaomi was approximately RMB17.4 billion
and its audited consolidated equity attributable to
equity holders of Xiaomi was approximately RMB164.0
billion.

Alibaba Group
Alibaba Group was incorporated in the Cayman Islands

and its shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 9988.HK). Alibaba Group and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in core commerce,
cloud computing, digital media and entertainment, and
innovation initiatives. For the nine months ended 31
December 2023, the unaudited consolidated net income
attributable to the ordinary shareholders was
approximately RMB76.5 billion and its unaudited
consolidated total shareholders’ equity was
approximately RMB1,010.6 billion.
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(%&)
(i)

VIR
PNRERERSEMEL - R
MEBZRER LT (BRHNRE:
1810.HK) c JORREMB AR EFEE
A At B SR sk kb [ A B K B AR
BEFH YMBAEREETHEEER IR
HEBBERGE RIEFREERETR -
HE_Z-=-F+-_A=+—HIF
B ORERBAEABGKEZE O
8 A% AR ®17,400,000,0007C °
MK B A EEZE
= A4 AR E164,000,000,0007T °

MEDDER
MEREEETEHEHS MK -
HAR DR T EIR T (AR5 -
9988 HK) M EEBEEL£EMHETA
AIFrEREROBE  BEHE  HF
HERIREURBIFER HEZT
Z=F+ZA=+—HIEAEAR T
BRBRREGERECETEHFINER
4 N R #76,500,000,0007C @ M & &
KETEHRRERBLBEAVARKE
1,010,600,000,0007T °
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INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

22. A—EBEQT 2R

2023 2022
=== —EF-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT FAT
Unlisted investment, at cost (Note a) JFELETIRE » IRCK (B ita) 9,000 9,000
Share of post-acquisition losses and other {5 Ug B 1% 518 I Bt 2 Uk =k
comprehensive income, net of dividends MERERRE
received (4,530)
Impairment loss (Note b) BB EE (M itb) (4,470)
Notes: Kta
(@)  The amount represented acquisition cost of 30% shareholding (@) EZ%EE%”&E%ﬁEﬁﬁEQE (\(@EJBO%
in Superb Kingdom Limited (“SKL") including a goodwill of LS PR E%E/\\\:\?_/_\EWE‘%ﬁ
HK$4,613,000 arising from acquisition in Year 2016. B4 2 ##4,613,000/8 7T °
(b)  The amount represented the impairment loss recognised in (b) Ez?%ﬁ?‘;ﬁéﬁ?i@?}irﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂi&ﬁﬁﬁ
prior years for the equity share investments in SKL. R ERR -

Details of the Group’s associate as at 31
2022 are as follows:

Place of incorporation/

December 2023 and RZB_=FR_F__F+_A=+—
B REBEZBEQGFBOT

Percentage of ownership
interest/voting

Name registration Issued and paid up capital power/profit sharing Principal activities
EHERER RRE/
1 AR S ok MR it B BRTRERKRE FE2MzER L TEEE
2022

—E-_F
SKL Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares 30%  Sale of LED lighting
BE A% 100/ & & products

HELIDRBER
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23. OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND 23. HitEWFIE - A RERRE
DEPOSITS
2023 2022
—E== T
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Other receivables and deposits Eqth e W B MR & 67 101
Prepayments TE FRIE 773
874
24. BANK AND CASH BALANCES 24. SRITRBEHEER
Bank and cash balances of the Group comprised bank NEBZHRTLRRSESRBERNERRE
balances, cash and short-term bank deposits with an original ZHBITHES ReRRINEHA A=A
maturity of three months or less held by the Group. T2 EHRITER -
The bank and cash balances were denominated in the RITRRSEBRUT I EEGE
following currencies:
2023 2022
—EF== T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
HKS ST 12,174 1,522
RMB AR 117
United States dollar (“US$") e 189
1,828
The conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to R AR BINEBZ R E(IMNEE IR IE
the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and ) R (EETE - SERNESTIEHRTE)RR -

Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.
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25.

SHARE CAPITAL

25. IR

Number of shares Amount
i3 #H &8
‘000 HK$'000
T TiExn
Authorised: EE:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FREE.01E Tz Eimik 20,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTREE:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREEC.IELZEER
At 1 January 2022, 31 December RZEZZF—H—H-
2022, 1 January 2023 and 31 —E__F+-A=+—8"
December 2023 —E-=F-A-HERK
—E-_=F+-A=+—H 141,423 1,414
Regarding capital risk management, the Group's objectives MEAREREREMNS  AEBZBERAME

are to safeguard the ability to continue as a going concern in
order to provide returns for stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amounts of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors its
capital structure primarily on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as debt divided by total equity. Debt is
calculated as “borrowing” (representing secured bank loan
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position).
Total capital is calculated as “total equity”,
consolidated statement of financial position. The gearing

as shown in the

ratios as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 were as follows:

REEQEZES  BRAKHEREED
B REHREENEE OIS E AR
A o R RS BB 4 A T -

RERNFHEENRRE  AEEAEHAE
ARRIREZRESHE  ARRBEER
BOTHFBMH I EEERE -

AEBREMEAEARRKIENELRR
BLHEREREZREARBZTA - X
REBRAREDRTE - BHEDAERE
EJ(Eﬂ?‘u?./:.\Hﬂ%ﬁkﬂ#ﬁzi‘%ﬁﬁﬁ?ZﬁﬁﬁﬁE

B30 - iﬁﬁ$ﬁ§+§%?§éﬁﬁ‘%ﬁﬂi%$&
i’%ﬁfr/T\Zf EHm] N _FE_=ZFR_-F
TCHEFZA=t+—HZEAREBBEEN
T
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25. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED) 25. BRA ()
2023 2022
—EZ= —E -
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Borrowing fBE 597 1,130
Total equity B 49,304 55,615
Gearing ratio BERBELE 2.03%
The only externally imposed capital requirements for the M—EAREBBIMZITERETE &5
Group is in order to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange WHERESH s mBE TR D
it has to have a public float of at least 25% of the shares. ELBB% L ARIFRE -
Based on the information that is publicly available to the BREAARMBZARAERREARARE
Company and within the knowledge of the directors of the EATH 25% N BHEFREZMFEREERE
Company, the 25% threshold of public float should be BFEEESEST -

complied with throughout the year.
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26. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company

26. g&ﬁ ZHBERABRR R FEEE

() AT ZPBAMRR KR

As at 31 December

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries
Financial assets at FVTPL

Current assets

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Financial assets at FVTPL

Other receivables, prepayments
and deposits

Bank and cash balances

Current liabilities
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Accruals

Total current liabilities

Net current assets

Net assets

FRBEE

ME - BEREE

KRB RARZIRE
BARERAREZEMERE

REBEE

& WA B 88 1 R IR
BARERAREZERMEE
H R URRIR - TR BUR K
Be

RIT MBS &%

RBEE

FE A Ff /B8 2 A 3RIR
FE &R X
RBAEELHE
RBEEFE

BEERE

w+=—A=+—H
2023 2022
—B-= -
HK$’000 HK$'000
Ti&x FAT
30
671
2,240
2,941
- 326
21,976 36,775
690 816
11,761 1,155
34,427 39,072
915 986
2,637 3,293
3,552 4,279
30,875 34,793
31,274 37,734
FEER 81 2MARRAR | —B=FFH




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE M BRERME
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26. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company
(Continued)

26.

Bl BRRBRE FES
RAZ W HARR TR (F)

=
_HWL‘)

As at 31 December

n+=—BA=+—H
2023 2022
—E-= —=E=-=
Note HK$'000 HK$'000

Byt TERx TAT

Equity =
Equity attributable to owners ~ ANRQ G A AFEEEZ
of the Company

Share capital fig 7%
Reserves G
Total equity T 4R FE

1,414

27 36,320

37,734

Approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2024
and signed on its behalf by:

Lam Man Chan

PR3 152
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26. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(b)

Reserve movement of the Company

g (&)
(b) RXAFzHERB

26. ARAZHBRRBRKHER

Share-based
Share  Contributed payments Accumulated
premium surplus reserve losses Total
R EE WARR RASREE AitER @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tix Flx FHT Flx Fil#x
As at 1 January 2022 W-E--F—-F-H 1,725 394,561 414 (338,446) 64,254
Total comprehensive loss for the year FE 2 HEEES - - - (27,934) (27,934)
Lapse of share options BRI - - (414) 414 -
Changes in equity for the year FEELRE - - (414) (27,520 (27,934)
As at 31 December 2022 W_E-—F+-A=1-H
and 1 January 2023 F-—E-=2-A—f 394,561 (365,966)
Total comprehensive loss and FERXHFREERERED

changes in equity for the year

As at 31 December 2023 RZE-=#+-A=1—-H

27. RESERVES

(a)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

27.

) )
394,561 (372,426) 29,860
R
(a) &~EH
AEBZFHEESEREESH 2R

/\Télﬁn&ﬁi\miﬁﬂﬂlmi%x&% 5 TE
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27. RESERVES (CONTINUED) 27. f#&1& (&)

194

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves b) REZHEERAR

(i) Share premium (i) BHRE
Share premium represents premium arising from e @B NBE R, FREE
the issue of shares at a price in excess of their par ZERBITRMDATEL ZGE -
value per share. The application of share premium B aERZIERATXARE(R
account is governed by Section 40 of the AE) FBAOGE & -
Companies Act of Bermuda.

(i) Contributed surplus iy WBAEBE
The contributed surplus of the Company mainly KRB ZEHARBEZE(B
represents (1) accumulated amounts transferred AFEEERMEBERZ25S
from share premium account in previous years and B RQWEAREREBERE ZHEER
(2) the total amounts of credit transfer after 1AEE o
capital reorganisation.

(iii) Share-based payments reserve (i) B REE
The share-based payment reserve represents the fair O R EEERARREE R
value of the actual or estimated number of A& A ELRE AT AT IR B B B s b At
unexercised share options granted for equity-settled HEZRITEBEBREZRANE -
share-based payments.

(iv) Translation reserve (ivy ERFEE

CHINA CASTSON 81 FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 4(c)(iii) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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28. SECURED BANK LOAN 28. EEEHEITER

The secured bank loan is repayable as follows: BEMRTERZERBRET ¢
2023 2022
—E-= —E-
HK$’000 HK$'000
T8 FAT
Within one year —FR 550 534
More than one year, but not exceeding —F LA BT BBME
two years 47 549
More than two years, but not more than MENEFERALZRAF
five years 47
1,130
Portion of bank loan that are due for RITERPEERR A —F&
repayment after one year but contain a BRIEEEREEGKRZES
repayment on demand clause (shown under (B A RENEE)
current liabilities) (596)
534
Less: Amount due for settlement within B TZEANEBREN S8
12 months (shown under current GIARBAE)
liabilities) (534)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months + = A T4~ &4 -
The 10-year instalment loan contains a repayment on ZTEHL HERHEBREEREZGER
demand clause which is repayable on demand and has been BNBERMERAREENRER  WIAREE M
secured by a mortgage over the Group's office premise (Note NEYE 2 RBEERR (319) - §8F1%
19), bearing interest at 2.5% (2022: 2.5%) below the BB TREBEMNER2E(ZZE =
prevailing Hong Kong dollar prime rate per annum. 25FE)EE -

TEER 81 EBRARRQE | ZBZ=HFFH

195
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 29. RO AR

196

2012 Share Option Scheme
The Company’s share option scheme adopted pursuant to a

resolution passed on 31 July 2012 (the “2012 Scheme"”) for
the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors of
the Company and eligible participants (as defined in the 2012
Scheme) has expired on 30 July 2022.

Under the 2012 Scheme, the Board of Directors (the “Board")
may grant options to directors of the Company (including
non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors) and its eligible participants to subscribe for shares
in the Company.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the 2012 Scheme is not permitted to
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. The number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted to any individual in any one year is
not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders. Options granted to substantial
shareholders or independent non-executive directors in excess
of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital or with a value in
excess of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the
Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up on or before the relevant
acceptance date, upon payment of HK$1.00 for the options
granted. Options may be exercised at any time from the date
of grant of the share option to a period to be notified by the
Board to each grantee at the time of making such offer,
which shall not expire later than 10 years from the date of
grant.
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

2022 Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 27 June 2022,
the Company adopted a new share option scheme (the
“2022 Scheme”) for the primary purpose to recognising and
acknowledging the contributions the eligible participants had
or may have made to the Group. Eligible participants include
the full-time and part-time employees, executives, officers,
directors (including executive directors and non-executive
directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries and other
non-employee participants (as defined in the 2022 Scheme).
Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the 2022 Scheme
will remain valid for a period of 10 years from the date of its
adoption.

The Company was authorised to grant share options under
the 2022 Scheme for subscription of up to a total of
14,142,318 shares, representing approximately 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
adoption.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the 2022 Scheme is not permitted to
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. The number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted to any individual in any one year is
not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders. Options granted to substantial
shareholders or independent non-executive directors in
excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital or with a
value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in advance
by the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up on or before the relevant
acceptance date, upon payment of HK$1.00 for the options
granted. Options may be exercised at any time from the date
of grant of the share option to a period to be notified by the
Board to each grantee at the time of making such offer,
which shall not expire later than 10 years from the date of
grant.

29.

IR 43 19 % (&)
—ECCFREREE
BRER-_FT-_—_FA=-+tHBAN—
HEBAZRE  ARa RN —BHERE
BT —%533)) TEANER
ARRAAERZEEENAREHAE
BIELMER A ER2HRERFEALQF
FEHEFMHBARNNZBEFRBES 17
BAR 2ABE EZX(BRATEER
FRTEFR) NEMFEEL2EE (EER
R FEE)  BRIFEEMREZHK
B BT —Fialga HEME
HEF T FHRAGFAEN

RNREARE T = —FiT 8RR K AT RE

&% 614,142 318D < AR - HE
RAR B A H 2 B BITRA#L10% °

EREARABBRRELI AR RE-F
BB R 2 ARSI 2 IR
Tﬁ,ﬁ@%( TEBEBARFANEAREZE

BTN Z210% - EREARBBRRESR
HOER > AR — FHAREAER AL

ARERbcEREMYR2BRNHEE - T
BHRBAAFTNEMFEREZEEITRMDZ
1% ° WA EERIKBILIERTERH D
ﬁﬁi@$’&ﬁ?ﬁ§$o 1% 2k B A B #85,000,000
BT B - BESLERRNTMREIE o

R 2 B B B R R B B B 2 B
B BB R M 1,008 7T
23R o SR % 0B BRI It B
EEFERUKEBNHNEEREAL
MRS 170 - B ARV A
e .
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED) 29. BRI (&)

CHINA CASTSON 81 FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED |

2022 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
After the adoption of 2022 Scheme, no further options could

be offered under the 2012 Scheme, but in all other respects
the provisions of the 2012 Scheme shall remain in full force
and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to the
exercise of options granted prior to its expiration or otherwise
as may be required in accordance with the provisions of the
2012 Scheme and all options granted prior to such expiration
and not exercised at the date of expiration shall remain valid.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, 885,638 share
options were lapsed. During the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022, no share options were granted, exercised
and cancelled. There are no shares options outstanding as at
31 December 2023 and 2022.

Details of the movement of share options under 2012
Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2022 are as
follows:

“ECFBERESS (R

KW —_ T _F5&ElE TUHRE_-Z
——HFHEREREREZY EBEMEHE
fAE —FE—ZFFE 2GR EEE
FIEBERENEERAEL ZTESAE
MZEEAN BB B —FHE K
FEHRE - ME+RERAORER -

BE-_Z-_—F+-_A=1+—HItFERN "
885,638 EMRBEERM - HE-_T_=F
M—ZEZF+ZA=+—HILEFER"
WA R R - BTSSR
T_=FRIZBZZF+A=+—H"
I 8 R R AT R 2 P AR o

CE-CFFEETZEREREZE-Z
T CE+ - RA=+—HUIFEAZEHF
BT :

2022
—F-—
Weighted
Number of average

share options  exercise price

BREHE MEFHITEE

HK$
BT
Outstanding at the beginning of the year FHARITEE 885,638 1.160
Lapsed during the year FRKH (885,638) 1.160
Outstanding at the end of the year FREAKITE - -
Exercisable at the end of year FRAFITE - -
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30. PARTICULARS OF SIGNIFICANT SUBSIDIARIES

31.

Particulars of the significant subsidiaries of the Company as
at 31 December 2023 and 2022 were as follows:

Principal country of
operation/Country of

incorporation/Kind of  Particular of issued

Name of Company legal entity share capital
FEEXER/
HMEIER

LS ERERER BERITRAHE

Greater Sino Ventures  Hong Kong/British 2,100,000 ordinary

Limited Virgin Islands/Limited shares of US$1 each
liability company
BR/ZBRLEE/  2100,000LEKAME
BB EFDNT 1R ERR
Nicefield Asia Limited Hong Kong/Hong Kong/ 15,000,000 ordinary shares
Limited liability
company
NETHERAR /BB BREM 15,000,000 L&Ak
N
PLEDGE OF ASSETS 31.

As at 31 December 2023, the office premise with a carrying
amount of approximately HK$8,264,000 (2022:
HK$8,794,000) was pledged as security for an instalment
bank loan.

30 FEMB AR Z2FFE

RZBE_=ZFR-_FB-__F+=-_A=+—
B ARBETENERARZFBNOT

Percentage of

ownership interest/voting Principal
power/profit sharing activities
WERED RRAE/
MEsRZzES EX 3373
Indirect
%
2022
—E-—F
100%  Investment holding
100% REER
100%  Asset holding
100% #HEEE

EEER
RZE_=F+-_A=+—H0 ' ' KAEY
8,264,000/ 7L (—Z — —4F : 8,794,000
T ZWAEMEE FER  EAE—EHH
ERZERY -
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32.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Hong Kong retirement scheme
With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group joined the

mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for
all the eligible employees of the Group in Hong Kong.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employees are required to
contribute 5% of their monthly salaries up to a maximum of
HK$1,500 and they can choose to make additional
contributions. The employer’s monthly contributions are
calculated at 5% of the employee’s monthly salaries up to a
maximum of HK$1,500. The employees are entitled to 100%
of the employer’s mandatory contribution upon their
retirement at the age of 65, death or total incapacity.

PRC retirement scheme
The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operates in

the PRC are required to participate in a retirement scheme or
other similar defined contribution provident fund operated by
the respective local municipal government. The contributions
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the scheme/fund.

Macau retirement scheme
Employees employed by the Group’s operations in Macau

Special Administrative Region (“SAR"”) are members of
government-managed social benefits schemes operated by
the Macau SAR government. The Macau SAR operations are
required to pay a monthly fixed contribution to the social
benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the social benefits schemes
operated by the Macau SAR government is to make the
required contributions under the schemes.

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the
Group had no forfeited contributions under the PRC
Retirement Scheme, MPF Scheme and Macau Retirement
Scheme which might be used by the Group to reduce the
existing level of contributions. There were no such forfeited
contributions available as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.
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32.

33.

34.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)
The total cost charged to consolidated statement of profit or
loss of approximately HK$200,000 (2022: HK$203,000)
represented contributions payable to these schemes by the
Group in respect of the current accounting year.

NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE

The calculation of the net asset value per share at the end of
the reporting period is based on the Group’s net assets of
approximately HK$49,304,000 (2022: HK$55,615,000) and
the number of ordinary shares of 141,423,187 (2022:
141,423,187) in issue as at that date.

NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash
flows as cash flows from financing activities.

32.

33.

34.

BARENESE(E)

RERE Bk X 2 BN 4 F847200,0007%
TC(ZZ = =4 : 203,000/ L) IE AR EE 5
AEHFEREEEFE M MR-

BREEFE
RFERR 2 BREEFEDBRENRZAZ
KRR BFEEXA9,304,0008L (Z T ==
% : 55,615,000 7) REFHTEMEREE
141,423,1870% (—F = =4 : 141,423,187
BR) ErEl -

FEBRERERME
METHMEEEEZHER
TERFIWAEEREETDMELAGELE
B pREASKIIRSEY BEITDE
EZﬁf% ! Eﬁ%/mij*%iﬁiuwiﬁ/\

rEEGERERERTHIBRAREED
BernszafE-

Secured bank loan

At the beginning of year F 1)
Cash flows REemE
At the end of year FR

BIRIFERITER
2023 2022
—E_-= —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
Ti#&x FET
1,130 1,651
(533) (521)
1,130
FEHER 81 @MBMRAR | ZBZ=FFRH
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NDTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘/T\ ZI- i% #& ’IEE M-J -\I

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z T —_ =+ _-_A=+—HIFE

35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 35. HARAE
As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any R-ZE-_=F+-_A=+—H8 KEEHT
significant contingent liabilities (2022: Nil). BEMEARABE(ZZT__F:H\) -

36. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 36. EABBMALIRGRBERS
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(@) Transactions with related parties and connected (a) HEBALIRBEEALIZRS
persons
In addition to those related party transactions and BRRGEMEREREMTHER
balances disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated BB ALTR IR FEHRIN  NEH
financial statements, the Group had the following REFAZHEEBEMA L REEALE
transactions with its related parties and connected TR S :

persons during the year:

2023 2022
—E-=F =
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi&n FAT
Investment management fees paid and ENREMNEEERE :
payable to: Success Advance Investments  EEI2IREBR A A
Limited (“Success Advance”) (Note (i) (B8R 1) (A77E0)) 482
Employee benefits expense paid and EffkEMEERAFX
payable to:
Ting Lai Ling (Note (ii) TE® (M) 2,087
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36. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Compensation of key management personnel
The key management personnel of the Group comprise

(b)

all directors and the chief executive officer. Details of

their emoluments are disclosed below:

36. EABABALIRGREBERS
(%)
(b) EEEEEK S RMH
AEEEEERERERERGES
RATBRH, - BE 2 ME R ERE M

Fees
Salaries and allowances
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes

¥ra RoRR
R KRN E IR

Notes:

)

(if)

Pursuant to Rule 14A.08 of the Listing Rules, any
investment manager, investment adviser or custodian (or
any connected person thereof) is regarded as a
connected person. Success Advance has been appointed
as the Company’s new investment manager with effect
from 25 January 2021. Mr. Lee, Executive Director of the
Company is one of the responsible officers of Success
Advance, and his son, Mr. Lee Wang Ho, was the
responsible officer of Success Advance until 18 August
2022.

Ms. Ting Lai Ling, wife of Dr. Lam, acted as the Project
and Administration General Manager of the Company
and received employee benefits in exchange for services
rendered to the Company.

37. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The net losses on financial assets at FVTPL as at 31 December

2023 to the date of approval of these consolidated financial

statements amounted to approximately HK$4.3 million.

-
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
TiE&x FAET
2,204 2,188
4,279 4,289
36
6,513
Hit -
(i) RIEETHEAE14A.0815 T

Bl WEEMREEA (KESE
ZEMBEAL) R BEEA
+ o BREEg-_E-_—F—-HA-+h
HEEZAABAQAFIRELRE -
KARHITEETREREREHES
—%ABEAB  MEFZRELE
NEeABREEEABE-ZT -
FNA+NBL-

(i) MELZZBTBRLTEEART
ZHE RITRAKIE A EAA
RERMZ REWEEBEAH -

37. REHEREE
R_E-_=ZF+-_A=+—BEXRGFAH
BHRERILEDHILE - BAARBEFAERZ
SRVEE 2 B18/F 54 54,300,000 7T ©

TEER 81 EBRARRQE | ZBZ=HFFH
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

hF R F B

204

RESULTS

e

For the year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=1+—BLFE

2023
—EFE=-=

HK$'000

FTER

Loss before tax
Income tax expense

Loss for the year attributable to ANQ B % B A FE1L

B 15 Bl &S 1R
GIEEEAGE3

(6,311)

2023

HK$’000
TR

owners of the Company FEEE
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Total assets BERE
Total liabilities B{EBE
Total equity 4B R

52,558
(3.254)

49,304

CHINA CASTSON 81 FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED

2022 2021 2020 2019
—F=-= —EZ—F ZZZFF ZFT-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FET FET
(27,991) (9,579) (43,928) (49,958)
(27,991) (9,579) (43,928) (49,958)
EERAE
As at 31 December
W+=-—A=+—H
2022 2021 2020 2019
— g2 —E-—F —E-FF —FT—HE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FET FET
60,089 89,467 95,537 139,575
(4,474) (5,938) (10,650) (10,713)
55,615 83,529 84,887 128,862
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www.hk0810.com.hk/en/

Unit 18, 9/F, Block B, Focal Industrial Centre,
21 Man Lok Street, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong
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